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HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD. CIN No, : L27120WB1947PLC015767 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 78 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the 

Company will be held on Friday, the 26" day of September, 2025 at 10,00 a.m. at the 

Registered Office of the Company at Trinity Plaza, 3 Floor, 84/1A, Topsia Road (South), 

Kolkata-700046 to transact the following business:- 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:- 

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt: 

a. __ the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31% March, 

2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 

thereon; and 

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 

315' March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Auditors thereon. 

2. Reappointment of Mr. V.N. Agarwal {DIN 00408731), as a Director, who retires by 

rotation at this AGM and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to applicable provisions of The Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 

V.N. Agarwal, Director (DIN: 00408731), who retires by rotation at this Meeting and 

being eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a 

Director, liable to retire by rotation.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Regulation 17{1A) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015, approval of Members be and is hereby accorded for above reappointment of Mr. 

V.N. Agarwal as a Non-Executive Director on the Board-of the Company beyond the age 

of 75 years.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 

authorized to comply with such formalities as may be necessary in this regard.” 

Corporate Office : 6, Old Post Office Street, Kolkata-700 G01 * Phone : (033) 2248-0941 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:- 

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

Re-appointment of Mr. G.K. Agarwal (DIN 00752191) as an Executive Director 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule V 

of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, or any amendment or re-enactment thereof 

and such other approval as may be necessary, approval be and is hereby accorded to 

the reappointment of Mr. G.K. Agarwal (DIN: 00752191}, as an Executive Director of the 

Company for a period of two years with effect from 1t October, 2025 on the terms and 

conditions and payment of remuneration, as recommended by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and the Board, and as set out in the Explanatory Statement 

under the Notice of AGM.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory amendment, modification or 

relaxation by the Central Government to Schedule V to the Act, the Board of Directors 

be and are hereby authorised to alter and vary the terms and conditions of his 

reappointment including remuneration, if necessary, in such manner and as may be 

agreed to by and between the Board and Mr. G.K. Agarwal within such prescribed 

limit(s) or ceiling without any further reference to the members of the Company in 

General Meeting.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 

authorized to comply with such formalities as may be necessary in this regard.” 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

Re-appointment of Mr. B.K. Mawandia (DIN 08770046} as an Independent Director 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014 and Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 {including any 

statutory modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) and 

Regulation 25 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Mr. B.K. Mawandia (DIN 08770046) 

an existing Independent Director who has submitted declaration of independence under 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors} Rules, 2014 anc Regulation 16(1)(b} of the SEBI (LODR} 

Regulations, 2015 and whose current term of office of five years gets completed be and 

is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director for a period of further five years with 

effect from 6" July, 2025 and that his office shail not be liable to retire by rotation”



“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and 

expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

Appointment of Secretarial Auditor 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and 

other applicable provisions (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof for the time being in force), M/s. Vidhya Baid & Co., Practicing Company 

Secretaries (having Peer Review Certificate No. 6354/2025 and UIN: S2014WB254300}, 

be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five 

consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 and upto FY 2029-30, to conduct the 

Secretarial Audit of the Company and to issue reports thereon, as wall as to provide 

such other services as permissible under applicable laws/regulations, on such 

remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board and the said Secretarial 

Auditor.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and 

expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 

REGISTERED OFFICE: BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
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NOTES: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 

PROXY TG ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A 

PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Proxies in order to be effective 

must be received at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before 

the commencement of the meeting. Members are requested to note that a person can 

act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate 

not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 

2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from 20.09.2025 

(Saturday) to 26.09.2025 (Friday) (both days Inclusive).



Relevant Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of The Companies Act, 2013 in respect 

of special business is annexed hereto. 

The Notice of AGM will be available on the Company’s website at www.hul.net.in BSE 

Website at www.bseindia.com and the Website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

The Notice of AGM and Annual Report are being sent only through electronic mode to 

Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company or Depositories. 

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses are being sent a Letter from 

the Company providing the web-link, including the exact path where the complete 

details of accessing the Annual Report, is available. 

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

20 of the Companies (Management and Administration} Rules, 2014 as amended and 

Regulation 44(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is providing Members 

the facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at 

the AGM by electronic means. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an 

electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) 

will be provided by NSDL. 

The facility for voting through Ballot Paper shall be made available at the AGM and the 

members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall 

be able to exercise their right at the meeting through Ballot Paper. 

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also 

attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, September 23, 2025 at 9:00 A.M, and 

ends on Thursday, September 25, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall 

be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 

Register of Members/Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) ie. 

September 19, 2025, may cast their vote electronically, The voting right of sharehoiders 

shail be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 

as on the cut-off date, being September 19, 2025. 

The details of process and manner for remote e-voting are explained herein below:- 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which 

are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual members holding securities in demat 

mode 

in terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual Members holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Members are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.



Login method for Individual members holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of Login Method 

members 

individual 1. For OTP based login you can click 

Members on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. 

holding You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID, 8-digit Client fd, PAN No., 

securities in Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 

demat mode | registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 

with NSDL. authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e- 

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e- 

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e- 

Voting period. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will 

prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 

under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e- 

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period. If you are not registered for IDeAS e- 

Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. 

Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ideasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL, Open web browser by typing 

the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 

system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Sharehoider/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 

held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 

the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

options available against company name or e-Voting service provider 

- NSDL and you will be redirected to e- Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

4. Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 

facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 

experience. 



NSDL Mobile App is available on 

@ App Store 
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1, Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 

through their user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to 

login Easi/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL Website 

https://www.cdslindia.com/ and click on login icon & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then use your existing easi username and password, 

2. After successful login the Easi/Easiest user will be also able to see 

the E-Voting option for eligible Companies where the e-voting is in 

progress as per the information provided by Company. On clicking the 

e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-voting page of the e- 

voting Service Provider for casting vote during remote e-voting 

period. Additionally, there are also links provided to access the 

system of all e-voting Service Providers so that the user can visit the 

e-voting Service Providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at https://www.cdslindia.com/ and click on login & New 

System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from e-voting link 

available on www.cdslindiaccom home page. The system wiil 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user 

will be able to see the e-voting option where the e-voting is in 

progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-voting 

Service Providers. 

Individual 

Members 

(holding 
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demat mode} 

login through 
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depository 

participants 

You can also login using jogin credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e- 

Voting facility. Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 

Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 

you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available against 

company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period. 



Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Members Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

holding securities in NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

demat mode with NSDL | or call at no.: 022 4886 7000 

individual Members Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

holding securities in CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk. evoting@ 

demat mode with CDSL | cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911 

B) Login Method for members other than Individual members holding securities in 

demat mode 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. 

2. Once’ the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon | “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed 

to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4, Your User ID details are given below 

Manner of holding shares i.e. | Your User ID is: 

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 

Physical - 

a) For Members who hold | 8 Character DP !D followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

shares in demat account with | For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

NSDL. Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN30Q% 2% 12% 4 ee 

b) For Members who hold | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

shares in demat account with} For example if your Beneficiary iD is 

CDSL, [2*FR RHEE KEKE than your user ID is 
LD RR RRR KK 

c} For Members holding shares | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 



in Physical Form. registered with the company. For example if 

folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 

then user ID is 101456001*** 

Password details for members other than Individual members are given below: 

a) 

b) 

lf you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 

retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 

the system will force you to change your password. 

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your 

email |D. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 

Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf 

file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 

shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 

your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 

in process for those members whose email ids are not registered 

lf you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 

a) 

b) 

d) 

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 

send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 

number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 

etc. 

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 

the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 

selecting on the check box.



8. 

9. 

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status, 

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote 

e- Voting period. 

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, 

verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click 

on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print 

option on the confirmation page. 

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 

your vote, 

General Guidelines for members 

1. Institutional members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resclution/ Authority 

letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) 

who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail r.vidhya9@gmail.com 

with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

Institutional members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload 

their Board Resolution/Power of Attorney/Authority Letter etc. by clicking on 

‘Upload Board Resofution/Authority Letter’ displayed under ‘e-voting’ tab in their 

login. 

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 

take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting 

website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct 

password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 

www.evoting.nsdi.com to reset the password. 

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions {FAQs) for 

Members and e-voting user manual for Members available at the download 

section of www.evoting.nsdi.com or call on no.: 022 4886 7000 or send a request



10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

to Mr. Pritam Dutta, Assistant Manager at  pritamd@nsdl.com / 

evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

Process for those members whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 

for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 

resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 

member, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Cara) 

by email to kkg@hul.net.in. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 

CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 1D}, Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 

Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self- 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to kkg@hul.net.in. If you are an Individual 

members holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 

login method explained at step 4 (A) ie. Login method for e-Voting for Individual 

members holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively sharehalder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 

procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above. mentioned 

documents. 

4. tn terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 

Listed Companies, Individual members holding securities in demat mode are 

allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Members are required to update their mobile number 

and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 

share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of September 19, 2025. 

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the 

Company after dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 

September 19, 2025, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or to Issuer at kkg@hul.net.in. 

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members as on the cut-off date 

only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM 

through ballot paper. 

Ms. Vidhya Baid, Company Secretary in Practice (Membership No. FCS-8882) has been 

appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the Members of the Company and 

to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Chairman of Meeting shail, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions 

on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of 

“Ballot Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast 

their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.



15. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes 

cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in 

the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shali 

make, not later than two working days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 

scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or 

a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the 

result of the voting forthwith. The Results declared along with the report of the 

Scrutinizer shall be placed on the Company's website and on the website of NSDL 

immediately after its declaration and shall also be communicated to the Stock 

Exchange. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

REGISTERED OFFICE: FOR HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

TRINITY PLAZA, 3°° FLOOR, 

84/1A, TOPSIA ROAD (SOUTH), 
KOLKATA-700046 
CIN: L27120WB1947PLC015767 
DATE: 1974 AUGUST, 2025 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

ITEM NO. 2: 

Mr. V.N. Agarwal, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible has 

offered himself for reappointment. 

Regulation 17(1A) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 mandates Listed Companies to obtain 

Members approval through Special Resolution for appointment or reappointment or 

continuation of directorship of any person as a Non-Executive Director who has attained the 

age of 75 years. 

Mr. V.N. Agarwal has a vast experience and in-depth exposure and involvement in steering 

diverse Businesses and experience and expertise in Marketing, Management and Operations 

of Engineering industries. His reappointment as Director would be beneficial for the 

operations of the Company. 

Hence, consent of Members by way of Special Resolution is sought in terms of Regulation 

17(1A) for his reappointment, on retirement by rotation. The Board therefore recommends 

passing of the Special Resolution as set out in item no. 2 of the Notice. 

Except Mr, V.N. Agarwal and Mr. Prakash Agarwal, no other Director or Key Managerial 

Personnel or their respective relatives are concerned or interested in the said Resolution. 

ITEM NO. 3: 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 19" August, 2025, approved the reappointment 

of Mr. G.K. Agarwal as an Executive Director for a period of two years with effect from 1* 

October, 2025. The terms of his reappointment including remuneration as recommended by 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board, subject to the approval of the 

Members to be obtained at this Meeting, are as follows:- 

1. PERIOD 

Two years commencing from 1° Octaber, 2025. 

2. REMUNERATION 

Subject to overall limit laid down under the Act, Mr. G.K. Agarwal shall be entitled to 

receive from the Company a consolidated Salary of Rs. 3,00,000/- per month. 

Provided that the total remuneration payable to him shall not exceed 5% of the Net 

Profits of the Company calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove, where in any financial year during 

his tenure, the Company has no profits or profits of the Company are inadequate, the 

Company will pay remuneration to him, within the ceiling limit laid down in paragraph 

(A) of Section II of Part |l of Schedule V to the Act.



TERMINATION 

This appointment may be terminated by any party herein, by giving to the other party, 

a three month notice in writing. 

The Executive Director shall not be entitled to any Sitting Fees for attending 

Board/Committee Meetings and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

The reappointment of Mr. G.K. Agarwal as an Executive Director and remuneration 

payable to him are in line with Schedule V to the Act and is subject to the approval of 

Members to be obtained at this Annual General Meeting and to the extent if any of 

the provisions herein are inconsistent or contrary to the terms of such approval, the 

latter will prevail. 

As required under the Act, the following further particulars pertaining to the Company 

and the appointee are set out herein:- 

General Information 

(a} Nature of Industry 

The Company was engaged in the manufacturing of Alloy and Stainless Steel 

Castings required in Turbines, Metal Shredding, Earth Moving and Mining 

Equipment, Power Plants, Pumps, Valves, Compressors and other Heavy 

Engineering Industries. The Company is also engaged in real estate business 

including leasing out of buildings/properties, purchase, sale, occupation 

construction and development of buildings/properties 

(b) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production 

The Company commenced its business on 3" September, 1947. 

(c) Financial Performance 

Performance of the Company during the last three years is set out as under:- 

; {Rs. In Lakhs) 

2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 

Total Revenue 1,316.49 2,095.46 2,118.25 

Profit/{Loss) before Tax 896.60 1,473.50 ' 2,767.60 

Provision for Taxes 243,22 336.76 0.13 

Profit/{Loss) after Tax 653.38 1,136.74 2,767.47 

Equity Share Capital 619.50 619.50 619.50 

Other Equity 13,346.67 412,450.77 11,261.93 

Non-Current Liabilities 1,118.49 1,111.37 3,264.50 

Current Liabilities 521.11 984,26 4,617.28 

Property, Plant & Equipment 6,868.32 6,932.25 4,728.93 

Investments 7,124.32 6,855.89 1,336.01 

Other Non-Current Assets 84.54 155.37 117.67 

Current Assets 1,528.62 1,222.39 10,316.10 

(d} Foreign Investments or collaborators, if any 

None



Information about the Appointee 

(a) Background Details 

Mr. G.K. Agarwal is having more than 48 years of experience and expertise of 

working in the Engineering Industry specially in the purchase and allied 

functions of Foundries. Apart from this, he has also had exposure and 

involvement in the general management and administration functions of the 

Companies. 

Past Remuneration 

The remuneration drawn by Mr. G.K. Agarwal during the Financial Year ended 

315t March, 2025 has been mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report for 

said year. 

(c) Recognition or awards 

None 

(d)} Job Profile and his suitability 

Subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board, Mr. 

Agarwal will manage and superintend the business affairs of the Company and 

do all such lawful acts and things in relation to such management and 

superintendence as he shall think fit and reasonable. 

Mr. Agarwal has been in the Foundry Industry for more than 48 years and is 

well conversant with the industry. 

(e) Remuneration proposed 

As mentioned in foregoing pages. 

(f) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the 

Company, profile of the position and person (in case of expatriates, the 

relevant details would be w.r.t. the country of origin) 

The remuneration structure of Mr. G.K. Agarwal is not higher than what is 

drawn by his peers in comparable Companies. 

(g) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or 

relationship with the managerial personnel, if any 

Mr. Agarwal being the Executive Director will not be entitled to remuneration 

under any other head. No relative of his is employed by the Company. 

Disclosures 

The remuneration package of Mr. G.K. Agarwal is already set out above. 

The Board considering experience and expertise of Mr. G.K. Agarwal 

recommends approval of his reappointment as an Executive Director of the 

Company for a period of two years with effect from 1* October, 2025. As such,



the Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 for 

approval of the Shareholders. 

(c) No other Director or Key Managerial Personne or their relatives are concerned 

or interested in the said resolution. 

ITEM NO. 4: 

The Members of the Company at their AGM in the Year 2020 had appointed Mr. B.K. 

Miawandia (DIN 08770046) as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of five 

years thereon. In terms of provisions of Section 149{10), an Independent Director may be re- 

appointed for a second consecutive term of five years on approval of Shareholders through 

special resolution subject to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. A 

notice in writing, under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received from a 

member of the Company signifying his intention to propose re-appointment of Mr. Mawandia 

as an Independent Director for second consecutive term of five years with effect from 6" July, 

2025. 

The Directors are of the opinion that considering the knowledge and experience that Mr. 

Mawandia has, his re-appointment as an Independent Director will be beneficial for the 

interest of the Company. The Board of Directors, therefore, recommends that the resolutions 

set out at item no. 4 of the Notice be approved and passed. 

Except for Mr. B.K. Mawandia, no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel or their 

respective relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution. 

ITEM NO. 5 

In accordance to the provisions of Regulation 24A of SEB! (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended from time to time, SEBI has mandated inter-alia that a Listed Company shall, on 

recommendation of Board of Directors, appoint a Peer-Reviewed Secretarial Auditor to 

conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for a term of five years with the approval of 

Shareholders at its AGM. 

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 14" August, 2025, subject to the approval of 

shareholders at the ensuing AGM, had recommended appointment of M/s. Vidhya Baid & Co., 

Practicing Company Secretaries (having Peer Review Certificate No. 6354/2025; UIN: 

§2014WB254300) as the Secretarial Auditor for a term of five consecutive years commencing 

from FY 2025-26 and upto FY 2029-30 on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon 

by the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditor, depending upon the scope of audit. 

M/s Vidhya Baid & Co, is a reputed firm of Practicing Company Secretaries registered with 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI} with Firm Registration No.: 52014W8254300. 

The Firm has experience of conducting secretarial audit of several Corporates in india and is 

certified by the Peer Review Board of the ICSI with Certificate No.: 6354/2025. 

The appointment of M/s Vidhya Baid & Co, as Secretarial Auditor has been recommended by 

the Board and Audit Committee, considering the background of the Firm, their experience,



past associations and capabilities in handling audits for similar size Corporates, competence 

of their team including their ability to understand the operations of the Company and to 

identify the compliance of laws and regulations applicable to it. 

The Board has obtained a Letter from M/s. Vidhya Baid & Co., Practicing Company 

Secretaries, expressing their willingness for appointment and confirming their eligibility. 

The Board recommends that the resolutions as set out at Item no. 5 of the Notice be passed 

as an Ordinary Resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are concerned 

or interested in the said resolution. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

REGISTERED OFFICE: FOR HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
TRINITY PLAZA, 3° FLOOR, 
84/14, TOPSIA ROAD (SOUTH), Co Klencs 
KOLKATA-700046 | 
CIN: L27120WB1947PLCO15767 [SHIKHA BAJAJ] 
DATE: 1974 AUGUST, 2025 COMPANY SECRETARY 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 78" Annual Report together with the Audited 

Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31* March, 2025. 

COMPANY PERFORMANCE: 

2024-25 2023-24 

FINANCIAL RESULTS RS. IN LAKHS RS. INLAKHS 

Total Income 1,316.49 2,095.46 

EBITDA 1,048.68 1,658.23 

PAT 653.38 1,136.74. 

The EBITDA and PAT reduced during the year on account of decrease in the Revenues, 

However, the EBITDA Margins in the Current Year continued to be stable and in line with that 

of previous year. 

DIVIDEND 

The Directors have considered to piough back the profits in business for better financial 

strength and as such they have not recommended any dividend for the year under review. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is appended below:- 

A. BUSINESS 

The Company was engaged in the manufacturing of Alloy and Stainless Steel Castings required 

in Turbines, Metal Shredding, Earth Moving and Mining Equipment, Power Plants, Pumps, 

Valves, Compressors and other Heavy Engineering Industries. The Company is also engaged in 

real estate business including leasing out of buildings/properties, purchase, sale, occupation 

construction and development of buildings/properties. 

B. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS & FUTURE PROSPECTS 

The Board is presently exploring options to diversify its operations for long term growth. 

C. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS 

Your Company is exposed to threats and risks, as faced by Organizations of similar size and 

nature like adverse changes in the general economic and market conditions, changes in 

government policies and regulations etc. 

D. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

The Company has internal control procedures commensurate with the nature of its business 

and size of its operations. The objective of these procedures are to ensure efficient use and 

protection of the Company’s resources, accuracy in financial reports and due compliance of



statutes and Company policies and procedures. The internal Audit function is conducted by a 

Senior Management Team of the Company. 

The adequacy of internal contro! systems are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board in 

its periodical meetings. 

E. HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

There was no human resource or industrial relation related problem during the year. 

F, SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

The explanation for significant changes, if any, in the Key Financial Ratios in terms of the Listing 

Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The principles of good Corporate Governance through professionalism, accountability, 

transparency, trusteeship and control have always been followed by your Company and it has 

complied with all the applicable provisions of Corporate Governance as per the Listing 

Regulations. A separate Report on Corporate Governance forms part of the Annual Report 

2024-25 along with the Auditors’ Certificate on its compliance in Annexure A. 

DIRECTORS 

Mr. V.N. Agarwal, Director (DIN: 00408731) retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being 

eligible offers himself for re-appointment. His Brief Resume shall form part of the Notice of the 

AGM. 

NO. OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD 

During the year Six Board Meetings were held on 29" May, 2024, 4» july, 2024, 14" August, 

2024, 13" November, 2024, 20" January, 2025 and 14" February, 2025. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(5) of The Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state 

as follows that:- 

(i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31% March, 

2025, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures; 

(ii} the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company at the end of the financial year and 

of the profit or loss of your Company for that period; 

(iii) | the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 for



safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

(iv) the Directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31° March, 2025 

ona “going concern” basis; 

{v) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 

and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

(vi) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and that such were adequate and operating effectively. 

POLICY FOR DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT 

The Company believes that in order to ensure that the Board of Directors can discharge their 

duties and responsibilities effectively; it aims to have a Board with optinum combination of 

experience and commitment with the presence of Independent Directors. Such Board can 

provide a long term plan for the Company's growth, improve the quality of governance and 

increase the confidence of its shareholders. 

The Company has a policy in terms of Section 178(3) of The Companies Act, 2013 on directors’ 

appointment and remuneration including the criteria for determining their qualifications, 

positive attributes and independence. 

BOARD EVALUATION 

The Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning and that of the Committees and of 

Individual Directors by seeking inputs on various aspects of Board/Committee Governance and 

considered and discussed in details the inputs received from the Directors, 

The aspects covered in the evaluation included the contribution to and monitoring of 

corporate governance practices, participation in strategic planning and fulfillment of their 

obligations including but not limited to their participation in the Board/Committee Meetings. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION 

The Independent Directors meet the criteria of being Independent (as prescribed in The 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations) and an Independency Certificate from them 

have been obtained. 

ANNUAL RETURN 

As provided under Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of The Companies Act, 2013, the 

Annual Return as on 31° March, 2025 in Form MGT-7 is available an the Website of the 

Company. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

M/s Salarpuria & Partners, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302113E) were re- 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of 5 years commencing 

from the Financial Year 2022-23 till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the year 2027,



SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 

there under, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed a Practicing Company 

Secretary to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. The 

Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31.03.2025 is annexed herewith as 

Annexure B, as part of this Report. 

COST AUDIT 

The Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of Section 148{1) of The 

Companies Act, 2013. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and no 

public deposits were outstanding or remained unclaimed as on 31% March, 2025. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company with its Related Parties 

during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. 

Hence, the provisions of Section 188 of The Companies Act, 2013 and disclosure in Form AOC-2 

are not applicable. The transactions with Related Parties are disclosed in the Notes to the 

Financial Statements. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES 

Details of Loans, Investments and Guarantees, if any, given/made by the Company are 

disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177($) & {10} of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil 

Mechanism of Directors and Employees has been established, details of which are given in the 

Corporate Governance Report. 

SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATES 

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, a Statement 

containing the salient features of the financial statements of the Company's Subsidiary and 

Associates in Form AOC-1 has been enclosed with the Consolidated Financial Statements of the 

Company. The overall performance of the Company and its Subsidiary’s and Associates’ share 

during the period under review is detailed in Form AQC-1. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks to 

minimize/mitigate/monitor the probability and/or impact of unfortunate events. Risk



Management Policy enables the Company to manage such uncertainties and changes in the 

internal and external environment to reduce their negative impact. The Board of Directors of 

the Company, as and when needed, develops such policies for assessing and managing the 

risks in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

information required to be given pursuant to the provisions of section 197{12) of The 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5{1} of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure C. There were no employees who 

were in receipt of remuneration in excess of limits provided in Rule 5(2){i to fii) of said Rules. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & 

OUTGO 

Particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange 

Farnings and Outgo, as required under section 134(3)(m} of The Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 were not applicable to the Company during the year. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

Your Company has formulated a Code of Conduct which applies to Board Members and Senior 

Management Personnel of the Company. Confirmations towards adherence to the Code during 

the Financial Year 2024-25 have been obtained from all the Board Members and Senior 

Management Personnel in terms of the Listing Regulations and a declaration relating to 

compliance of this code during the year by all Board Members and Senior Management 

Personnel has been given by the Executive Director of the Company which accompanies this 

report. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

Company which has occurred between the financial year to which these Financial Statements 

relate and date of this report. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors would like to thank shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers, employees and 

all other business associates for the support given by them to the Company and their 

confidence in its management. 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

seinem aco PLACE: KOLKATA 
DATE: 2974 MAY, 2025 DIRECTORS



ANNEXURE A 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance:- 

1) 

2) 

THE COMPANY’S GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY 

Corporate Governance is based on the principles of integrity, fairness, equity, 

transparency, accountability and commitment to values. Good Governance practices stem 

from culture and mind set of the organization. As stakeholders across the country evidence 

keen interest in the practices and performance of Companies, Corporate Governance has 

emerged on the centre stage. 

The Company has always believed in conducting its affairs in a fair and transparent manner 

and in maintaining the highest ethical standards in its dealings with all its constituents. It 

aims to constantly review its systems and procedures at all levels to achieve the highest 

level of Corporate Governance in the overall interest of all the Sharehoiders. 

The details of compliances made by the Company for the year ended 31% March, 2025 are 

as follows: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by the shareholders for overseeing the 

overall functioning of the Company. The Board provides and evaluates the strategic 

direction of the Company, management policies and their effectiveness and ensures that 

long term interests of the shareholders are being served. 

The Company’s policy is to maintain an optimum combination of Executive and Non- 

Executive Directors, As on 31.03.2025 the Company's Board consisted of Six Directors who 

are eminent Professionals with experience and expertise in Business, Industry, Finance and 

Law. 

The Non-Executive Directors {other than Independent Directors) are liable to retire by 

rotation. One-Third of such Directors retire by rotation every year and are eligible for 

reappointment. 

Criteria for identification of core skill/expertise/competence of Board Members 

The Company aims to have a Board with an ideal combination of experience and 

commitment to ensure that it discharges its dutles and responsibilities effectively. In this 

regards, the Board of Directors have identified the following core skills/expertise/ 

competencies that shall enable it to function effectively and are actually available with it:- 

{i) Leadership 

(ii) Familiarities with the business of the Company 

{iii} Exposure on various laws



(iv) 

{v) 

(vi) 

Expertise in Operations 

Analytical skills 

Experience of administration and finance functions 

The Board is satisfied that the current Board composition meets the requirements of 

skills/expertise/competencies, as identified above. 

The Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2025 are as follows:- 

Sl. | Category Nos. % of Total 

1. | Executive Director 1 16.67 

2. | Non-Executive Director & Promoter 2 33.33 

3. | Non-Executive & Independent Director 3 50.00 

TOTAL 6 100.00 

Details relating to the Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2025 are as follows:- 

SI. Name of Category No. of No. of other No. of other 

Board other Board Board 

Member Directorshi | Commitiee(s) | Committee(s) 

ps of which he/ | of which he/ 

In Indian she is a she isa 

Companies Member Chairperson 

1. | Mr. G.K. Executive 6 -- -- 

Agarwal Director 

DIN: 00752191 

2. | Mr. V.N. Non - Executive & 4 2 --- 

Agarwal Promoter 

DIN:00408731 

3. | Mr. Prakash Non - Executive & 10 1 -- 

Agarwal Promoter 

DIN:00249468 

A. | Mr SK, Non - Executive & 2 2 2 

Roychowdhury Independent 

DIN: 09116850 (Chairperson) 

5. | Mr. BLK. Non - Executive & 3 2 -- 

Mawandia Independent 

DIN:08770046 

6, | Mrs. Kiran Non - Executive & 1 -- - 

Darolia Independent 

DIN:08240886 (Woman Director} 



3) 

The Committee Memberships/Chairmanships considers Audit Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee only. 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal is the son of Mr, V.N. Agarwal 

The Non-Executive Directors do not hold any shares in the Company except for Mr. 

Prakash Agarwal whose shareholding in the Company is 8,60,537 shares. 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia was reappointed as an Independent Director on the Board on 

expiry of her term for a further period of 5 years with effect from ist October, 

2024, 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors the Independent Directors fulfill the 

conditions as specified in the SEB! (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of 

management. 

Details regarding the directorships of the Board Members in Listed Entities as on 31% 

March, 2025 are given below:- 

SL. | DIRECTOR NAME LISTED ENTITY NAME CATEGORY OF 

DIRECTORSHIP 

1. | Mr. G.K. Agarwal! a) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Executive Director 

2. | Mr. V.N. Agarwal a) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

b) Asutosh Enterprises Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

c) Bengal Steel industries Limited | Non-Executive & Promoter 

3. | Mr. Prakash a) WPIL Limited Managing Director 

Agarwal b) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

c} Bengal Steel Industries Limited | Non-Executive & Promoter 

4.) Mr S.k. a) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Independent 

Roychowdhury b) Asutosh Enterprises Limited Independent 

c) Bengal Steel Industries Limited | Independent 

5. | Mr. B.K, Mawandia_ | a) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Independent 

b} Asutosh Enterprises Limited Independent 

c) Bengal Steel Industries Limited | Independent 

6. | Mrs. Kiran Darolia a) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Independent 

BOARD MEETINGS & AGM HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024 - 25 

(i) During the Financial Year 2024-25 Six Board Meetings were held on:- 

29% May, 2024, 4'* July, 2024, 14 August, 2024, 13!" November, 2024, 20" 

January, 2025 and 14" February, 2025. 



a} 

5) 

6) 

7) 

(ii) Attendance record of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the last AGM are as 

follows:- 

Name of Board Member No. of Board Attendance ai last 

Meetings Attended AGM ie. 30.09.2024 

Mr. G.K. Agarwal 6 Yes 

Mr. V. N. Agarwal 6 Yes 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal 5 Yes 

Mr. S.K. Roychowdhury 6 Yes: 

Mr. B.K. Mawandia 6 Yes 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia 6 No 

BOARD MEETINGS 

i) 

ii) 

iii) 

The Company’s Governance policy requires the Board to meet at least four times in 

a year with a time gap between any two Board Meetings not exceeding one 

hundred and twenty days. 

In terms of Company's Corporate Governance Policy, all statutory, significant and 

material information (including compliance reports of all laws applicable to the 

Company as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non- 

compliances) are placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility. 

The Internal Guidelines for Board Meetings facilitate the decision making process at 

the Meeting of the Board in an informed and efficient manner. 

BOARD AGENDA 

Meetings are governed by structured Agenda. The Board Members in consultation with the 

Chairman may bring up any matter for the consideration of the Board. 

BOARD PROCEDURE 

The Members of the Board are provided with requisite information as required by 

Part A of Schedule || read with Regulation 17(7) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 

well before the Board Meetings and the same were dealt with appropriately. 

All Directors who are in various committees are within the permissible limits in 

terms of Regulation 26(1) of SEB! (LODR) Regulations, 2015, The Directors from 

time to time have intimated to the Company their Memberships/ Chairmanships in 

various Committees in other Companies. 

POST MEETING FOLLOW UP SYSTEM 

The Governance process in the Company includes an effective post-meeting follow up, 

review and reporting process for action taken/pending on decision of the Board/Board 

Committees.



8) 

9) 

10) 

11) 

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Independent Directors held a Meeting on 14" February, 2025 without the presence of 

any Non-Independent Directors and Members of Management wherein they (i) reviewed 

the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole {ii) review the 

performance of the chairperson, taking into account the views of Executive Director and 

Non-Executive Directors and (ii) assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of 

information between the Company Management and Board that was necessary for the 

Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME 

The Company takes steps to familiarize its Independent Directors about the Company’s 

organization structure, operations, business model, procedures and practices, industry in 

which it operates and their role and responsibilities through necessary documents, reports 

and internal policies. The details of such programs are available on the Company’s website. 

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for the Directors and Employees which 

enable them to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 

violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The mechanism also provides 

for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors/Employees who avail the 

mechanism. 

This functioning of this Policy is reviewed by the Audit Committee and it is ensured that no 

employee is denied access to the Committee. During the year ended 31 March, 2025, 

there was no instance where an Employee was denied access to the Audit Committee in 

this regards. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

Currently there are three Board Committees - the Audit Committee, Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Terms of 

reference of the Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. 

Meetings of each Board Committee are convened by the respective Committee Chairman. 

Signed Minutes of Board Committee Meetings are placed at the Board Meetings for the 

information of the Board. 

i} AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee of the Beard, inter alia provides re-assurance to the Board on the 

existence of an effective internal control environment that ensures:- 

(a) Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosures of 

its financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, 

sufficient and credible. 

(b) Compliance with Listing and legal requirements concerning financial 

statements.



(e) 

(f) 

Recommending to the Board the appointment/re-appointment of Statutory 

Auditors, fixation of their Audit Fees and approving payments made for any 

other services rendered by them. 

Reviewing with the Management the Quarterly and the Annual Financial 

Statements along with Audit Report before submission to the Board for 

approval. 

Reviewing with the management the independence and performance of the 

Statutory Auditors and the adequacy of internal control function and risk 

management systems. 

Discussion with the Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about 

the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussions to ascertain 

any area of concern. 

Reviewing the modified opinion, if any, in the Draft Audit Report. 

Reviewing the Internal Audit function and the progress in the implementation 

of recommendations contained in the Internal Audit Report, if any. 

Efficiency and effectiveness of operations. 

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 

Reliability of financial and other management information and adequacy of 

disclosures 

Compliance with all relevant statutes, 

Review/Approval of Company’s Related Parties Transactions, including 
subsequent modifications thereon, including inter-corporate loans and 

investments, if any. 

Reviewing the functioning of Whistle Blower mechanism. 

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after considering his/her 

qualifications, experience, background etc. 

Considering and commenting on rationale, cost benefits and impact of 

Schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc of the Company and 

its Shareholders. 

The composition of Audit Committee as on 31.03.2025 was as follows:- 

Name of the Director Chairman/ Member Category 

Mr. S.K. Roychowdhury Chairman Non-Executive & Independent 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal Member Non-Executive & Promoter 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia Member Non-Executive & Independent 



ii) 

iii) 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, Four Audit Committee Meetings were held on 

29" May, 2024, 14%” August, 2024, 13** November, 2024 and 14" February, 2025. 

The Attendance of the Members at the said Meetings is given below:- 

Name of the Director No. of meetings attended 

Mr, S.K. Roychowdhury 4 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal 3 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia 4 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee oversees redressal of Shareholders 

grievances relating to transmission of shares, non-receipt of Annual Report, general 

meetings and.other various aspects of interests of shareholders. 

The said Committee as on 31% March, 2025 consisted of Mr. B.K. Mawandia, Mr. 

Prakash Agarwal and Mrs. Kiran Darolia with Mr. B.K. Mawandia as the Chairman of 

the Committee. 

Ms. Shikha- Bajaj, Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer of the 

Company. 

A Meeting of the Members of Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on 

14" February, 2025. 

During the year ended 31% March 2025, no complaints/queries were received and 

no complaint/query was pending to be resolved as on 31% March, 2025. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee involves:- 

(a) Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of Director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to 

the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 

Management. 

(b) Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be 

appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down 

and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. 

(c} Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent 

Directors and Board of Directors.



(d) Considering the extension or continuance of terms of appointment of an 

Independent Director on the basis of report of performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors. 

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31.03.2025 

was as follows:- 

Name of Director Chairman/Member 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia Chairman 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal Member 

Mr. S.K. Roychowdhury Member 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, a Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee was held on 14!” February, 2025 which was attended by all of its 

Committee Members. 

The Criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors is given below:- 

(a) Updated on skills, knowledge, familiarity with the Company, its business and 

the external environment in which it operates. 

(b) Participates in development of strategies. 

(c} Committed to the fulfillment of Directors obligations and fiduciary 

responsibilities. 

(d) Quality of analysis and judgment related to progress, opportunities and 

need for changes. 

(e) Contributes adequately to address the top management issues. 

_ ff Considers adequately before approving any Related Party Transactions. 

(g) Acts within authority and assists in protecting the legitimate interests of 

Company, Shareholders and its employees. 

(h} Ensures that vigi mechanism has been properly implemented and 

monitored. 

(i) Reports concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 

violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. 

j) Does not disclose confidential information, commercial secrets, 

technologies, unpublished price sensitive information unless such disclosure 

is approved by the Board or required by law. 

Details of Remuneration paid to Executive Directors during the year 2024-25 are as 

follows:- 

Name Designation Salary 

Mr. G.K. Agarwal Executive Director Rs. 36,00,000 



Apart from Sitting Fees, no other remuneration is paid/payable to the Non- 

Executive Directors. Sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the financial 

year ended 31% March, 2025 were as follaws:- 

Name of the Director Sitting Fees paid 

Mr. V.N. Agarwal Rs. 6,000/- 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal Rs. 5,000/- 

Mr. S.K. Roychowdhury Rs. 6,000/- 

Mr. B.K. Mawandia Rs. 6,000/- 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia Rs. 6,000/- 

iv) SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

There was no change in the Senior Management of the Company since the close of 

previous financial year. 

12) GENERAL MEETINGS 

i) Details of Annual General Meeting (AGM) held in the last three years are as under:- 

Financial Year Location Date Time 

2023-2024 Registered Office at : 30" September, 2024 | 10,00 a.m. 
Trinity Plaza, 3 Floor, 77 

2022 - 2023 84/1A, Topsia Road (South), 29" September, 2023 10.00 a.m. 

2021-2022 | Kolkata-700046. 15" September, 2022 | 10.00a.m. 

ii) Whether any Special Resolutions were Yes 

passed in the previous Three AGMs 

iii) Whether Special Resolutions were put 

through Postal Ballot last year 

At AGM held on 30.09.2024 

a} Reappointment of Mrs. Kiran.Darolia 

as an Independent Director for a 

further period of five years w.e.f. 1% 

October, 2024 

At AGM held on 29.09.2023 

a} Alteration of Object Clause of 

Memorandum of Association (MOA) 

The following Resolutions were passed 

through Postal Ballot during the year, 

which was conducted in a fair and 

transparent manner:-



v) 

vi) 

13} 

iil) 

|, Passed on 26.05.2024 

a) Continuance of Mr. V.N. Agarwal as a 

Director 

Details of Voting Pattern - Postal Ballot:- : Areas follows:- 

a) Date of Resolution 26.05.2024 

b) Method of Voting E-Voting 

c) Total Shares 61,94,996 

d) Number of Votes Polled 41,32,927 

e) Votes in Favour (Nos. & %} 41,32,927 (100%) 

f} Votes Against (Nos. & %) NIL 

g) Practicing Company Secretary who Ms. Vidhya Baid 

conducted the Postal Ballot exercise (Membership No. FCS-8882) 

Are Special Resolutions proposed to be put : None 

through Postal Ballot this year 

Procedure to be followed for Postal Ballot : In accordance with the applicable 

(if applicable} provisions of the Act read with the 

Rules made thereunder. 

DISCLOSURES 

There are no materially significant transactions with the Related Parties that may have 

potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large, except as disclosed in the 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The policy on dealing with Related Parties is available on 

the website of the Company at www. hul.net.in/investor.php 

No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or 

SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any matter related to the capital markets during the last 

three years. 

Your Company has a well laid out Code of Conduct and Business Ethics for the Board of 

Directors and Senior Management Personnel. It is one of the best means for increasing the 

transparency in the working of the Companies. The Board Members and the Senior 

Management Persennel of the Company adhere to this principle and compliance with the 

same is affirmed by each of them annually. 

The Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Corporate Governance, 

specified in Regulations 17 — 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of 

Regulation 46, which reflects in this Report.



vi} 

vii) 

viii) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

15) 

(i) 

The Members of the Company at their AGM held on 15.09.2022 had authorized the Board 

of Directors to fix the remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors in consultation with 

them. Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and after consulting the 

Statutory Auditors, the Board of Directors have approved Rs. 5.50 Lakhs towards 

remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the services rendered 

by them during the Financial Year 2024-25, 

In line with the amended SEBI regulations, a Certificate from a Company Secretary in 

Practice is obtained by the Company confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of 

the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of Company by SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory 

authority, 

There was no complaints filed during the year in relation to the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 nor were there any 

such complaints pending to be resolved as on 31% March, 2025. 

The Company has not given any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to 

Firms/Companies in which the Directors of the Company are interested. 

The Company did not have any material Subsidiary during the year. 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS 

Quarterly Results: - Quarterly Results are generally announced within a period of 45 days 

from the end of the relevant Quarter (except for the last quarter) and are published in The 

Financial Express (English) and Ekdin (Bengali) Newspapers. In place of the results for the 

last quarter, the Company opts to submit the Audited Financial results for the entire 

financial year. 

Annual Reports: - Audited Annual! Accounts, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other 

important information are circulated to members and others entitled thereto. 

Website: - The Quarterly Results are displayed on the Website of the Company 

(www. hul.net.in). 

Official News Releases: - Official News Releases, if any, are displayed on the Website of the 

Company. 

Displays, Presentations etc; - Displays, presentations ete are not made to Institutional 

Investors/Analysts and hence not displayed on the Company's Website. 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION 

Company Registration Details 

The Company is registered in the State of West Bengal. The Corporate Identification 

Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is 

L27120W6B1947PLCO15767.



tii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

{vi} 

(vii) 

Annual General Meeting to be held — Day, Date, Time and Venue: 

SL No. | Particulars Remark 

A. Day Monday 

B. Date 26" day of September 2025 

C. Time 10,00 a.m. 

D Venue Registered Office at: 

Trinity Plaza, 3" Floor, 

84/1A, Topsia Road (South), 

Kolkata-700046. 

Financial Calendar for the Year 2025 - 26 

SI. | Particulars Remarks 

A. | 1 Quarter ending 30" June, 2025 Before 14‘ August, 2025 

B. | 2° Quarter and Half-year ending 30°" | Before 14'° November, 2025 

September, 2025 

C. | 3 Quarter ending 31° December, 2025 Before 14" February, 2026 

D. | 4 Quarter & Year ending 31° March, 2026 | Before 30" May, 2026 

Dates of Book Closure: 20.09.2025 to 26.09.2025 

(Both days inclusive for the purpose of AGM) 

Dividend payment date: Not applicable since no dividend has been recommended for 

the year ended 31° March, 2025. 

Name of the Stock Exchange at which Equity Shares are listed and Scrip Code assigned to 

the Company’s shares at the Stock Exchange: 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited with Scrip Code: 513039. The 

listing fees for the Financial Year 2025-26 has been paid to the Stock Exchange. 

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents: 

M/s MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as Link Intime India Private 

Limited} are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company. 

Shareholders may address all their correspondences/queries relating to Dematerialization 

of Shares, transfer/transmission of physical securities ie. those permitted as per SEBI 

(LODR)} Regulations, 2015, change of address, updation of KYC, non-receipt of dividend or 

any other query relating to the Shares of the Company to them at the below mentioned 

Address:-



(viii) 

(ix) 

(x) 

(xi) 

MUEG INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

Rasoi Court, 5*" Floor, 

20, Sir R.N. Mukherjee Road, 

Kolkata — 700001 

Te] :033 4073 1698 

E-mail ID : kolkata@in.mpms.mufg.com 

Common and simplified norms for Investor Service Request: 

in terms of the SEBI Master Circular dated 17" May, 2023 and amendments thereto, the 

Shareholders, holding shares in physical form, are required to update all details (namely 

PAN, email address, mobile number, bank account details, specimen signature and 

nomination) with the RTA and failing to do so the concerned Shareholder shall not be 

eligible to lodge any grievance or avail any service request. Shareholders are accordingly 

requested to update the said details by submitting the prescribed forms with the Company 

or its RTA, 

Share Transfer/Transmission System: 

All work relating to transfer/transmission of Physical Shares, as permissible under SEBI 

Regulations, are processed by the Company's RTA at their above mentioned Address within 

the stipulated timeframes. 

In terms of the Listing Regulations, the Company obtains Certificate from a Company 

Secretary in practice on a yearly basis for due compliance of aforesaid formalities. 

Dematerialization of Equity Shares:- 

The Equity Shares of the Company are admitted with Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited (CDSL} and National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL} for enabling the Investors 

to hold and trade in the shares of the Company in dematerialized form. 

The ISIN Number as activated by both CDSL and NSDL in respect of our Equity Shares is 

INE582K01018. 

As on 315t March, 2025, 52,63,738 Equity Shares representing 88.20% of the Company’s 

Total Equity Shares were held in dematerialized form. 

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion dates and 

like impact on Equity: 

NOT APPLICABLE [The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any other 

Convertible Instruments]



(xii) Distribution Schedule: 

The Distribution Pattern of the Equity Shares of the Company as on 31% March, 2025 is 

given below:- 

Sh No. of Equity No. of % of total No. of % of 

No. Shares held Holders holders Shares Shareholding 

1. i - 5000 40 43.48 80,273 1.30 

2. 5001 - 10000 12 13.04 91,848 1.48 

3. 10001 - 50000 30 32.61 7,41,103 11.96 

4, 50001 - 100000 2 2.18 1,10,267 1.78 

5. 100001 - 500000 3 3.26 653,170 10.54 

6. 500001 - above 5 5.43 45,18,335 72.94 

Total 92 100.00 61,94,996 100.00 

(xiii) Shareholding Pattern as on 31* March, 2025:- 

(xiv) 

(xv) 

Category Nos. % 

A. Promoters’ holding : 

1. Indian Promoters 

-- Individuals 8,60,537 13.89 

-- Corporate Bodies 32,71,519 52.81 

Sub-Total 41,32,056 66.70 

B. Non-Promoters’ holding : 

1. Institutional Investors ---- a 

2. Others: 

-- Corporate Bodies 2,49,485 4.03 

«Indian Public 18,13,455 29.27 

Sub-Total 20,62,940 33.30 

GRAND TOTAL 61,94,996 100.00 

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities 

NOT APPLICABLE [The Company has got no significant exposure in respect of commodity 

price risk or foreign exchange risk and has not undertaken any hedging activity] 

Credit Ratings obtained by the Company on its debt instruments or any fixed deposit 

programme or any scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds 

NOT APPLICABLE [Fhe Company has no debt instruments or any fixed deposit programme 

or any scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds]



(xvi) Plant Locations: 

None 

(xvii) Address for correspondence: 

Shareholders should address their correspondence to Company's RTA at their above 

mentioned Address or to Secretarial Department of Company at the following address:- 

HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

Trinity Plaza, 3" Floor, 
84/1A, Topsia Road (South), 

Kolkata ~ 700046 

Tel : 033 4055 6800/6808 

Fax No: 033 4055 6863 

t-mail ID : kkg@hul.net.in 

The above report has been placed before the Board at its Meeting held on 29th May, 2025 and the 

same was approved. 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BAORD 

eS at 

PLACE; KOLKATA 

DATE: 297! MAY, 2025 DIRECTORS 

DECLARATION BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ON THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

| hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all Board Members and Senior 

Management Personnel affirmation that they have complied with Code of Business Conduct and 

Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel in respect of the Financial Year 2024-25 

PLACE: KOLKATA {G.K, AGARWAL] 

DATE: 29°4 MAY, 2025 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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' Independent Auditor’s Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as per 

provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board ‘of india (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 

The Members of 
- Hindusthan Udyog Limited, 

Trinity Plaza, 84/1A, Topsia Road (South), 

Kolkata — 700 046 

The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Hindusthan Udyog Limited (hereinafter the “Company”}, 

contains details as required by the provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, asamended (“the Listing Regulations”) 

(‘Applicable criteria’) with respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2025, This 

certificate is required by the Company for annual submission to the Stock Exchange and to be sent to the 

Shareholders of the Company. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY - 

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. 

” This responsibility also includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 

to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report. 

The management along with the Board of Directors of the Company are also responsible for ensuring that 

the Company complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, 

issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY 

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to express a reasonable 

assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the specific requirements 

of the Listing Regulations referred to in paragraph 3 above. 

We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised) and the Guidance Note on Certification of 

Corporate Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (“ICAI”}. The 

-. Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised) requires that we comply with the - 

ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, 

Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other 

Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 
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7, CHITTARANJAN AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072 

ALSO AT: 1008, CHIRANJIVI TOWER, 43, NEHRU PLACE, NEW DELHI - 110019, TELEFAX : 2623 3894 

OPINION 

7. Based on the procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

that we are of the opinion that the Company has complied in all material respect with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended March 34, 

2025, referred to in paragraph 1 above. 

’ OTHER MATTERS AND RESTRICTION ON USE 

8. Thisreportisneither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

9: This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose of 

enabling it to comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with 

the relevant regulations of Corporate Governance and should not be used by any other person or for any 

other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other 

purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior 

consentin writing. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring 

after the date of this certificate, 

For Salarpuria & Partners 
Chartered Accountants : 

Firm Registration NO.: 302113E 

Palash EK. Dey, 
i 

wad cust be 
rt 

UDIN: A5CS 2.944 BM KUZLBS6Q 
Place: Kolkata 

Date: 24,05, 2085
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Form MR-3 ANNEXURE - B 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315° MARCH, 2025 
[Pursuant to section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

TO 

THE MEMBERS OF 

HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

TRINITY PLAZA, 3°° FLOOR, 

84/14, TOPSIA ROAD (SOUTH), 

KOLKATA -700046 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

adherence to good corporate practices by HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED {hereinafter called the 

“Company”}. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, Papers, Minute books, Forms ana Returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 

on 31° March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 

has proper Board process and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 

to the reporting made hereinafter:- 

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2025 according to the 

applicable provisions of:- 

{i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there 

under (Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and



(vi) 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during audit 

period); 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits and 

Sweat Equity} Regulations, 2021 {Not applicable to the Company during audit 

period); 

a The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client (Not applicable te the Company during audit period); 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018 {Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

There are no such laws that are specifically applicable to the Company with respect to the 

sector in which it fs operating. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:- 

(i) 

(ii) 

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with The 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and the amendments thereto. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above. 

We further report that:- 

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors during the year under review except for:- 

- Reappointment of Mrs. Kiran Darolia as an Independent Director on completion of her 

tenure for a further period of 5 years commencing from 1* October, 2024.



The aforesaid change were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and 

Listing Regulations. 

(b) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda’ and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 

for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation of the meeting; 

(c} Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members views, if any, are 

captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

4, We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and cperations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

FOR RINKU GUPTA & ASSOCIATES 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

FRN-S2011WB155900 

PR NO. 1385/2021 

< } 7 

CARE 
BEM GUOrPFA --- 

Campari Hearetery tow Pract 

RINKU GUPTA 

PLACE: KOLKATA COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTISE 

DATE: 29! MAY, 2025 FCS-9237, CP NO. 9248 

UDIN: F009237G000498627 



ANNEXURE C 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

(a) 

(b) 

Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of Company's 

employees for the financial year. 

RATIO TO MEDIAN 

REMUNERATION 

4.93 

SL. | DIRECTOR NAME | DESIGNATION 

Executive Director 4 | Mr. G.K, Agarwal 

The Other Directors of the Company only received Sitting Fees for attending the Board 

Meetings and accordingly their remuneration and ratio of same to median remuneration are 

very negligibie, hence not reported separately. 

Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and KMP during the Financial Year 

Sl. | Name Designation Remuneration Remuneration Increase in 

paid FY 2024-25 | paid FY 2023-24 | remuneration 

(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) 

1. | Mr. G.K. Executive 36.00 18.00 --* 

Agarwal Director 

2 | Ms. Shikha | Company 17.69 16.94 4.43% 

Bajaj Secretary & CFO 

* Remuneration for FY 2023-24 is for a period of 6 months only (commencing from date of 

appointment i.e. 1% October, 2023). Whereas remuneration paid to him for FY 2024-25 is for 

full year (i.e. 12 months). Hence, there is as such no increase in the remuneration paid to him 

during the year, as compared to last year. 

There was no increase in the remuneration of the Other Directors of the Company as they are 

not paid any remuneration except for Sitting Fees for attending the Board Meetings. 

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employee during the Financial Year 

was around 5% 

The number of Permanent employees on the rolls of the Company is 9. 

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and whether there are any 

exceptional circumstances for increase in managerial remuneration.



The average annual increase in the salaries of employees is around 5% and the same is on 

account of yearly increments. There was no increase in the managerial remuneration during 

the year. 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

\ Due 
- eS = 

PLACE: KOLKATA <td 
DATE: 297 MAY, 2025 ‘DIRECTORS 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To The Members of Hindusthan Udyog Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Hindusthan Udyog Limited (“the 

Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, and the. Standalone 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income}, the Standalone Statement of Changes in 

Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Standalone Financial Statements”). 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on 

the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its Profit including Other Comprehensive 

Income, its cash flows and the changes in Equity for ihe year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accoyntants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the Standalone !nd AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have. obtained is 

sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Financial Statements: 

a) Note No. 2 to the Financial Statements which describes that no provision for amortization has been made 

for long term Leasehold Land at Durgapur, 

b) The company filed a lawsuit against Mahanadi Coalfields Ltd. For recovery of Rs. 91.93 lacs at Cuttack High 

court for which no provision has been made in the accounts (Refer Note 3(d) of Standalone Financtal 

Statements). 

c) As the.company’s business activities fall mainly within a single primary business segment viz. Engineering 

{Steel Castings & Alloys); there are no operations under this segment. Note No. 22.3 of Standalone Financial 

Statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance In our audit of 

the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone {nd AS Financia} Statements as a whole, and in forming 

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone 

Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to this matter. Accordingly, our audit 

included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstate- 

ment of the standalone ind AS financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us and by 

other auditors of joint operations not audited by us, as reported by them in their audit reports furnished to us by 

the management, including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our 

audit opinion on the accompa nying standalone Ind AS financial statements. : 

The Key Audit Matter | How was the matter addressed in our audit 

Assessment of litigation and contingent liabilities and their related disclosures (refer note 22.1 to the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements) 

e As at 31st March, 2025, Company has exposure Our procedures included the following: 

towards litigations related to Direct Tax and 

Indirect Tax. The Company’s management performs | * Tested the design and implementation of internal 

an assessment of pending litigations and mixed 

decision thereof. As the ultimate outcome of the 

matters are uncertain and the positions taken are 

based on application of the best judgement 

including those relating to interpretation of 

_laws/regulations and company’s status to bear 

such litigation related to Direct Tax and Indirect 

Tax, it is considered to be as the Key Audit Matter. 

contro! over the quantification of the estimates 

used as well as the operating effectiveness of such 

control, 

Discussed with Company's tax/legal team, the 

recent developments and status of the material 

litigations matters relating to Direct Tax and 

Indirect Tax which were reviewed and noted by the 

Management. 

Assess the adequacy of the company’s disclosure. 

Based on the above work performed, Company’s 

tax/legal team’s assessment in respect of litigations 

related to Direct Tax and Indirect Tax and related 

disclosures under contingent liability in the 

financial statements are considered to be 

reasonable. 

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis Board’s Report including 

Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s In Oynrat ‘does not include the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. : 

Our opinion on the standalone, ind AS financial statements does not cover tt and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Standalone ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise appears to 

pe materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statement. 
: 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134{(5} of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in 

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, 

including the Indian Accounting Sta ndard (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 

and completeness cf the accounting records, relevant of the preparation and presentation of the Standalone ind 

AS Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nota guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements. 

As part ofan audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of materia! misstatement of the standalone Ind AS fi ial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsives fo, thés ne ks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our gpiyion. The _of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting ftanverrbdr, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the over i
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate inthe circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 

to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements made by the management and Board of 

Directors. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 

the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone ind AS financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contro! that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financiat statements for the financial year enced March 

31, 2025and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. Asrequired bythe Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A’ a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon, have sought and obtained all the informa- 

tion and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of 

our audit. 
2 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by! 

appears from our examination of those books and report of the other auditors; 
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) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the Cash 

Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

books of account; 

(d) In-our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the- Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules,.2015, as amended; 

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 

2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 

2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

with reference to these standalone ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure-B” to this report. 

(2g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: In 

our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 

- Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of 

the Act read with Schedule V of the Act. 

(h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report-in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 

Standatone Ind AS Financial Statements~ Refer Note 22.1 to the Ind AS Financial Statements. 

ii, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii, There was no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 

the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 

Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities idensified. manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Bengt! es”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
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(d) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any material © 

misstatement. 

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and also has not proposed final 

dividend for the year. 

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for 

maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of 

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 

instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the 

Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

Vi. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E 

UDIN: 2505 Z4VAOMKV ZT5.2I2 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 29,05. 202°5 
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INDIA 

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date to 

the members) ‘ 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and explanations given 

to us, we state that: 
: 

i, (a)(A) The Company has maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B)The Company has no intangible assets. Hence, reporting under this clause is not required. 

(b) As explained to us, the Property, Plant and: Equipment, according to the practice of the Company, are 

been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals, in a phased verification 

programme, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is 

reasonable having regard te the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the 

programme, a portion of the Fixed Assets has been physically verified by the management during the 

year and no material discrepancies between the book records and the physical Fixed Asset has been 

noticed. 

(c) The title deeds of Immovable Properties disclosed in financial statements are held in the name of the 

company, however title deed of the immovable property disclosed below is held in name of Neptune 

Exports Limited (Transferor company which is amalgamated with the company with effect from 

01.04.2019). 
Description Gross Held in name of Whether Period held — Reason for not 

of property | carrying. promoter, indicate range, being heid in 

value director or where name of 

their relative appropriate company 

or employee 

Building Rs.364.55 Neptune Exports NA 01-04-19 The Company 

lakhs Limited , , has acquired on 

(Transferor account of 

Company which is amalgamation 

amalgamated with and is in the 

the Company with process of 

effect from registration. 

01.04.2019.) 

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Hence, reporting 

under this clause is not applicable. 

(e) As per the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have beer’! 

or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding {ny 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) andy, 

itiated during the year 

roperty under the 
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ji. {a)As per the information obtained by us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management 

at reasonable intervals by the management and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such 

verification by the management is appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each 

class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification. 

(b)The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 

aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any point 

of time of the year. Hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

iii, The company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of 

loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. 

{a} So comment under clause 3 (iii){a)(A} and (B) does not arise. 

{b) The investments made in its associate during the year which is not prejudicial to the company’s interests. 

Other clauses i.e. (c), (d), (e) and (f) are not applicable. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 

Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, where 

applicable, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and security made. 

v. According to information and explanation given to us the Company has not accepted any deposits within the 

meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014(as amended} 

‘and no such order has been passed by Company Law Boa rd or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank 

of India or any court or any other tribunal. So, comment on clause 3{v) of the said Order does not arise. 

vi. Maintenance of Cost Records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 

applicable to the Company at present as there is no Revenue from Operations. Therefore, the reporting 

under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

- vii. (a) According to the records of the Company and as per the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, provident fund, 

Employee state insurance, Income Tax, sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of customs, duty of.excise, Value added 

tax, cess and any other Statutory dues as applicable to the appropriate authorities during the year. According 

to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable were in arrear as at 31st 

March,2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable save and except 

Professional tax of Rs. 2.85 (Rs in lacs). 

(b) According te the records of the Company, the dues outstanding {net of amount paid under dispute) of 

_ income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty on custom, duty of excise, value added tax and 

cess on account of any dispute, are as follows: 
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Name of the statute Nature of Amount (Rin Related Forum in which Dispute is Pending 

dues lacs) Year 

West Bengal Sales Tax “Assessed 414,263 2004- WBCT(A/R) Board 

Act,1994 Dues 2005 

Central Sales Tax Act,i956 Assessed 181,067 2004- WBCT(A/R) Board 

Dues 2005 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 | Assessed 1,634,285 1998- Registrar Maharashtra Sales Tax 

‘ Dues 1999 Tribunal, Mumbai 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 5,926,481 1999. Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Dues ' 2000 Tax(Appeal), Nagpur 

Bombay Sales Tax Act,1959 Assessed 1,044,631 2000- Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Dues 2001 Tax(Appeal)}, Nagpur 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 1,389,004 2000- Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Dues 2001 Tax(Appeal}, Nagpur 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 1,202,194 2001- Registrar Maharashtra Sales Tax 

Dues , 2002 Tribunal, Mumbai 

Bombay Sales Tax Act,1959 Assessed 949,067 2002- _ Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

» Dues 2003 Tax(Appeal), Nagpur 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 390,538 2002- Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Dues 2003 Tax(Appeal), Nagpur 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 62,70,042 2007- Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal, 

. Dues 2008 Nagpur 

Income Tax Act, 1961 . Assessed 8,10,246 2001- Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, 

: Dues 2002 Kolkata 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Assessed 45,63,861 2003- Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, 

Dues (Net of Advance 2004 Kolkata 

Tax} 

Others | 2,37,060 
Total 2,50,12,739 

vill, As per the information and explanation given to us the Company has not surrendered or disclosed 

any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) as income during the year. Hence comment on 

Paragraph 3(viii) of the said Order does not arise. 

ix. (a) As per information and explanation given to us the company has not defaulted in repayment of 

loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender except deferred sales 

‘ tax loan which is not moved since a long period. 

(b} . The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank, or financial institution or lender. 

Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(b} of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) The term loans taken by the company were applied for the purpose for which.thevlaans were 

obtained. Hence reporting under clause 3{ix)(c) of the Order is not applicab! 

(d) The company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. t der 

clause 3{ix}(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

nce repenting 
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{e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiary or associates during the year. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix}(e) of 

the Order is not applicable. 

(f) According to the informaiion and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 

report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiary or associate companies. 

x. (a)According to information and explanation given to us the Company has not raised any money by way 

of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments) during the year. Hence 

reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b)According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made any preferential 

allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 

convertible) during the year. Hence reporting under clause 3(x)}(b) of the Order is not applicable, 

xi. (a} According to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud 

by the Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been 

noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 4143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors 

in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with the 

Central Government, during the year. 

(c)No whistle blower complaints has been received by the company during the year (and upto the date 

of this report), hence comment under the said clause does not arise. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 

177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable and such transactions have been disclosed 

in the Standalone !nd AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 

Standards. 

xiv. (a} In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and 

the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 

during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

xv. To the best of our knowledge and belief and as per the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him. 

So, comment on clause 3(xv) of the said Order does not arise. 

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to obtain registration under section 45-14 of ¢ 

(b)The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing F 

year. Hence, reporting on clause 3(xvi} (bjof the Order is not applicable. 
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(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting on clause 3(xvi} (c)of the Order is not applicable. 

(d)According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not 

more than one CIC in the group. Hence, reporting on clause 3(xvi) (d)of the Order is not applicable. 

xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year covered by our audit and in the 

immediately preceding financial year. Hence, comment on clause 3{xvii) of the Order does not arise, 

xviii, There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the company during the year. Hence, comment 

on clause 3(viii) of the Order does not arise. 

xix, On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial flabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material 

uncertainty exists as oni the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities 

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year. from the 

balance sheet date; We however, state that this is not an assurance to the future viability of the 

company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 

and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 

one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall 

cue. 

xx. As the criteria mentioned in section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are below the threshold limit. 

Hence, compliance of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E 

oe OB _ 

Ancemniant 

Mo OSS892 : 

UDIN: 2505 3YALBMKUZT5S2IQ 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 29.05.2025 
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ANNEXURE ‘6’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

(Referred to Paragraph 2(f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even 

date). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED ("the 

Company") as of 31% March, 2025 in:conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of 

the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for internal Financiai Controls 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility ‘ 

Our responsibility is to express an gpinion an the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidarice Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the 

“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

‘to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial - 

Statements, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and their 

operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting with reference to Standalone ind AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material 

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 

the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of rnaterial misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to frau “Of 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro 

‘audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial rep 

standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

‘
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS 

financial statements 

A. company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS 

financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to 

these standalone Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that- 

(4) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the company; , 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 

company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these standalone 

Ind AS financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 

of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone ind AS 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contro! over financial 

reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in n all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating 

effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the interna! contro! over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 

Chartered Accountant 

Firm ICAI “J Pe 302113E 

UOIN: A505 399 BMKUZT 509 
Place: Kolkata 

Date: 24.05. 2025 
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hee; we ‘ j As At 
ASSETS Notes | 54 o3-9008 | 31.03.2024 

NON CURRENT ASSETS 

{a} Property, Plant and Equipment 2 6,868.32 6,932.25 

{b} Financial Assets 

{i} Investments 3{A) 7,124.32 6,855.89 

{ii} Trade Receivables 3(B) 50.11 50.11 

(ii) Other Financial Assets 3(C) 20.91 11.93 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets {Net} 4 - - 

(d) Other Non-Current Assets 5 13.49 93,33 

Total Non- Current Assets 14,077.15 13,943.54 

CURRENT ASSETS 

(a) inventories 6 25.63 27,35 

{b} Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 3(D} 185.29 198.82 

{ii} Cash & Cash Equivalents F(A} 128.83 48,36 

(iii) Bank balances other than {ii) above 7{B} 16.57 31.31 

(iv) Others Financial Assets 7(C} 206.43 9.55 

{c) Current Tax Asset (Net} 8 750.83 669.06 

{d} Other Current Assets 9 215.04 237.94 

Total Current Assets 1,528.62 1,222.39 

Total Assets 15,605.77 15,165.90 

‘ ear TET SE ReAUC AS AL 

| EQUIPCAND ABILITIES . Notes | 31.03.2028 | 31.03.2024 

EQUITY 

{a) Equity Share Capital 1O{A} 619,50 619,50 

(b} Other Equity 10(8) 13,346.67 12,450.77 

Total Equity 13,966.17 13,070.27 

LIABILITIES 

Non Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

{i} Borrowings 11{A) 853.43 925.47 

(ii}, Other Financial Liabilities - “ 

(b) Provisions 12 13.48 12.69 

{c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4 251,58 173.51 

Total Non- Current Liabilities 1,118.49 4,111.37 

Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 13 (A) 71.76 65.62 

(ii) Trade Payables 41(B) . - 

(A) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprise - - 

(B) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and 41.45 41.45 

Gi) Other Financial Liabilities 13(8) 15.07 23.65 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 14 388.01 849,23 

(c) Provisions a5 4.82 4.34 

Total Current Liabilities 521.11 984.26 

Total Liabilities 1,639.60 2,095.63 

Total Equity and Liabilities 15,605.77 15,165.90 

Material Accounting Policies & Other Notes 1&22 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the standalone indAS Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS For and on behalf of the Boardtof Directors 

Chartered Accountants ¥ \ 

ed 

Directors 



Rs. in Lakhs except EPS" 

De Bee For.the =|: . For-The 

2s Particulars. Notes | Year Ended |'Year Ended 

vtec eee o1334,03,2025 -| 31.03.2024 

1. Revenue from Operations “ - 

i, Other Income 16 1,316.49 2,095.46 

iil. Total Income (1 +11) 1,316.49 2,095.46 

IV. Expenses: 

Cost of Materials Consumed 17 1.72 3.58 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock in Trade and Work in - - 

Progress 

Employee Benefit Expenses 18 101.71 121.76 

Finance Costs 19 86.40 150.85 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 20 65.69 33.87 

Other Expenses 21 164,37 . 311.90 

iV. Total Expenses 419.89 621.96 

V. Profit/(Loss) before Tax {II-FV) 896.60 1,473.50 

VI. Tax Expense: 

1 Current Tax 199.78 177,60 

2 Tax for earlier years (Net) - - 

3 Deferred Tax 43.44 159.16 

Net Tax Expense (V1) 243,22 336.76 

VIl. Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (V-V}) 653,38 1,136.74 

Vili. Other Comprehensive Income for the period 

(A) (i} Item that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

~+Changes in Fair Valuation of Equity Instrument 278.60 53.74 

Net Gain/(Loss) on disposal of investments in Equity Shares - (0.24) 

—Remeasurement of Defined benefit Plans (1.46) (1.38) 

(ii} Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or (34.63) (0.05) 

Loss 

(B) (i) items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - - 

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss . - 

IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+Vill) 895.89 1,188.84 

Earnings per Equity Share: 22.7 

(4) Basic earning per Equity Share (Rs) 10.55 18,35 

(2} Diluted earning per Equity Share (Rs) 10.55 18.35 

Material Accounting Policies & Other Notes 1&22 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Reg, No.302113E 

Place : Kolkata 

Date : 29th May, 2025 



Rs in Lakhs. 
dee For-the::| °-For-the: 

"PARTICULARS. a | Year.Ended | Year Ended 
= Sic eenee areata a 31:03.2025 "| 31.03.2024 

ws CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES *: 

Profit before tax 896.60 1,473.50 

Profit before tax 896.60 1,473.50 

Adjustment for: 

Depreciation & Amortisation 65.69 33.87 

Interest Expense 86.40 150.85 

Interest Income (12.43) (83.59) 

Dividend Income (807.33)| (1,544.79)| 

Profit on sale of Investments {23.83} (7.36) 

Investments written off “ 1.14 

Provision for Dimunition in Investments - 5.48 

Profit on sale of Property Plant and Equipment - (10.04) 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 205.10 19.09 

Movements In Working Capital : 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables - (151.15} 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (470.21) (173.34) 

{Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 1.72 2.29 

{Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables 13,53 158.41 

{Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 22.85 385,19 

Cash Generated from/(used in) Operations (227.01) 240.49 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) (201.71) (740.63) 

Net Cash from Operating Activities (428.72) (500.14) 

: CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES + 

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.00 11.82 

Interest Received 15,84 16.26 

Dividend Received 807.33 1,544.79 

Movement of Advances (200.00) 8,212.60 

Purchase of Investments - (5,462.34) 

Sale of Investments 34.00 65.01 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {1,74)| (2,238.99) 

(increase)/Decrease in Bank Deposits 5.51 17.35 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 660.94 2,166.50 



CIN No.: L271 MATPLCOLS767 
Rs in Lakhs ) 

>). For.the | 2 --Forthe.” 
|-Near.Ended | Year Ended 

-| 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024. 

PARTICULARS. 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : 

(86.15) (125.77) Interest paid 

(514.64) Redemption of Preference Shares 

Repayment: 

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 

Proceeds of Long Term Borrowings 

(65.60)| (2,838.32) 
- 989.61 

(151.75)| (2,489.11) Net Cash from Financing Activities 

Net (Decrease}/ Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C} 80.47 (822.76) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 48,36 871.12 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 128.83 48,36 

Cash & Cash Equivalents : 

Balances with Bank 

Current Account 105.36 24,99 

Cash on Hand 23.47 23.37 

Total 128.83 48,36 

Note: 

(a) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/recasted wherever necessary. 

{b) The above cash flow has been prepared under "Indirect Method" as per Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows", as 

prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as notified under the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

FOR SALARPURIA & PARTNERS For and on behalf of the Boyrd of Directors 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Firm ICAI Reg. No.302113E 

neath trae! os, —~ 

OU Dovey 

Company Secretary &/CF 

Place : Kolkata 

Date : 29th May, 2025 Directors 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

fA} Equity Share Capital 

(4) Current reporting period Rs in Lokhs 

Balance at the beginning current ‘Changes In. Equity Share} .:: Restated balance at the beginning of the | ‘Changes in Equity Share Capital during the | Balance at the end of the 

Q reporting perlod =." “Capital due te prier period -gurrent reporting perlod |’ : ia “current year Sol e5 224) ‘clirent reporting period 

SST errors en Seen : “Reduction Ine} | tssued Cancelled cree peta 

2 Share Capita! on | during the | -durlng the 
“account of foc} cyear 2] years 
Amalgamation Sepa cae ae ee reas 

(Share Suspense 

= aa Account) © Rie : s 

619,50 - 619.50 - - - 619.50 

{2} Previous reporting period Rs in Lakhs 

Balance at the beginning previous "| Changes in Equity Share. “Restated balance at the beginning of the ‘Changes In Equity Share Capltal durlng the 4 ‘Balance at the end of the 

reporting perlod 2/1 Capital due'to prior perlod currant reporting period 2°22 222 e LTE: previous year. 007 previous reporting perlod 

aaa oon : errors rs : enorme rE Eana 2Reductlon In |p issued <2] " Cancelled as 
: “| Share Capital on | during the | during the 

“account of. year. “ysar 

Amalgamation oe 
--] (Share Suspense 

7 ~“Account) | ae 

619.50 - 619,50 - ~ 619,50 

(8) Other Equity Rs in Lakhs 

PARTICULARS 3° TPAD. RESERVES & SURPLUS OTHER COMPREHENSIVE :| ‘Total Other: 

Bee eR eee feces eee ELT pee uMcaMe on) Raul 
:Note | Securties.| RevalualGenoral -3 “Special Capilal -: Retained | Capital} Fal Value: ‘Remeasure |: S 
“No./Premium:) --tien :<) Reserve |: Capital: UReserve [2 Earings :: | Redemption} Gaini(Loss) | = mentof-- 
pout Surplus rn] incentive ene INE Reserve =} © on Equity.) “Defined 

mere & s Z Instruments } Benefit 

Balance as on 01,04.2023 138.41] 48.45] 1,722.02 30.00 461.79 | 4,517.31 4,002.80 - 371.84 (36.68) 11,261.93 

Profit for the year 2023-24 - - - - * 4,136.74 - - - 1,136.76 

Remeasurament of Net Defined (Liability) - . : - - - - - - {1.38) (1.38) 

{Asset 

Changes In Fair Value of Investment - - - - - - - * 53.74 - 53,74 

Net Gain/{Loss} on disposal of investments - - + - - : ~ - (0.21) - (0.21) 

in equity shares 

Transfer from General Reserve to Capital - - (600.00) + - - - 600,00 - - - 

Redemption Reserve 

Transfer from RBI Reserve Fund to - - - - {461.79} - 461,79 - ~ - - 

Retained Earnings 

Reclassification of gain on sale of FYTOCI . - - - - - 52.63 - {52.63}, a - 

equity instruments 

Tax Effect on Fair Value of Investment . . - - - - + - {0.05} - {0,05) 

Balance at 34st March, 2024 138.41] 48.45] 1,122.02 30.00 {0,00}; 4,517.31 5,653.96 600.00 372,68 (32.08) 12,450.77 

Profit for the year 2024-2025 - - - - . - 653,38 - - - $53.38 

Remeasurement of Wet Defined . - - - - - - - - (1,46) {1.46}: 

{Uability)/Asset 

Changes in Fair Value of Investment “ - - - - - + . 278,60 - 278,60 

Net Gain/(Loss) on disposal of investments - - - - - . - - - - . 

in equity shares 

Transfer from General Reserve to Capital - - - . - - - - - - - 

Redemption Reserve 

‘Transfer from RBI Reserve Fund to - s - - - - : - - - - 

Retained Earnings 

Reclassification of gain on sale of FVTOCI - - - - - “ 2.83 - (2.83) - - 

equity instruments {*} 

Tax Effect on Falr Valie of investment - - - - - - - - (34.63) - (34.63) 

Balance as at 31st March,2025 138,41 | 48.45; 1,122.02 30.00 {0.00)] 4,517.31 6,310.18 600.00 613,82 (33.52) 13,346.67 

* cumulative gain of Rs. 2.83 lakhs previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) has now been transferred to Retained Earnings on disposal of shares of Macnelll Electricats Limited, 

As per our report of even date 

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm ICAt Reg. No.2021136 

Place : Kolkata 

Date : 29th May, 2025 

oP Cae bE _ 

oh; 
TA _ rs, 

Company Secretary & CFO 

For and on behalf of the Boardjof Directars 

Directors 

mb me 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD on 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31.03.2025: 

NOTE 1 {A}: CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The Company {"Hindusthan Udyog Limited") is an existing public company incorporated on 3rd September, 1947 under the Indian 

Companies Act, and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at Trinity Plaza, 

3rd floor, 84/1A, Topsia Road (South), Kolkata - 700046. The manufacturing unit is located in Kolkata unit. The Equity Shares of 

the Company are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE") . The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees. 

NOTE 1 (8) : MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below. These 

accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

1) BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements of Hindusthan Udyog Ltd (“the Company”) comply in afl material aspects with Indian Accounting 

Standards (“Ind-AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2016 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognises income and expenditure on an accrual basis. 

The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except in case of significant uncertainties 

and except for the following: 

4 Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. 

2 Assets held for sale which are measured at lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell. 

3 Defined benefit plans where plan assets are measured at fair value. 

The financial statements for the year ended 3ist March, 2025 have been approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company In their meeting held on 29th May, 2025, 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle. An 

operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash 

equivalents. As set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, the normal operating cycle cannot be identified 

and hence it is assumed to have a duration of twelve menths. 

The financial staternents are presented In INR and ali values are rounded off to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000}, except 

when otherwise indicated. 

Use of Estimates and Management Judgement 

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India, management is 

required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 

contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenue and expenses during the 

reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to such estimates is recognised in the 

period in which the same is determined. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 
‘Notes to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31.03.2025 

Hu} Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net 

of returns, allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and services tax and amounts collected on behaif of third 

parties. The company recognizes revenue when the amount of Revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that 

future economic benefits will flaw to the company. 

1 Sales are recognised when significant risks , rewards and control are transferred to the buyer as per the contractual 

terms or on dispatch where such dispatch coincides with transfer of significant risks and rewards to the buyer. 

2. Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with reasonable 

accuracy and conditions precedent to claim our fulfilled. 

ii) Other Income: 

1 Interest Income on Financial Assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate 

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to 

the gross carrying amount of the Financial Asset. When calculating the effective Interest rate, the Company 

estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instruments. 

2 Dividends are recognized in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payments Is established, 

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of 

the dividend can be measured reliably. 

3 Profit/Loss on sale of Investments Is recognised on the contract date. 

4 Others: The Company recognizes other income (including rent and misc receipts} on accrual basis, However, where 

the ultimate collection of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue-recognition is postponed to the extent of 

uncertainty. 

{¥) Current versus Non -current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 

Expected to he realised or intended to be sold or consumed in Company's operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

+ Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current 

A liability is current when: 

It is expected to be settled in Company's operating cycle 

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

+ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting perlod 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and fiabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 

cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD © 
‘Notes ‘to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31.03.2025: 

vy) 

vi) 

vii} 

Non -current assets held for sale 

Non -current assets and disposal groups aré classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is 

intended to be recovered principally through a sale (rather than through continuing use) when the 

asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms 

that are usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal group) and the sale is highly probable 

an is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of 

classification. 

Non -current assets and disposal group classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount and fair 

value less costs to sell, 

investment Property 

Investment properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less 

any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Any gain or loss on disposal 

of investment property is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

property and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Transfer to, or from, investment property is done at the 

carrying amount of the property. 

intangible Asset 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in 

a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 

carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, 

excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure Is reflected In profit or loss in 

the period in which the expenditure Is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impalrment whenever 

there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method 

for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the 

expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied In the asset are 

considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 

estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives including Goodwill are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, 

either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine 

whether the Indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made 

on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised In the statement of profit or loss when the asset is 

derecognised. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD. 
Notes to Standalone. Financial Statement As At 31.03.2025, 

vitt) 

my) 

Foreign currency Transactions 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in India Rupee which is 

Hindusthan Udyog Limited's functional and presentation currency. 

a) On initial recognition, all foreign currency transaction are recorded at foreign exchange rate on the date of 

transaction. : 

b) Monetary items of currents assets and liabilities In foreign currency outstanding at the close of financial year are 

revalorised at the appropriate exchange rates prevailing at the close of the year. 

c) The gain or loss on decrease/increase in reporting currency due to fluctuation in foreign exchange rate, in case of 

monetary current assets and liabilities in foreign currency, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Financial Instruments 

All financial assets are recagnised on trade date when the purchase of a financial asset is under a contract whose term 

requires delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned. Financial assets are 

initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets which are classified as at fair value 

through profit or loss (FVTPL) at inception. Alf recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at 

either amortised cost or fair value. 

Classification of Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified as ‘equity instrument’ if it is a non-derivative and meets the definition of ‘equity’ for the 

issuer. All other non-derivative financial assets are ‘debt instruments’. 

Financial assets at amortised cost and the effective interest method 

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; 

and 

* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOGLTD.. 
Notes to Standalone. Financial Statement As At 31.03.2025. 

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment, with interest recognised on an 

effective yield basis in investment income. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest 

over the relevant period. The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts the astimated future cash receipts 

(including all fees on points pald or recelved that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and 

other premiums or discounts} through the expected life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate} a shorter period, 

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

The Company may irrevocably elect at initial recognition to classify a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost 

criterla above as at EVTPL if that designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch had the financial 

asset been measured at amortised cost. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments are measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective {s to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows 

and selling assets; and 

* The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs, They are subsequently 

measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income, 

except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest calculated using the effective interest 

method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in investment income. When the debt instrument ts 

derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive Income is reclassified to the 

statement of profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment. 

At initial recognition, an irrevocable election is made (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in 

equity instruments other than held for trading purpose at FVTOCL. 

A financial asset is held for trading if: 

* ithas been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or 

© on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together 

and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

* itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee. 

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they 

are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive 

income. Where the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the other comprehensive 

income is directly reclassified to retained earnings. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31,03,2025 2 

For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income no impairments are recognised in 

the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in investment 

income when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits 

associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be measured reltably. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria of classifying as amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive 

income described above, or that meet the criteria but the entity has chosen to designate as at FVTPL at initial recognition, 

are measured at FVTPL. 

Investments in equity Instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an investment that is not 

held for trading at FVTOCI at initial recognition, 

Financial assets classified at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value excluding transaction costs. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. ; 

Dividend income on investments in equity Instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in 

investment income when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic 

benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be measured refiably. 

Impairment of financial assets 

On initial recognition of the financial assets, a loss allowance for expected credit loss is recognised for debt instruments at 

amortised cost and FVFOCI. For debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance Is recognised in other 

comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset 

in the balance sheet. 

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument is measured in a way that reflects: 

* anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, 

* the time value of money; and 

® reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about 

past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly 

since initial recognition. 

When making the assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the 

reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and 

consider reasonable and supportable Information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that Is Indicative of 

significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 

if, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, 

the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit 

losses. If, the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company 

measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD = 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31,03,2025 

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is 

recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company 

Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of 

the contractual arrangement. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 

liabilities, Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Compound instruments 

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible instruments) issued by the Company are classified 

separately as financial liabilities and equity In accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. At the date 

of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for a similar non- 

convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability an an amortised cost basis using the effective interest 

method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date. The equity component is determined by 

deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This Is 

recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’. 

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at 

FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

* ithas been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together 

and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or 

¢ {tis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial Hability other than a financial lability held for trading may also be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 

recognition if: 

* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 

otherwise arise; or 

¢ the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial fiabilities or both, which is managed and 

its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management 

or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or 

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments 

permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL. 



HIND USTHAN UDYOG L TD. 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31. 03.2025 

x) 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss, except for the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that fs attributable 

to changes in the credit risk of that liability which is recognised in other comprehensive income. 

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profi t and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial lability. 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest 

expense recognised on an effective yield basis. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest 

expense over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

payments through the expected fife of the financial liability, or (where appropriate} a shorter period, to the net carrying 

amount on initial recognition. 

Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the fiability takes place either: 

1 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

2 in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Siability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or 

liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 

that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suffictent 

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 

the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 ~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest leval input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 

each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 

basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy 

as explained above. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 
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Xi) Contingent Assets 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

Xi} Employees Benefit Expenses 

a) Short Term Obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salartes, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 

employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 

when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance 

Sheet. 

b) Long Term Employee 8enefit Obligations 

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 

the period in which the employees rendered the related service. They are, therefore, measured at the present vaiue 

of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 

reporting period using the projected unit credit method, Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments 

and changes in the actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 

Under Ind AS, re-measurements of defined benefit plan are recognised in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding 

debit or credit to equity through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), Under Ind AS, an entity is permitted to 

transfer amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income within equity. The Company has taken recourse of the 

said provision and has transferred as at the date of transition to ind AS. 

XHl) Dividend 

Provision fs made for the amount of any final dividend declared, being appropriately authorised in the Annual General 

Meeting and no longer at the discretion of the Company. 

Interim Dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors, 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD. 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31,03,2025 : 

XIV) Leases 

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, 

measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet. 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 using the modifled retrospective method of adoption under the transitional 

provisions of the Standards, with the date of initial application on 1st April 2019. The Company also elected to use the 

recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and 

do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases}, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset Is of low value 

{low-value assets). 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the 

right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and 

leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 

representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is 

available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 

and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease 

liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less 

any lease Incentives received. Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease 

term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

lf ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the jease term or the cost reftects the exercise of 

a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (k) Impairment of non- 

financial assets. 

Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Cornpany recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease 

payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed 

payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts 

expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 

commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement 

date, the amount of lease liabilities fs increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments 

made. In addition, the carrying armaunt of tease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease 

a change in an index or rate used term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from 
ra ' an 
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to determine such jease payments} or a Change 1n tne assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company appifes the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment 

(i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a 

purchase option). |t also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of offices, godowns, 

equipment, etc. that are of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised 

as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Company as a lessor 

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as 

either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does nat have an impact 

for leases where the Company is the lessor. 

Leases in which the Company dees not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset 

are classified as operating leases, Renta! Income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. 

Inittal direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 

leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same hasis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as 

revenue in the period in which they are earned. 

Impairment of non-financial! assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset Is required, the Company estimates the asset’s 

recoverable ammount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value 

less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 

not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying 

amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to Its 

recoverable amount. : . 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

The Company bases Its impairment calculation on forecast catculations, which are prepared separately for each of the 

Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated, 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised 

impairment losses no Jonger exist or have decreased. if such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or 

CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 

assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 

reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the 

asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 
Notes to Standalone Financial StatementAs At 31.03.2025 

XVil) 

Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. 

Revenue and expenses are identified to segments on the basis of their refationship to the operating activities of the segment. 

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, are included under “Unallocated 

revenue/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities”. 

The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which customers of the Company are located. 

Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. In addition, the following specifte accounting 

policies have been followed for segment reporting: 

i} Segment revenue includes sales and other operational revenue directly identifiable with/allocable to the segment including inter 

segment revenue, 

ii) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allacable to segments are considered for determining the segment result. 

iii) Most of the centrally incurred costs are allocated to segments mainly on the basis of their respective expected segment revenue 

estimated at the beginning of the reported period, 

iv) income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in “unallocable corporate income/ 

(expenditure}(net)’. 

v) Segment result includes margins on inter-segment capital jobs, which are reduced in arriving at the profit before tax of the 

Company. 

vi) Segment result includes the finance costs incurred on interest bearing advances with corresponding credit included in “unallocable 

corporate income/(expenditure)(net), 

vil) Segment results have not been adjusted for the exceptional item attributable to the corresponding segment. The said exceptional 

item has been Included in “unallocable corporate income/(expenditure}(net}”. The corresponding segment assets have been carried 

under the respective segments without adjusting the exceptional item. 

viii} Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of transfer price which are 

elther determined to yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated basis. 

ix) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identiftable with the respective segments. Unallocable corporate assets and 

liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole. 

x} Segment non-cash expenses forming part of segment expenses includes the fair value of the employee stock options which js 

accounted as employee compensation cost [Note 1(r) supra] and is allocated to the segment. 

Business combination 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the 

aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any noncontrolling 

interests in the acquiree, For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the noncontrolling 

interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition- 

related costs are expensed as incurred, At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed 

are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. : ; 

Any business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the pooling of 

interest method: 

* The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 

* No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are 

made are to harmonise accounting policies. 
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“HINDUSTHAN. ub vos LNVATED: 
S testo Stondatone Fingneka Statement ALATA, a 202! 

sin Lakhs 

MIRE ae Pane Hine a No. of]. ‘As At No, of Shares | 30. 0As At: 

‘Note !3 FINANCIAL ASSETS 2.00000: Rie R SEC UPRTSSERLAE SUMED ES Shares :: 34,03.2026 |. DS [31 03.2024 Cy 

(A) INVESTMENTS 
fo} Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income 

{) investment in Equity Instrument (Quoted) 

1) Via Media India Limited - - 4,750 048 

Less: Written Off (0.18) 

2} Phosphate Co. Limited 1b578 17.89 41578 17.48 

3} Indorama Synthetics Limited - 300 0,12 

Less: Weitten Off 40.12) 

4) india Folls Umited - 400 0.03 

Less: Written Off (0.03) 

‘ + ~ 

5) Blue Coast Hotels timited 9,70,000 870.35 9,70,000 92.15 

6) Rellance Industries Limited - + og - 

7) Melead Russel {India} Lintited 150 6.03 156 0.03 

Less: Provision for Pimunition in Investment {150) 40.03) {159) (0,03) 

4) JK Synthetics Limited * 305 0.55 

Less: Written Off {0,55} 

9} LiVILUmited 5,000 5.40 5,160 8,20 

Less: Pravisian for Dimunition in investment 15.10) - (5.40) 

Less: Written Off - (100) (o.20} 

: 5,000 : 

Total {i} 388.24 109.63 

{i} favestment In Equity instrument (Ungquoted) 

1) Tamilnadu Alkaline Batteries Limited 8,090,000 8,03 8,090,000 8.03 

2) Macnelll flectricats Umlted 948 3.75 Est] 3.75 

tesst Sold during the year S18 (3.75) 

a) Neptune impex Pvt. Limited - 200 0.30 

Less: Written Off . {0.30} 

Total (ii) 8.03 41,78 

Total (a) 396.27 121.42 



Ais in Lakhs 

NER . No, of As Atco) NoJof Shares | AS ALS 
Note <3 FINANCIAL ASSETS Shares 91.03.2025 DSSS 91.08.2024 0) 

{b} Measured at Cost 

4 Associate 

{i investment in Equity instrument (Quoted) 

1} WPIL Limited 4,03,66,590 5,819.82 40,36,659 5,819.82 

2} Asutosh Enterprises timited 8,09,450 20.89 8,09,450 20.89 

3} Bengal Steel industries Limited 18,638,155, 56.58 18,68,251 56.58 

Less: Sold duritig lhe year 40,17) 

18,62,651 56.41 

di) Investment Ja Equity tnstrument (Unquated) 

1) Spaans Babcock India mite 45,000 450 45,000 4.50 

2} Hindusthan Parsons Limited 32,45,000 114.29 32,45,000 414.29 

3} HS. M. International Pvt. Limited 3,02,500 6.25 3,02,500 6.25 

tess: Sold during the year (3,02, 500} (6.25) 

Ht, Subsidiary 

Of Investment fh Equity instrument {Unquoted) 

Bharat Of! & Chemical Industries Uinited 6,00,000 12.00 6,00,000 42.00 

{Ill} Investment in Govt, Securities (NSC) 0.85 015 

(rv) Investment In Debentures 

Via Media India Lemited Lis 0.07 

Less: Written Off {0.07} 

Total {b} 6,028.06 6,034.48 

{c) Meosured at fair value through Profit and toss 

G) investment tn Preference Shares 

VN Enterprises Limited 7,00,008 700.00 7, 90,08 700,00 

Total (cf 700.00 708.00 
Total father) 7,124.32 6,855.89 

AS At 32,03,2025 As At 31.03.2024 

Cast Market Value Cost Market Value 

Aggregate value of Quoted Investments. 6,001.85 4,75,317.87 6,062.01]  1,38,064.14 

Aggregate vaiue of Unquoted investments 133,76 1,277.34 140,93 1,221.32 



Accounting Policy: 

Trade recelyables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed fn the ordinary course of business, Hf the receivable [s expected ta be 

collected within a period of 12 months or less fram the reporting date {or in the normal operating cycle of phe business, if longez), they are classHied as current 

assets otherwise as non-current assets, 

Trade receivables are measured Initially at (alr value, and subsequently at amortised cost using effective interest methed, fess proviston for Fmpatrment. 

Loss allowance for expected life time credit loss is recognised on Initial recognition. 

Ais in hakbs 

Particulars - Sis ALE As At oc: 

noes es 34,03,2026 | 34.09.2024 ("} 
cece sae 

At amortised cost 

Unsecured, considered good, unless stated athervise * 50,12 50.31 

Trade Recelvables Considered Good - Unsecured 50.11 50,42 

Trade Recelvables which have significant Increase in credit risk - - 
Less Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Debts : - 

Total 50.11 3014 

Ageing of Trade receivables - Non- current outstanding as at 34 Morch, 2025 Is as follows ? 

SAE e : : 5 “Outstanding far following periods from due date of payment: 

Particulars : : on PELE ae re Jess than 6:4 6.months-lyear |. t-pecrs (2) 2-2 Syears | Mare thon 3 Total 
re EEE : paresis ame ES Snentis esa ED So caveats 4 : 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good . : - SO.11 50.4 

+ Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have signifleant increase In Credit Risk . - “ : 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired - - * - 
Disputed Trade Recelvables —- Considered Good - - . . 

+ Disauted Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in Credit Risk - - : . 

-Disputed Trade Recelvables - Credit Impaired : - - . 

Less :Allowances for bad and doubtful debts - . - + 

Fatal i : is 5011 80,11 

Agelag of Trade receivables - Non-current outstonding as at 34 March, 2024 js as foltows * 

: Tanne : Tee Moe 2 ut Outstonding for following periods from due date of payment 

fess thon 6 1-6 months-Jyear |“. d-2years ° years More than 3 | Foto} = 

months” SOSSEB BES poses “years 0 2 

+ Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - . 50414 Soil 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase In Credit Risk - - - -| 

- Undisputed Trade Recelvables - Credit Impaired - - - : 

- Disputed Trade Receivables  - Considered Good . - - + 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in Credit Risk . ” - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit jmpatred . - - - 

Less :Alfowances for bad and doubtful debts : - . - 

Tojat = z bd £Q,11 50.14 

* Receivables are from H.S.M, International Private Limited (a related party} Rs. 50.11 Lakhs {P.¥.: Rs.50.11 takhs) 
sin Lakhs 

SAS At: (€) OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 
4,03.2034 ("} 

Security Depasits 

Deposits with banks having original maturity of more than 12 months (*) 

Prepatd Processing Fees 

Toto! Other Non Current Financial Assets 

* Kept as margin money against Bank guarantees NIL (PY. Rs. 7.23 Lakhs). 



31.02.2025. 

NOTE: 3(D) TRADE RECEIVABLES °= CURRENT 

Accounting Policy: 

Trade receivables are armounts due fram customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If the recelvable is expected to be 

collected within a period of 12 months or less from the reporting date (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), they are classified as current assets 

otherwise as non-current assets. 

Trade receivables are measured initially at fair value, and subsequently at amortisad cost using effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 

Loss allowance for expected fife time credit loss is recognised on initial recognition. 
Rs in Lakhs 

a ae SE As At 222) SUAS ALS 

Particwers.: 91,03.2025 | 31.03.2024 

At Amortised Cost 

Unsecured, Considered Good, unless stated oiherwise* 185.29 198.82 

Trade Receivables Considered Good - Unsecured 185.29 198,82 

Trade Receivables which have Significant Increase in Credit Risk - - 

Less :Allowances for Bad end Doubtful Debts - - 

Total 185.29 198.82 

* The company filed a lawsuit against Mahanadi Coalfields Ltd. For recovery of Rs. 91.93 lakhs at Cuttack High court for which no 

Ageing of Trade receivables - current outstanding as at 31 March, 2025 fs as follows : Rs in Lakhs 

oParticulars ees one TUE SSS “Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment “Total: 

: ae 6 Months - | More than, Hae 
4 Year. “3 Years 

- Undisputed Trade Recelvables - Considered Good - 185.29 185.29 

- Undisputed Trade Recelvables - which have Significant increase in Credit Risk - - . 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - “ - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - which have Significant Incrasae In Credit Risk - - 7 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - 

Less : Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Debts - - - 

Total - 185,29 185,29 

Ageing of Trade receivables - current outstanding as at 31 March, 2024 is as follows: Ais in Lakhs 

“Particulars 2005 : Renee eee for following periods from due date of payment 2 -|:°-Total 

are : 6 Months - More than © [2500 
4 Year: 3 Years 22: 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good 13.53 185.29 198.82 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have Significant Incresae in Credit Risk - - - 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - 

~ Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - which have Significant Incresae in Credit Risk - - . 

~ Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - 

Less : Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Debts - - - 

Total 13.53 485.29 198.82 



Accounting Polley: 

The Income tax expense or credit for the pettod §s the tax payable on current period's taxable income based on the applicable Income tax rates for the 

jurisdiction, 

Current tax and deffered tax are recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other 

comprehensive income. 

Current Income Tex 

The current income tax Is calculated on the basts of the tax faws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period In the countries whare the 

Company operates and generates taxable income. Management evaluales periodically positions taken with respect to situations in which applicable tax 

regulations fs sublect to interpretation, It establishes provisions, wherever appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be pald to the tax authoritfes, 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax fs provided using the tlability methed on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and fiabilities and their carrying amounts for 

financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except, when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of 

goodwill or an asset ov Habllity In a transaction that [s net 2 business combination and, at the time af the tyansaction, affects nelther the accauniing profit nor 

taxable profit or loss, 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax fosses. Deferred tax 

assets are recognised ta the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 

forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except, when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductibte temporary difference arfses 

from the initlat recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that 1s hot a business combination anc, at the time of the transaction, affects nelther the 

accounting profit nor taxable profit ar lass, 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets fs reviewed at each reporting date and redticed to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 

profit will be avalfable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and 

are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply Inthe year when the asset Is realised or the ltabillty ts settled, based 

on tax rates {and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to Items recognised outside profit or foss is recognised outside profit or loss (either In other comprehensive Income or in equity). 

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation ta the underlying transaction elther in OC] or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists te set off current tax assets agalnst current tax Ifabilitles end the 

deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately of together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses: 

the approach that better predicts the resolutian of the uncertainty. The Company applies sigafficant Judgement in identifying uncertaintles aver incame tax 

treatments, 

Rs fn Lakhs 

oc Partioulars 26500 BASSE AIST HE ; aie woke ‘As At. As At 
Tat SS 7 pete fone 94.03.2025. 63,2024 () 

Deffered Tax Asset / (Ltabllity} {251.58}; (473,54) 

Total {251.58} (273.511) 

‘A- Movement In deferred Tax bolances |”: SCO AS AL: <]--" Recognized =] Recognized Inj AS AL 
oe Me . ; : 34,03,2024 () pea coe SOL p91 03,2025 

COM Brofit & Loss: Be : _ 

Deferred Tax Liability 173.53 - - - 

Impact of difference 3n Depreciation/Amortization on Property, Plant and 43.44 

Equipment 
‘Other Timing Differences - 34.63 - 

Net Deferred Tax Uability - - - 251,58 



THAN UDVOG LIMITED 

B: Reconcitlation of Income Tax Expenses For The For The ‘Year } 9 -For-Tha::-[.0-For The. 

a . Popp ion nt Year Ended oSEnded ): ‘Near Ended =): Year Ended 

34.03,2028 (') |-34.03,2025 () 4 31.03.2024 .()) $1,03.2024 (() 

Accounting Profit 896.60 896.60 1,473.50 1473.50 

less: profit relating to capital gain disclosed separately 23,83 7.36 
872.77 1,466.15 

Tan (C¥ - 27.82%, PY- 29.1296) 242.81 426,94 

Non deductible expenses 19.30 12.45 

Beductible expenses (65,54) (58.46) 

Brought Forward losses (210.19) 

196.60 170,73 

‘fax effect of income on which different tax rates are used for determining - 3.18 * 6.87 

Taxable Profit 

Income Tax Expense Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss for the 199.78 177.60 

current year * 

* Net of MAT Credit Entitlement of Rs NIL{PY Rs, 79.85 fakhs} 

Tenpadicunmel Waiiemmy ie As Al) ] AS AL 
‘Note + § OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS: 34.09,2026 -:) 37,03,.2024 {} 

Advances other than Capital Advances: 
~ Security Deposits 2,02 2.02 

Others: 

Mat Credit Entitlement ("} M47 91.31 

Total 13,49 93.33 

+ MAT Credit Entitlement has been set off during current year. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
<wotes £0 Stondalone Financial Statement Aas ar 31. 03,2025, 

Accounting Policy: 

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of finished goods and work in progress Includes raw materials, direct labour, other 

direct costs and related production overheads, Costs of inventories Inelude the transfer from equity any galns/iosses en qualifying cash flow hedges for 

purchases of raw materials. 

Cost Is determined using the FIFO for Kolkata Unit, However, the sate cost basis Is applied to all Inventories of a particular class. Inventories of stares and 

spare parts are valued at welghted average cost basis after providing for cost of obsolescence and other anticlpated losses, wherever considered necessary. 

However, materials and other supplies held for use in the praduction of inventories {finished goods, work-in-progress} are not written down betow the cost if 

the finished products In whieh they will be used are expected to sell at or belaw the cost. 

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sate, 

As Jaigkhs 

Particulars ASAD ‘AS AL 
34,03,2026 : 91.03.2024 () } 

Raw Materfal 

Tools & Implements 

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated) 

Total 

2047 

5.16 

25,63 

20,47 

SBR 

27,35 



Note :.7(A) CASH AND.CASH EQUIVALENT 

Accounting Policy: 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 

original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as 

defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash 

management. 

Rs in Lakhs 

ee eee SAS AL bo CAS ALCS 
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 

Balances with Bank 

—In Current Account* 105.36 24,99 

Cash on Hand 23.47 23.37 

Total 128,383 48,36 

* The balance of Rs. 0.54 Lakhs is subject to confirmation. 

: citar os PLE Hy OAs At : ‘As At a 

Note : 7(BJOTHER BANK BALANCES “34.03.2025. |. 31.03.2024 

Deposits with Original Maturity of more than 3 Months and within 12 Months* 16.57 31.31 

16.57 31.31 

*Kept as Margin Money against Bank guarantees NIL (Previous Year Rs, 12.54 Lakhs). 

Jeng See Sonn UST Ss UES Ca) As At: oo As Ate 
Note: 7(C) OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS ca: 34 03 2025 37.03 2024" 

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit with Bank 1.76 5.17 

Prepaid Processing Fees 0.25 0.25 

Accrued Interest on NSC 0.14 0,14 

Other Advances(*)}{#) 204.28 3.99 

206.43 9.55 Total 

lakhs) 

*Acvance given to Bharath Gil and Chemical Industries Limited (Subsidiary) of Rs. 4.28 lakhs (Previous Year:- Rs. 3.99 

# Advance given to V N Enterprises Limited (a related party) of Rs. 200 lakhs (Previous Year: - Rs. Nil} 



Rs in Lakhs 
SSE nn “=a eres 

Note : 8 CURRENT TAX ASSET (NET). atos oes | 31032024 | 

Advance payment of Income Tax (Net) 750.83 669.06 

Total 750.83 669.06 

BS eR Ee SOAS AL Po CAs At 
Note 12. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS. 31.03.2025 | . 31.03.2024 

Advances other than capital advances: 

- Advances to Staff (Unsecured- Considered Good) 0.15 0.00 

- Advances to Others* 182.80 203.90 

- Security Deposit 0.49 0.49 

- Prepaid Expenses 1.87 1.29 

Others: - 

- GST Receivable 29.73 32.27 

Total 215.04 237.94 

*Includes Advance to supplier 

Advance given to H.S.M. International Private Limited (a related party) of Rs. Nil (Previous Year: - Rs. 20.50 Lakhs) 



its in Lakhs 

; > os As At As Al 
: EQUITY Si . ef ceck 4 

NOTE 20 (a) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 34.03.2026 31.03.2024 

{A) Equity Share Capital 

Authorised Shares 

§,89,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each 5,895.00 3,895.00 

60,00,000 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each 600.00 660.00 

Issued, Subscrlbed & Pald-Up Shares 

61,94,996 Equity Shares of’ 10/- each, fully paid 619.50 619.50 

Total 619,50 619.50 

a. Reconeillation of shares outstending at the beginning & at the end of the reporting pertod Rs in Lakhs 

Equity Shares 23.8 002 : HAS SuEN “Mos. Sas At Nes, SAB ALLS 
ee : ae : : 34.03.2025 34.03.2024 

At the beginning of the period 61,994,896 619,50 61,94,996 619.50 

Issued during the pertod - - 

Cancelled during tha perlod : : 

Qutstanding at the end of the period 61,94,996 639,50 61,94,996 619.50 

b. Terms/Aights attached ta Equity Shares 

The Company has one Class of Shares Issued, Equity Shares having a par value of" 10/- each, Each Equity Shareholder js eligible for 

‘one yote per share held.the dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend, in the event of liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eligible to 

receive the assets of the Company after distribution of al! preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding, 

. . The Company doas not have any Holding Company, ultimate Holding Company . 

J. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Shares in the Company 

Partleutars 2300200 ES ene eiceen TUTE os at 31,08 2025 » Sec As at 34.03,2024 

Nos. 224 °% Holding “in % Holding 
a the Clasé- “In the Class 

Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each 

1.V.N, Enterprises Limited 17,488,785 28.23 47,48,785 28,23 

2. Poonam Jhaver . 6,385,000 11,06 

3, Aditiya Jhaver 6,85,000 11,06 - - 

4, Abhimanyu Jhaver 367,333 5.93 3,067,333 5.93 

5, Bangal Steel industries Limited G,78,238 40.55 678,238 10.95 

6, Asutosh Enterprises Limited 545,775 3.84 545,775 8.81 

7, Prakash Agarwal &,60,537 13.89 8,80,537 13.89 



HINDUSTHAN UDVOG LIMITED : 
Noles io Standalone Fiunclal Statement AS At 31.02.2025 

"Rain Lakhs 

As At cvAS At 
31,.03,2026 © [31.03.2024 

@, “Shareholding ‘of Promaters 

VN, Enterprises Limited 

- No. of shares 17,58,785 47,48,785 

~% of holding 28,23 28,23 

-% change during the year * - - 

Bengal Stee! Industrles timlted 

- No, of shares. 678,238 6,783,238 

= % of holding 10,95 10.95 

~% change during the year * - + 

Asutash Enterprises itmited 

+ No, of shares 5,45,775, 545,775 

+ % of holding B81 B81 

~% change during the year * - - 

HSM International Private Limited 

- No, of shares. 1,495,553 145,558 

-% of holding 2.35 2.35 

~% change during the year * - . 

HSM Investments Limited 

-No. of shares 4,40,279 140,279 

-% of holding 2.26 2.26 

-% change during the year * - - 

Macnelll Electricals timited 

-No. of shares 12,777 12,777 

+ % of holding 0.21 0.24 

~% change during the year * NIL NIL 

Revox Enterprises Private Limited 

+No, of shares 107 107 

+ % of hoiding - - 

-% change during the year * NIL NIL 

Prakash Agarwal 

-No, of shares 8,606,537 8,60,537 

- % of boiding 13.89 43,89 

-% change during the year * - . 

* % change during the year has baen computed on the basis of number of shares held at the beginning of the year. 

f. No Shares reserved for issue under options and contract/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment Including the terms and 

amounts. 

For the perlod of five years Immediately preceding the date as at the Balance Sheet is prepared: co 

7,50,121 shares have been alloted as fully paid up pursuant te contract{s} without payment being received in cash during the 

Financial Year 2021-22 on account of Amalgamation. 

No Shares have bean alloted as fully paid up by way of Bonus Shares. 

No Shares has been bought back by the Company. 
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NOTE 11; FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (NON CURRENT) 

(A) BORROWINGS - 
Accounting Policy: 

Borrowings are Initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost, Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs} and the redemption amount Is recognised in profit or loss over the 

perlod of the borrowing using the effective interest method, Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised at transaction 

costs of the loan to the extent it Is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, In the case, the fee is deferred until the 

draw down occurs. To the extent there 's no evidence that it Is probable that seme or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee Is 

capttalised as a repayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates, 

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract Is discharged, cancelled or expired, The 

difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished of transferred to another party and the 

consideration pald, including any non-cash assets transferred or Habilitles assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit and foss as 

other galns/(losses}. 

Borrowings are classifled as current financial fabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Hability for 

at feast 12 months after the reporting period. Where there Is a breach of a material provision of a fong-term joan arrangement on or 

before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes repayable on demand on the reporting date, the entitiy 

does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements 

for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 
As in Lokhs 

[3 Partioulars nce ees a SE TAS AEG Poe SOAS AL: 
ae bi eee Pu 34.03.2026 =| 31,03,2024 

Secured 

Deferred Sales Tax Loan 117 1.47 

Term Loan{*} 

From Banks 924.62 989,62 

less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings {Refer Note 13{A)} {71.76) (65.62) 

‘ 852.26 324.00 

Total 853.43 925.17 

{*) Terms of Repayment of Property Lean fram ICIC! Bank 

To be paid in 120 equal monthly instalments in 10 years. 

Interest Rate: 9.00% p.a. 

Non residential {commercial} property loan taken from ICIC! Bank has been secured against property acquired by the Company against 

such loan. 



NOTE: 11/8} TRADE PAYABLES “= CURRENT. 

Accounting Policy: 

Trade Payables are liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. They are 

initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

oe Outstanding, Jor following Berlods from. due date of payment : 

Rs in Lakhs 

Dodie OOASAL | Ts As Aty lars ai : SE, 
Parteners 31.03.2025. | 34,03.2024 

At Amortised Cost 

Trade Payables 

*Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Smail Enterprises 0.00 0.00 

*Tota! outstanding dues of Creditors Other Than Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises* 41,45 41.45 

Total 41.45 41.45 

Ageing of Trade pa ables - current outstanding as as at 31 March, 2025 is as follows : 

Particulars eae Boerne _ Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total. oe : 

: : __ payment = ee eee 

Less ‘than .|4-2Years |: 2-3-Yea = ‘ore than, 7 
“year m3 nue <3 Years 

~-MSME * _ - - - - 

- Other creditors ” 3.12 0.34 37.99 41.45 

- Disputed dues - MSME * - ~ - - - 

- Disputed dues - Others ‘- - - - * 

Total - 3.12 0.34 37.99 41,45 

Ageing of Trade payables - current outstanding a as at 31 March, 2024 is as follows : 

Particulars: : Total 

‘Tess than 1 1-2 years” 2 3 years: More than 3 

2 year | eho pen years 

-MSME * - - - “ - 

- Other creditors 3,22 0.34 1.92 36.07 41.45 

- Disputed dues - MSME * - - : - : 

- Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 

Total 3.12 0,34 1.92 36.07 41.45 

* MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 



[ Note : 12 :NON CURRENT.PROVISIONS «. ; “rh Saree eran : MAIN Bert ISIES j 

Accounting Policy: 

A provision is recognised if 

() the business has present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; 

(0) itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation; and 

(1) the ammount of obligation has been rellably estimated 

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the 

reporting perlod, If the effect of time value of money is material , provisions are discounted to reflect Its current value using & current pre- 

tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When 

discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost. 

Warranty provisions 

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised on the basis of product sold or service provided to the customer. Initial recognition is 

based on historical experience and management's decision based on technical advice. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is 

revised annually. 

Gnerous contracts 

{f the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract Is recognised and measured as a provision. 

However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract Is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has 

occurred on assets dedicated to that cantract. 

‘An onerous contract is @ contract under which the unavoidable costs {1¢., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the 

contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, The unavoidable 

costs under @ contract reflect the least net cost of exiting fram the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any 

compensation or penalties arising from falture to fulfil It. 

Retirement and other Employee Benefits 

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation Schemes are defined contribution schemes. The Company has no 

obligation, other than the contribution payable ta the respective funds. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident 

fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. 

Gratuity liability is funded defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of actuarlal valuation dene on projected unit credit 

methed at the end of each reporting period. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on 

the net defined benefit lability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit 

liability}, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with @ corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other 

comprehensWwe income In the peried in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or lass in subsequent periods, 

Current and non-current classification is based on the actuarial valuation report. 

‘The Company treats accumulated leaves expected to be carrled forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for 

measurement purposes, Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit 

credit method at the end of each financial year. The Cormpany presents the leave as current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent It 

does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement beyond 12 months after the reporting date. 

Where the Company has unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for the period beyond 12 months, the same Is 

presented as non-current liabiiity, Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. 

Particulars 9.0 02. nn Sy ee of S pe Tee Po Ss At CASAL: 
“s : SUSE UST : SEER PAP OEEAUS 34.03,2025 ° {31.03.2024 = 

For Employee Benefits: - - 

— Provision for Gratuity {Refer Note 22.11} 3.41 $46 

~ Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note 22.11} 0,99 1.07 

Others: 

- Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 3.47 3.47 

Total 13.48 12.70 



AL 1-03.2025 
As in Lakhs 

NOTE 13; FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT) A z Abn 5 a a ; 

{A} BORROWINGS 

Secured 

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings {Refer Note No. 1A) TL 76 65,62 

Totat 7176 5,62 

NOTE 13: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT) - As A ap as Ne : 

{8} OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

interest accrued but not due on Term Loan 469 4.95 

Payable to Employees 7.63 7.43 

Bank Sook Overdraft : B52 

Other Payables 2.75 275 

Total 15.07 23,65 

Note :14, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES reer a 

Advanee From Others * 370,00 770.00 

Other Payables 6.36 5.96 

Deposits From Contractors 4.59 4.99 

Provident Fund 0.48 0.42 

Tax Deducted At Source 3.32 64,99 

Professlonal Tax 2.86 2,86 

Total 388,01 849,23 

* includes from Bengal Steel Industries tid (Associate) Rs. Ni PY:-Rs. 400 Lakhs } 



Rs in Lokhs : 

[es Saas [OAs At AS AL 
Note 2:25. CURRENT PROVISIONS era ‘37.03.2026 34.08.2024. 

For Employee Benefits: 

— Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 22.11} 433 3.76 

— Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer note 22.14} 0.49 0.55 

Total 4.82 4.31 



it gteme t for the Year Ended 31,0 
Rs in Lakhs 

ees . a : For The.” “se: For-The 

‘Note: 16 OTHER INCOME. Year Ended: | Year Ended 

: As CAREERS 34 03,2025 24 31:03.2024- 

{a) interest Income 

~ Of Preference Share amortised through FVTPL . 68.29 

(b) Dividend Income - - 

-Dividend from Quoted Equity Shares - 0,13 

— Dividend from Associate Company 807.33 1,544.66 

(c) Other Non Operating income - - 

— Income From Fixed Deposit 12.43 15.30 

— Rent 447.36 278.09 

— Profit on sale of Investments 23.83 7.36 

— Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 10.01 

— Liabilities written back * - 168.57 

- Miscellaneous Receipts ** 25.54 3.06 

Total 1,316.49 2,095.46 

* This inludes Provision for Doubtful Debts of Rs. Nil (PY Rs. 44.46 Lakhs) written back on account of Bad debts. 

** This includes refund of excess balance in electronic cash ledger in Nagpur unit of 22.32 lakhs in current year. 



nded 31.03.2025. 

Rs in Lakhs 

Note : 17-COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED & OTHER MANUFACTURING ExpENSES | FOrThe | Forthe — 
UES a ae emma emanates ee ce Sieh EOE " Year.Ended...| -Year Ended. 

: ae ; “31.03.2025 - 231,03,2024 

Raw Material Consumed - 1.10 

Stores Consumed 1.72 2,48 

Total {*) 4.72 3.58 
* Devaluation of Inventory for Stores Consumed 

se : For The. For The. 
Note :.48- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES « “Year Ended | :| Year Ended: 
PLES ee ee mae : 91.03.2026 © [31.03.2024 : 

Salary, Wages, Bonus & Allowances * 87.87 104.37 

Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity, ES! & Other Fund {refer note 23.11) 5.28 13.80 

Staff Welfare Expenses 8.56 3.59 

Total 101.71 121.76 

* Includes Director's Remuneration of Rs. 36.00 Lakhs (P.Y.- Rs. 40,50 Lakhs) 

gs ge “=! For The soe] © For The. 
Note: 19 FINANCE COSTS. = YearEnded | Year Ended 
eo 81.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 ° 

{A} interest - - 

{i) Interest cost on Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost 

— on borrowings from banks 86.15 125.14 

— on MSME dues - 0.63 

(B) Other Borrowing Cost 

— processing fees * 0.25 19.55 

—on preference shares calculated as per Effective Interest Method - 5.52 

Total 86.40 150.85 

* The Processing Fees is amortised throughout the tenure of the Loan taken from ICICI Bank. 



Rsintakhs — 

ee “"Forthe = |. For The: 
Note 20. DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION. EXPENSE : »Year Ended Year Ended .. 
ee eee : TELS SEES ai 31.03.2025 31.03.2024. 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment (Refer Note 2} 65,69 33.87 

Total 65.69 33.87 

ee ee ea FornThe. |e “ForThe 
Note: 21 OTHER EXPENSES |) ae “Year Ended’. | “Year Ended. 

foes Eee ee ee 31.03.2025. °°] 31.03.2024 

Component Processing Expense - 24,72 

Selling & Distribution Expenses - - 

Advertisement & Sales Promotion 0.39 0.36 

Rates & Taxes 23.95 20.29 

Repairs & Maintenance - - 

Repairs to Plant & Machinery - 1.19 

Repairs to Factory Building 3.22 3.04 

Repairs to Others Assets 34.86 21.22 

Travelling Expenses - - 

Inland Travelling 10,35 9.24 

Foreign Travelling 3.30 - 

Auditors’ Remuneration 

- Audit Fees 2.75 2.75 

- Tax Audit Fees 0.35 0.25 

- Certification/Limited Review Fees 2.46 2.95 

- Special Purpose Audit Fees - 6.50 

Legal & Professional 0.01 5,86 

Director Meeting Fees 0.29 0.27 

Security/Service Charges 23.81 16.24 

Liquidated Damages 0.24 2.38 

Electricity Charges 5.26 1.46 

Rent 9.16 9,16 

Bank Charges 1,59 0.42 

Bad Debts - 78.88 

Vehicle Maintenance 12.58 3.69 

Sundry Balances Written Off * “ 76.03 

Insurance 1.41 2.49 

Listing Fees 3.25 3,25 

Loss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation - 0.74 

Investments Written off - 1.14 

Provision for Doubtful Investments - 5.48 

Donation & Subscription 3.87 2.59 

Miscetlaneous Expenses 21,33 9.31 

Total 164,37 311.90 

* Bank Balances amounting to Rs. Nil (PY Rs. 4.34 Lakhs) written off on account of dormant bank accounts. 



Note: 22 NOTES 

22.4 Contingent Liabilities 

Accounting Policy: 

Contingent Ilabilities are disclosed when there Is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which wil! be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contro! of the Company, or a present obligation that arises from 

past events where If is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation o7 a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 

made, 

Following are the contingent liabilities of the Company as at the year end: 

a} Letters of Guarantee outstanding as at 34.03.2025 Is Nil {Previous Year - 19.77 lakhs} against which Fixed Deposit of * 95.53 Lakhs kept as margin. 

b} Claim not acknowledged as debts: - Disputed demand for Sales Tax * 131,32 Lakhs (Previous Year ~ > 131.32 Lakhs) appealed against. 

c) VAT Case filled for the year 2007-08 of Rs 62.70 Lakhs (Previous Year - ‘62.70 Lakhs } 

d) Contingent Liabilities In respect of Income Tax matter under appeal Rs. 56.11 Lakhs {net of advance tax} (Previous Year - * 284.28 Lakhs}. 

e} Contingent Liabillttes In respect of Goods and Services Tax matter under appeal Rs. 2.85 Lakhs (Previous Year - NH). 

22.2. Related Party Transactions: 

Related Party disclosures as required under Ind AS 24 on “Related Party Disclosures "as certified by the management, are given below: 

4} Relationship: 

Key Managerial Personnel (KVIP) & their Relatives 

a} Mr. V.N. Agarwal ‘ : Olrector 

b) Mr Gopal Krishna Agarwal Executive Director (whole-time} 

c) Mr. Prakash Agarwal Director - Son of Mr. V.N, Agarwal 

d) Ms. Kiran Darutlia Independent Director 

e}) Mr. Bal Krishna Mawandia Director 

f) Mr. Sanjib Kumar Roychowdhury Director 

g)} Ms,Shikha Bajaj Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer 

V.N. Enterprise Limited (Enterprise Having Significant influence} 

Macneill Electricals Limited (MEL}(Director having significant influence} 

HSM Investments Limited (Director having significant influence} 

Subsidiary Company 

Bharath Oil and Chemical industries Limited 

Associate Company 

WPIL Limited (WPIL) 

Spaans Babcock Indla Limited 

Asutosh Enterprises Limited 

Bengal Stee! Industries Limited 

Hindusthan Parsons Limited 

H.S, M. International Private Limited (ceased to be an associate w.e.f, 19/11/2024) 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOGLIMITED = : : 
NOTES FORMING. PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. FOR. THE vean ENDED BIST ARCH, 202 

Rs in Lakhs 

Sundry Debtors 50.44 
(50.12) 

i). Details of transe ctlons. bet ween the Company aad Related Parties, for the year ended 31st March, 2025, ore given below: 

: H.S) MA Enterprise| Macreill Electricals WPIL KMP.:. 

International |] <--Llmited “31/] 2) Limited see : 
Private Limited we ae a 

Sales & Services . - 
{100,44} 

Purchases - 

(136.17) 

bividend Receipts 807.33 

{1,544,66} 

Rent Receipts 3.12 442.92 

(3.12) (273.65) 

Amenities Recelved 4.63 

(4.46) 

Sale of Investments 34.00* 

Redemption of Preference Shares Issued - 

(600,00) 

Managerial Remuneration - Mr. V.N. Agarwal - 

{22,50) 

Executive Director remuneration- Mr G K Agarwal 36.00 

(18.00) 

Remuneration paid to Campany Secretary - Ms.Shikha Baja} 18.29 

(16.94) 

Directors Sitting Fees 0.29 

(0.27) 

** Flaures In bracket reflect previous year balance 

*nvestments in HSM International Private Limited and Macneil! Electricals Limited amounting to Rs 30.25 Lakhs and Rs, 3.75 Lakhs respectively was 

soid to Mr. Prakash Agarwal (Director), 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED: : : Be 
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR RTHE YEAR ENDED BIST MARCH, 2025 

22.3 

22.4 

22.5 

Details of Advances Given and Received During the year from Related Parties 

Rs in Lokhs 

cel Name 2] Transactions AS AES TAS ALS 

: ae 31.03.2026 (*) | 34.03.2024 (") 

VAN, Enterprises Limited Opening Salance receivable - 7,897.10 

Further Given 225,00 200,00 

Advance Refunded 25.00 8,097,10 

Closing Balance receivable 200.08 - 

Bharath Ol! and Chemical industries Limited Opening Balance receivable 3.95 3.58 

Advance Given 0.29 O41 

Advance Refunded * - 

Closing Balance receivable 4,28 3,99 

Macneill Electricals Limited Opening Balance recelvable - 305.50 

Advance Given - 10,00 

Advance Refunded - 315,50 

Closing Balance receivable . - 

H. 5. M. Internatlonal Private Limited Opening Balance receivable 20,50 19,76 

Advance Given 0.50 0.74 

Advance Refunded 21.00 - 

Closing Balance receivable - 20,50 

Asutosh Enterprises Ltd Opening Balance - - 

Advance taken : 443,00 

Advance Refunded - 343.00 

Closing Balance - - 

Bengal Steel tncustries Ltd ‘Opening Balance 400.00 - 

Advance taken 0.06 400,00 

Advance Refunded 400.06 - 

Closing Balance ” 400,00 

Hindusthan Parsons Limited Opening Balance - 

Advance given 375.00 - 

Advance Refunded 375,00 : 

Closing Batance - : 

1. All the related party contracts/arrangements/transactlons during the financial year were in the ordinary course of the business of the Company, 

and on arms‘ length basis 

2. The amount of outstanding balances as shown above are unsecured, and will be settled/recovered In cash. 

Segment Reporting 

The aperation of the Company relates to Single Primary Business Segment (Discontinued Operaticn) le. Engineering {Steel Castings & Alloys}, Accordingly, 

there Is no primary business segment. 

Considering the external and internal impairment indicators, the management is of the opinion that no asset has been Impaired as at 31st March, 2025. 

Consequently, no impairment loss has been tecognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss far the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

The advance is given to V N Enterprises itd for the purchase of Block of investment. 



“HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED — : LO 
“NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3187. 

22.6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

{i} Financial instruments by category 
Rs In Lakhs 

2 Particulars : JASAGS As ALS 

: : 2} 34,03,2028 (*) | 31:03.2024 ("). 

A. [Financial Assets 

1. [Measured at fair value through other comprehenstve income {FVTOCI} 

Investments 396.27 421,41 

4. [Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

Investments 700,00 700.00 

Hl, | Measured at Amartised Cost 

Investments. 6,028.05 6,034.48 

Trade Receivables 235.40 248.93, 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 428,83 48.36 

Bank balances other than above 16.57 31.31 

Other Financia! Assets 227.34 21.48 

8B. | Financial Lichilities 

L | Measured at Amortised Cost 

Borrowings 925.19 990.79 

Trade Payables 41.45 4145 

Other Financial Liabilities 15.07 23.65 

(Wy This sectlon explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and 

measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which the fair values are disclosed in the financial statements, To provide an 

indication about the refiablfity of the inputs used In determining fair value, the entity has classified Its financial instruments into 3 levels prescribed under 

the accounting standard, 

Level 1; Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured quoted prices 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximize the 

use of observable market data and rely as little es possible on entity - specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to feir value an instrument are 

observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the Instrument fs included in level 3. 

Hs In Lakhs 

Particwlars Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income {FYTOC) 

As at 34st March 2025 

investments 396,27 988.24 - 8,03 

Asat 34st March 2024 

Investments 121.44 409.63 - 11.78 

Measured at amortised cost for which fair vatue Is disclosed 

As at 31st March 2025 

Deferred Sales Tax Loan 117 - - 117 

Asat 81st March 2024 

Deferred Saies Tax Loan 447 - - Li7 



“HINDUSTHANUDYOG LIMITED. 
NOTES FORMING PART OF STi 

22.7 Earnings Per Share 

22.8 

0) 

fil) 

Accounting Polley: 

Baic Earnings Per Share is caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss of the period attributable te equity shareholders by the Weighted average number of 

equity shares oustanding during the perlod. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's Earnings Per Share is the net profit or loss for the period, The 

weighted average number of equity shares oustanding during the period and all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than 

the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the 

purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or lass for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the welghted average number of 

shares outstanding during the period Is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shaves, 

Particulars 2024-2025 | 2023-2024 
(A) Earnings available for Equity Shareholder {Rs in Lakhs} 

(B) Face Value per share (Rs) 

{C) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 

{5} Earnings Per Share (basic/diluted) (A/C) 

653.38: 1,136.74 

10.00 10.00 

61,94,996' 61,94,996 

20.55] > 18.35) 

Additional Regulatory information 

The Title Deeds of all the immovable properties held by the company as on 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 are In the name of the 

company, other than immovable Property disclosed below: 

Relevant fine Item in Deseription of item of. uGross carrylng ©] Title deeds held in the name of 2.3: /- Whether title deed : 
pene pee : } holder isa promoter, 

Property held “| Reason for not. 

‘since which: | being hald in ‘the Balance sheet - = property. eee walue 208 
: MOE ON : Bee :} director or relative of fi date 20 the name of: 

promoter/dlrector ar | : “the company 
s employee af i 

‘promoter/director. 

PPE Building 364.55 Neptune Exports Limited NA 01-04-2019 | Acquired on 

{in lakhs) (Transferor Company which account of 

amalgamated with the Company} amalamation 

with effect frorn 01,04,2019) and isin 
process of 
registration 

The company has no such transactions with company struck off under section 248 of the Companie Act, 2013 ar Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THEY 

(ii) The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Restziction on number of layers) Rules, 2017. 

liv) The accounting software used by the Company to maintain Its Books of account have a feature of recording audit trail (edit lag) facility and the same has 

been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software as also in data base maintained with respect thereta, 

{v) Keys Ratios: 

Ratios [Numerator "| Denominator ’'|2024-25 | 2023-24600 °° |Percentage. “Reason for Variance. 

= : US SDEESS : ced eee CESS of Variance a : : ; 

Current Ratio (in times} Current Assets Current 2.93 1.25 134,31%|Due to increase in advances 

Liabilities given/refunded to related 

party. 

Debt - Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder's 0.07 0.68 -12.61%|Due to repayment of loan 

Equity taken from ICICI bank 

Debt - Service Coverage Ratio} Earning available for Debt Services - 5.30 0.44 1104.36%|Due to repayment of loan 

{DSCR) {in times} debt service interest taken from Axis Finance 

payments & Limited 

Principal 

Repayments 

Return on Equity Ratio (%) Net Profit after Taxes - | Average 483%! 9.11% -46,94%iDue to higher profits in 

Preference Dividend (if [Shareholders previous year which included 

any) Equity higher dividend received from 

an associate company. 

inventory Turnover Ratio (in| Cost of goods sold or | Average - 6.85 -100,00%|Due to Revenue from 

times) Sales Inventory operation pertaining te 

discontinued operation in 

previous year 

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio] Net Credit Sales Average - 0.60 -100,00%| Due to Revenue from 

(in times) Accounts operation pertaining to 

Receivable discontinued operation in 

previous year 

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio] Net Credit purchases | Average - 0.01 -100,00%|Due to Nil Purchases during 

{in times) Accounts the year 

Payable 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio {in| Net Sales Average - 0.04 -100,00%}Due to Revenue from 

times) Working Capital operation pertaining to 

discontinued operation In 

previous year 

Net Profit Ratio (%) Net Profit Net Sales - - 0.00%|Due to Nil Revenue from 

Operations 

Return an Capital Employed (%) | Earning befere interest! Capital 0.10 0.19 44.77%|Bue to higher profits In 

and taxes Employed previous year which included 

higher dividend received from 

an associate company. 

Return on Investment 

(a) Quoted Income generated Fund Invested 254,14% -B,64% 3041.44%|Due to fluctuation in market 

from Invested fund price. 

(b) Unquoted Income generated Fund invested -31.83% -2.48%| 100.00%|Due to sale of Investment 

from Invested fund during the year. 

{c} Associate Dividend Fund Invested 13.87% 26.54% -47.73%|Due to purchase of 

investments of WPIL Ltd in 

the previous year, 

22.9 As per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at Jeast 2% of the Average net profit made during 

three immediately preceding financial years. Since the Average Net Profit of the Company, during the sald period, is below the limit of section 135, sa the 

company did net spend any amount in Corporate Social Responsibility activitles during the current financial year. 

22,10 Other Additional Regulatory Information not stated here, as these are not applicable to the Company. 



-HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
es tothe Standolane Financial Statements f veal 

22,11 Disclosures as required under indian Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefits" 

A. Defined Benefit Plan 

The Company has unfunded scheme for payment of gratuity to all eligible employees calculated at specified number of days of last drawn 

salary depending upon tenure of service for each year of completed service subject to minimum five years of service payable at the time of 

separation upon superannuation or on exit otherwise. 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded 

status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the Post - retirement benefit plans . 

‘ Rs in Lakhs 

PARTICULARS 31.03.202 

Leave 20. Gratuity Gratuity : : Leave 

‘Encashment “| - Encashment’ 

1, Change in the Defined Benefit Obligation : oan wes 

- Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning 12,22 | > - 46,92 | er 2.98 | 

- Current Service Cost “0.80 ; 0.86 | OLE Pe 0.23. 

- Interest Expense or Cost 0.85 . Lat | oe Ody Sees 02) 

- Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from: : . - DDR EE OE Se 

change in demographic assumptions oe . ESE a 

change in financial assumptions 0.48 O17 fon: -0.03 : 20,02 

experience varlance "9,98 2B Pe 046 0.29 

~ Past Service Cost : ee . Ha 

- Effect of change in foreign exchange rates - Ue CUR an oa 

- Benefits paid (1.60) (8.15) 40.99) 2 (2,02) 

- Acquisitions Adjustment - = oe Sua 

- Effect of business combinations or disposals - ; _ rere iors eters = 

+ Present Value of Obligation as at the end 13.74 12,22 |e LBB ee Ld 

2. Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss 

- Current Service Cost 0.80 | . 0.86 SNOT | oe O13. 

- Interest Expense or Cost ; 0,85 1,21 : O11) soe O21 

- Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from: : = irene te epee 

change in demographic assumptions vm . ” wb * SOR SE 

change in financial assumptions Oe . = e083 20,02 

experience variance fe aan E046 SEE 29 

- Past Service Cost _ — ae en eee one 

- Effect of change in foreign exchange rates - we SMS SS 

- Acquisitions Adjustment - ran S ea (Mon 

« Effect of business combinations or disposals a po Barer : BOEDSS 

Total 1.66 2.07 S076 | 0,65 | 

3. Other Comprehensive Income 

- Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from: 

change in demographic assumptions - le 

change in financial assumptions 048) - O17 | TEN A Les 

experience variance “10,98 1.21 SVS Ses 

Total 1.46 1.38 [oe Be eer EE 

4, Actuarial Assumptions 

{a} Financial Assumptions 

Discount rate p.a 

Salary growth rate p.a 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To The Members of Hindusthan Udyog Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Consclidated ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Hindusthan Udyog Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Parent Company”), and its associates and subsidiary {the Parent Company and its 

subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 

2025, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the consolidated 

statement of changes in equity and the consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to 

the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

{n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 

consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information 

of the subsidiary of the Holding Company and associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 

and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 

affairs of the Company, and its associates and subsidiary as at March 31, 2025, of consolidated profit including 

other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then 

ended on that date. 

i} Include the annual financial results of the following entities: - 

EntityName = Relationship 

Hindusthan Udyog Limited Parent Company 

Bharath Oil And Chemical Industries Limited Subsidiary Company 

Asutosh Enterprises Limited, Associate Company 

Bengal Steel Industries Limited Associate Company 

Hindusthan Parsons Limited Associate Company 

HSM Internationa! Private Limited Associate Company (ceased to be an associate w.e.f. 

19.11.2024) 

WPIL Limited Associate Company 

Spaans Babcock India Limited ‘ Associate Company 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our 

report. We are independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there nder,.and_we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Co; c 

that the atidit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fore 

the consolidated financial statements. 
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We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Financial Statements: 

(a). Note No. 2 to the Financial Statements which describes that no provision for amortization has been made 

for long term Leasehold Land at Durgapur. 

(b) The company filed a lawsuit against Mahanadi Coalfields Ltd. For recovery of Rs. 91.93 lakhs at Cuttack 

High court for which no provision has been made in the accounts (refer Note 3(d) of Consolidated financial 

statements}. 

(c} As the company’s business activities fall mainly within a single primary business segment viz. 

Engineering (Steel Castings & Alloys); there are no operations under this segment. Refer Note No. 22.3 

of consolidated financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 

the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended: March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed 

in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. We 

have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included 

the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

The Key Audit Matter How was the matter addressed in our audit 

Assessment of litigation and contingent liabilities and their related disclosures (refer note 22.1 to the 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements) ; 

As at 31st March, 2025 Company has 

exposure towards litigations related to 

Direct Tax and Indirect Tax. The 

Company’s management performs an 

assessment of pending litigations and 

mixed decision thereof. As the ultimate 

outcome of the matters are uncertain and” 

the positions taken are based on 

application of the best judgement 

including those relating to interpretation 

of laws/regulations and company’s status 

to bear such litigation related to Direct 

Tax and Indirect Tax, it is considered to be 

as the Key Audit Matter. 

Our procedures included the following: 

® Tested the design and Implementation of internal 

control over the quantification of the estimates used 

as well as the operating effectiveness of such control, 

e Discussed with Company’s tax/legal team, the recent 

developments and status of the material litigations 

matters relating to Direct Tax and Indirect Tax which 

were reviewed and noted by Management. 

e Assess the adequacy of the company’s disclosure. 

e Based on the above work performed, Company's 

tax/legal team’s assessment in respect of litigations 

related to Direct Tax and Indirect Tax and related 

disclosures under contingent liability in the financial 

statements are considered to be reasonable. 
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information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, and Shareholder’s 

Information, but does not include the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. : 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS 

Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statement. 

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated 

ind AS financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act} that give a true and 

_ fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive 

income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group including its associates and 

subsidiary in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 

2015,.as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies and of its associates and subsidiary are 

responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 

"fee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements -by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the company and of 

its associates and subsidiary entity are responsible for assessing the ability of Company and of its associates and 

subsidiary to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the company and of its associates and subsidiary are responsible for 

overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company and of its associates and subsidiary. 
4 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements - 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that a it. Conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemep 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could rea! 

influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial: 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contro. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Parent company has adequate internal financial controls system with 

reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company, its associate’s and subsidiary’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 

related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and its associates and subsidiary to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 

activities within the Company and its associates and subsidiary to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 

financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the 

independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have 

been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit. and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements régarding independence, and to communicate with them ail relationships and other matters that may - 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025 and are therefore the Key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's réport. unless:law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circum ‘ 

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequey 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

of'doing sa ‘would
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Other Matters 

(a) The consolidated financial results include the unaudited financial result of 01 (one) Subsidiary for the year 

ended March 31, 2025, as certified by the management whose total asset of Rs. 101.95 lakhs for the 

above-mentioned year. 

(b) The consolidated financial statements include the audited financial statements of 02 (two) associates, 

audited by other auditors whose financial information reflect Parent company’s share of total net profit 

after tax of Rs. 119.58 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2025, and share of total comprehensive income 

of Rs. 119.58 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial 

statements. ; 

{c) The consolidated financial statements also include the unaudited financial result of 03 (three} associate, 

certified by the management, whose financial information reflect Parent company's share of total net 

profit after tax of Rs’ 75.21 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2025, and share of total comprehensive 

income of Rs. 75.21 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial 

statements. These financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management 

and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 

disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of 

the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial 

information. : 

Our opinion cn the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the - 

reports of the other auditors and the financial information provided by the Management, 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. With respect to the matters specified In clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor's 

Report} Order, 2020 (“CARO”’/ “the Order’) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the 

Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the 

auditors of respective compatiies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting under CARO 

is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that there are no qualifications or 

- adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said respective companies included in the 

consolidated financial statements. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other 

auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the branch and subsidiary, as 

noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

‘belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements. ‘ 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 

consolidated ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appear: from fe) amination of those 

books and the reports of the other auditors. 
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(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the 

purpose of preparation of the Consolidated tnd AS financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended; 

(e}) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st 

(f) 

March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory 

auditors of its associates and subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the 

company, its associate companies, its subsidiary company incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st 

March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act, 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure —A”. 

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:In our 

opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 

Parent Company to Its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 

of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Consolidated ind 

AS Financial Statements — Refer Note 22.1 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. 

(ii) The Group and its associates and subsidiary did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts. . 

(iii) There was no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and. Protection 

Fund by the Holding Company. 

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 

from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 

in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in-writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 

iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

‘Ultimate Beneficlaries. | : 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

- material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company | from any 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoevel 

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, securit 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances,‘ nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 

contain any material misstatement. 

(v} The Parent has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final dividend 

for the year. 

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by respective auditors 

of the associates, which are the companies Incorporated in India whose financial statements have 

been audited under the Act, the company, associates, have used an accounting software for 

maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail facility (edit log) and 

the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature 

being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Group and its associate 

companies incorporated in India as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

For Salarpuria & Partners’ 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E 

UDIN: 25053991 BM KU ZK LR24 

Place : Kolkata 

Date: 29.05.2025 . 
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) 

(Referred to Paragraph 2(f) of Report on Other. Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date to 

the members of Hindusthan Udyog Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2025) 

in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year 

ended 31st March, 2025, we have ‘audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hindusthan 

Udyog Limited (“the Parent Company”) and its associates and subsidiary. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent Company, its Associates and subsidiary are responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the interna! financial control over financial 

reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with 

reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 

’ Note") and the Standards on Auditing, and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and 

if such controls operated effectively in all material raspects, 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial‘ reporting with reference to these consolidated ind AS financial statements and 

their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 

these consolidated Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgment, including the, assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting | 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

sig far our audit 
ference;to these
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financia! control over financial reporting with 

reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 

_ the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 

of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of financial statements in ‘accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 

and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 

of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting 

with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree-of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Parent Company, its Associates and subsidiary has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st 

March, 2025 based on the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 

Other Matters 
. 

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to 6 Associate companies and 1 Subsidiary Company, 

which are companies incorporated in India, ‘is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such company 

incorporated in India. 

For Salarpuria & Partners: 

Chartered Accountants 

_ Firm ICAI Regn. No. 302113E 

UDIN: 2505 399 LBMKUZK A 22a4 

Place: Kolkata. 

Date: 29.05.2025 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG Livi TED : : : : 
‘CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET As AT 31ST MARCH 2025 a 

‘CIN No.: L27120WB1947P1C015767. . 
Rs in Lakhs 

: ; As At CASALL: 
ASSETS - Notes) 54.93.2025 | _31,03.2024 | 

NOW CURRENT ASSETS 

{a} Property, Plant and Equipment 2(A) 6,886.02 6,948.95 

({b} Capital Work in Progress 2{B) 78.56 78.16 

{c} Financial Assets 

{} investments 3{A) 60,498.57 54,889.62 

{ii} Trade Receivables 3(B) 50.11 50.11 

{iii} Other Financial Assets 3(C) 241 42.13 

(d) Deferred Fax Assets (Net) 4 - - 

{e) Other Non-Current Assets 5 18.49 98,34 

Total Non- Current Assets 67,552.86 62,078,314 

CURRENT ASSETS 

{a} inventories 6 25.63 27.35 

{b} Financial Assets 

{i) Trada Receivables 3(D} 185.29 198,82 

{i} Cash & Cash Equivalents HA} 129.02 48.55 

{ii}, | Bank balances other than (ii) above 7(B) 16.57 31.31 

(iv) Others Financial Assets 7(C) 206.43 9.55 

(c} Current Tax Asset (Net} 8 750.83 669,06 

(d) Other Current Assets 9 211.09 234,37 

Tatal Current Assets 1,524.86 1,219.01 

Total Assets 69,077.72 63,297.32 

: AS Atl: SOAS At 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Notes} -34 499995 | 31.03.2024 

EQUITY 

(a) Equity Share Capital 10(A} 619.50 619.50 

{b) Other Equity 40(B) 66,780.95 60,544.53 

{c) _ Non-Controlling interests 20.04 20,01 

Total Equity 67,420.46 61,184.04 

LIABILITIES 

Non Current Lioblilties 

{a)  Financlal Liabilities 

{i} Borrowings 11{A) 853,43 925.17 

{i} Other Financial Liabilities 114{C) 21,70 2441 

(o} Provisions 12 13.48 12.69 

(c} Deferred Tax abilities (Net) 4 251,58 473.51 

Total Non- Current Liabilities 1,140.19 4,132.78 

Current Liabilities 

{a} Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 13{A) 7176 65.62 

(ii) Trade Payables 11{B} - > 

Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprise - - 

Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises 

and Small Enterprise 41.45 41.45 

{iif}, Other Financial Liabilities 13{B} 45.07 23.65 

{b) Other Current Liabilities 14 383,97 845,47 

{c}_ Provisions 15 4,82 4.31 

Total Current Liabilities 517,07 980,50 

Total Liabilities 1,657.26 2,413.28 

Total Equity and Liabilities 69,077.72 63,297.32 

Material Accounting Policies & Other Notes 1& 22 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS —_ and on tee of the Board of Pirectors 

Chartered Accountants an eT PESC Class 
Firm ICAI R [tn C ets 

Campany Secretary 

Place : Kolkata 

Date ; 29th May, 2025 Directors 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED _ 
iS LIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS | ony THE YEAR NDED 31ST MARCH 025 

CIN No.: 127120WB1947PLCO1E767, 
fs. in Lakhs except EPS 

PEERS ES Sree eens J Moa . UALS Agee Forthe:°) °\For-the 

“Particulars 2008008 8, oe an noe Note | Year Ended | YearEnded 

eee ae ee ) 34.03.2025 '| 31.03.2024 

|. Revenue from Operations - 

Il. Other Income 16 508.28 550.80 

HL. Total income {f +H) 508.28 550,80 

IV. Expenses: 

Cost of Materials Consumed 17 1.72 3.58 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock in Trade and Work in Progress - - 

Employee Benefit Expenses 18 101.71 121.76 

Finance Costs 19 86.40 450.85 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 20 65.69 33.87 

Other Expenses 21 164.37 311.90 

iV. Total Expenses 419,89 621.96 

Vy.  Profit/(Loss) before Tax and share of profit of associates (Ill - IV) 88,39 (71,16) 

VI. Share of profit/(loss) of an associate 5,651.19 18,598.37 

Vi. Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V +VI} 5,739.58 | 18,527.21 

Vil. Tax Expense: 

41. Current Tax 199.78 177,60 

2. Tax for earlier years (Net) - - 

3 Deferred Tax 43.44 159.16 

Net Current Tax (VIE) 243.22 336.76 

1X. Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (VII-VII} 5,496.36 | 18,190.45 

X. Other Comprehensive Income for the period 

(A) (i) Item that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

Changes in Fair Valuation of Equity Instrument 278.60 53.74 

Net Gain/{Loss} on disposal of investments in Equity Shares - (0.21) 

Remeasurement of Defined benefit Plans (1.46) (1.38) 

Share of OC! of Associates 497,55 246,27 

{il} Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (34.63} (0.05) 

{B) (i} Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 7 - 

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - - 

XI. Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X} 6,236.42 18,488.82 

Earnings per Equity Share: 22.7 

(1) Basic earning per Equity Share (Rs} 88.72 293.63 

{2) Diluted earning per Equity Share (Rs) : 88,72 293.63 

Material Accounting Policies & Other Notes 1&22 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated ind AS Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS For and on pny of the Boar 

Chartered A Na 30248 
Card (Ems = 

— eg sca) 

a itere Bayo Sates 
Company Secretary cro 

Place : Kolkata 

Date ; 29th May, 2025 Directors 



~ Rs in Lakhs 
‘. oS --For the. For the ©: 

PARTICULARS - Year Ended ||. Year Ended 
acess Bena 31.03.2025 © |: 31.03.2024 

‘A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before tax 5,739.58 18,527.21 

Adjustment for : 

Depreciation & Amortisation 65.69 33.87 

Profit from Associate Companies {5,651.19} (18,598.37) 

Interest Expense 86.40 150.85 

Interest Income (12.43) (83.59) 

Profit on sale of Property Plant and Equipment - (10.01) 

Profit on sale of Investments (22,95) (7.36) 

Investments written off - 1.14 

Provision for Dimunition in Investments “ 5.48 

Dividend Income - (0.13) 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 205.10 19.09 

Movements In Working Capital : 

increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables - (151.15) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (470,21) (176.92) 

(increase}/ Decrease in inventories 1.72 2.30 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables 13.53 158.41 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 23.25 389.20 

Cash Generated from/{used in) Operations (226.61) ‘240.93 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) (201,71) {740.63} 

Net Cash from Operating Activities (428.32) (499.70) 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES : 

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.00 11.82 

Interest Received 15.84 16.26 

Capital work in progress (0.40) (0.44) 

Dividend Received 807.33 1,544.79 

Movement of Advances {200.00} 8,212.60 

Purchase of Investments - (5,462.34) 

Sale of Investments 34.00 65.01 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.74) (2,238.99) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Bank Deposits 5.51 17.35 

Net Cash from investing Activities 660.54 2,166.06 



CIN No.: 27121 
Rsin Lakhs 

“PARTICULARS For the. |“) -Forthe. 

eos ~YearEnded | Year Ended 
Sgt nah Sue a Si fe ee 4 03.2025 . 34°03.2024 | 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES } = 

Interest paid (86.15) (125.77) 

. (514.64) Redemption of Preference Shares 

Repayment: 

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 

Proceeds of Long Term Borrowings 

Net Cash from Financing Activities 

(65.60)| (2,838.32) 
- 989.61 

(451.75)} — (2,489,11) 

Net (Decrease)/ increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 80.47 (822.76) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 48.55 871.314 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 129.02 48.55 

Cash & Cash Equivalents : 

Balances with Bank 

Current Account 105.53 25.16 

Cash on Hand 23.49 23.39 

Total 129.02 48.55 

Note : 

(a) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/recasted wherever necessary. 

(b) The above cash flow has been prepared under "Indirect Method" as per Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows", as 

prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as notified under the Companies (indian 

Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

FOR SALARPURIA & PARTNERS For and on behalf of the Boasd of Directors 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm ICAI Reg. No.302213E — 

ua ken, > Boo 

Company Secretary & CF 

Place : Kolkata 

Date : 29th May, 2025 Directors 



‘HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
‘Statement of Changes in Equity 

{A} Equity Share Capttat 

{1} Current reperting period 
Rs in Lakhs 

Balance at the beginning current reporting} Changes In Equity Share =! Restated balance at the beginning of the °: | Changes In Equity Share Capital during Balance at the ead of the current -- 

period || oon a Capital due to prior period |:. = “ol eumvent reporting perlod 2705055 2" the current year : 2 eporting perdod 00000 

: : vee HOS oon vas Pye ope coche 09) Reduction [issued T Cancelled fo aes 
: : Mas 2 dn Share | ‘during the -| “during the 

Capital.on [-year 00). )-year 

account of : fits 

Amalgamatl 
‘on (Share © ‘ 

“Suspense 

° a : we Account} | ov 

§19.50 - 619,50 - : - 619.50 

{2} Previous reporting period 
Ris in Lokhs 

Balance at the beginning previaus | Changes In Equity Share --| . Restated balance at the beginning of the | Changes In Equity Share Capital during |. Balance at the end of the previous "| 

“reposting pertod “s4] Capital due to prlor period | cen current reporting period ep ls the previous year.” = reporting perlod : 

: WOES errors arias we Reduction { issued Cancelled on : . 

ae “| iin Share << during the |: during the 

27 SCapitaton foo year.. | 2 Syear 
[account of Bh aoe 

“| Amalgamadl |-: 
on {Share 

Suspense 

_ : . - Account) pee 

619.50 - 619.50 - - 619.50 

(8) Other Equity 
&s in Lakhs 

PARTICULARS | * i RESERVES & SURPLUS ae OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME «| Total Other 

we : Note | Secures [Revatua] Genaral.| Special -[" Re! =] Capital | Retained |: Capital «| “Fair Vale [Remaasure]. Share off -:: Faulty : 
No, } “Premium tion |. -Reserve -| ‘Capital | Reserve | “Reserve .|°-Eamings.: | Redemption| Gain/(Loss) } “mant of :.|.OCI of 

penne Surptus | 5.2 incentive .| °° Fund Specereaiies betas Reserve | "on Equity. “Defined “| Associates 
: 2 B oo bee “| Instruments ] - Benefit 

a Plans 

Balance as on 04.04.2023 498.41 | 48.45] 1,722.02 30,00 461,79 4,565.31 | 34,996.51 : 371.84 (30.67) (247,96) 42,055.71 

Profit for the year 2023-2024 - - - - - - (407.93} - - - {407,93} 

Profit fram Associate Company - - - - 7 - 18,598.37 - - . 246,27 18,844.64 

Remeasurement of Wet Defined) : - - - - * - - - (4,38) - (1.38) 

(Liability}/Asset 

Changes In Fair Value of Investment - . - - - - + - 53.74 - ~ 53.74 

Net Galn/{Loss} on disposal of investments - - - - - - - - (0.24) ~ - {0.21} 

in equity shares 

‘transfer from General Reserve to Capital - . {600.00} - - - - 690,00 - - - - 

Redemption Reserve 

Transfer from RBi Reserve Fund to - - ~ - (461.79) - 461,79 - - - - + 

Retained Earnings 

Reclassification of gain on sale of FYTOCI “ - - 7 - - 52.63 - (52.63) - - 6,00 

equity instruments 

Tax Effect on Fair Value of Investment - . - : - - - - (0,05) - - {0.05} 

Balance at 3ist March, 2024 138.425 48.45 1,122.02 30,00 {0.00)} 4,555.84); 53,701.37 600.00 372.68 (32.05) (1.69) 60,544.53 

Profit for the year 2024-2025 - - ~ > . . {454,83) : - - {454,83} 

Profit from Associate Company - - - - - ~ 5,651.49 - - - 497,53 6,148,74 

Remeasurement of Net Defined - : - - - - - . - (1.465) - (1.46) 

(Liabllity)/Asset 
Changes in Falr Value of Investment . > : - - - - - 278.60 - . 278,60 

Net Gain/{Loss) en disposal of investments - - - - - - - - - - . - 

in equity shares 

Transfer from General Reserve to Capital . - . - - - - ~ . - - . 

Redemption Reserva 

Transfer from RBI Reserve Fund to - * - - - - - - - . - . 

Retained Earnings 

Reclassification of galy on sale of FYTOCI - + : - . - 2.83 - (2.83) - “ - 

equity Instruments {7} 

Tax Effect on Fair Value of investment - - - - - - * - (34.63} - - {34,83} 

Balance as at 31st March,2025 138.41] 48.45 4,122.02 30,00 (0.00}] 4,565.91 | 59,200.57 600,00 613.82 (33.54) 455.86 66,780.95 

* cumulative gain of Rs, 2.83 lakhs previously recognized In Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) has now been transferred to Retained Earnings on disposal of shares of Macneill Electricals Limited, 

As per our report of even date 

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS For and on Kehalf of the Boary of Directors 

Chartered Accountants ‘ ——» 

Firm fi 
ra é. Kapp SPOON 

4 
Company Secretary cro 

Place : Kolkata 

Date + 29th May, 2025 Directors 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement As At 31.03.2025, 

NOTE 1 (A) : CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The Company ("Hindusthan Udyog Limited") is an existing public company incorporated on 3rd September, 1947 under the 

indian Companies Act, and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 

Trinity Plaza, 3rd floor, 84/1A, Topsia Road (South), Kolkata - 700046. The manufacturing unit is located in Kolkata, The Equity 

Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited {"BSE") and Calcutta Stock Exchange ("CSE"), The Financial Statements are 

presented in Indian Rupees. 

NOTE 1 (B) : MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below. 

These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented In the financial statements. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements of Hindusthan Udyog Ltd (“the Company”) comply in all material aspects with Indian 

Accounting Standards (“Ind-AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as notified 

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting Standard} 

Amendment Rules 2016 and other accounting principles generally accepted In India. 

The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognises income and expenditure on an accrual 

basis. The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except in case of significant 

uncertainties and except for the following: 

1. Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. 

2 Assets held for sale which are measured at lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell. 

3 Defined benefit plans where plan assets are measured at fair value. 

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 have been approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company in their meeting held on 29th May, 2025. 

All assets and Habilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle. 

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash 

equivalents, As set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, the normal operating cycle cannot be identified 

and hence it is assumed to have a duration of twelve months. 

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except 

when otherwise indicated. 

Use of Estimates and Management Judgement 

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 

the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenue and 

expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to such estimates 

is recognised in the period in which the same is determined. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOGLTD. 
No tes to, Consolidated Financial Statement As At.31. 03.2025. 

ii) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are 

inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and services tax and 

amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue when the amount of Revenue can be 

reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the company. 

1 Sales are recognised when significant risks and rewards are transferred to the buyer as per the contractual terms 

or on dispatch where such dispatch coincides with transfer of significant risks and rewards to the buyer. 

2 Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with reasonable 

accuracy and conditions precedent to claim our fulfilled. 

Hi) Other Income: . 

1 Interest Income on Financial Assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest 

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 

assets to the gross carrying amount of the Financial Asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the 

Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instruments. 

2 Dividends are recognized in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payments is 

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and 

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

3 Profit/Loss on sale of Investments is recognised on the contract date. 

4 Others: The Company recognizes other income (including rent and misc receipts) on accrual basis. However, 

where the ultimate collection of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to the 

extent of uncertainty. 

{¥V) Current versus Non -current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in Company's operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current 

A liability is current when: 

it Is expected to be settled in Company's operating cycle 

It is hefd primarily for the purpose of trading 

itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 

cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED - 
-Notes’ to ‘Consolidgted.Financial Statement As ALBL: 3.2025: 

v) 

Vi} 

vil) 

Non -current assets held for sale 

Non -current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale [f their carrying amount is 

intended to be recovered principally through a sale (rather than through continuing use) when the 

asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale In its present condition subject only to terms 

that are usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal group) and the sale is highly probable 

an is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of 

classification. 

Non -current assets and disposal group classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount and 

fair value less costs to sell. 

investment Property 

Investment properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both are stated in the balance sheet at cost, 

less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Any gain or loss on 

disposal of investment property is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the property and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Transfer to, or from, investment property 

is done at the carrying amount of the property. 

Intangible Asset 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired 

in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets 

are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated 

intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in 

profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever 

there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method 

for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the 

expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are 

considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 

estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and 

loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives including Goodwill are not amortised, but are tested for impairment 

annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level, The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually 

to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to 

finite is made on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the 

asset is derecognised. 



HINDUSTHAN. UDYOG LTD. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement As At 31, 03, 2025, 

Vil) Foreign currency Transactions 

items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial statements are presented In India Rupee which is 

Hindusthan Udyog Limited's functional and presentation currency. 

a) On initial recognition, all foreign currency transaction are recorded at foreign exchange rate on the date of 

transaction. 

b) Monetary Items of currents assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the close of financial year are 

revalorised at the appropriate exchange rates prevailing at the close of the year. 

c) The gain or loss on decrease/increase in reporting currency due to fluctuation in foreign exchange rate, in case of 

monetary current assets and liabilities in foreign currency, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

IX) Financial Instruments 

All financial assets are recognised on trade date when the purchase of a financial asset |s under a contract whose term 

requires delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned. Financial assets are 

initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets which are classified as at fair 

value through profit or loss (FVTPL) at inception. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their 

entirety at either amortised cost or fair value. 

Classification of Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified as ‘equity instrument’ if it is a non-derivative and meets the definition of ‘equity’ for the 

issuer. All other non-derivative financial assets are ‘debt instruments’. 

Financial assets at amortised cost and the effective interest method 

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

© The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash _ 

flows; and 

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 



HINDUSTHAN. UDYOG LTD” 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement As At 31, 03. 2025 

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment, with interest 

recognised on an effective yield basis in investment income. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 

interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future 

cash receipts (Including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 

transaction costs and other premiums or discounts} through the expected life of the debt instrument, or (where 

appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

The Company may irrevocably elect at initial recognition to classify a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost 

criteria above as at FVTPL if that designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch had the 

financial asset been measured at amortised cost. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments are measured at FVFOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

© The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 

flows and selling assets; and 

e The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are 

subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on Remeasurement recognised in other 

comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest calculated 

using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in investment income. When the 

debt instrument is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is 

reclassified to the statement of profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment, 

At initial recognition, an irrevocable election is made (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments 

in equity instruments other than held for trading purpose at FVTOCI. 

A financial asset is held for trading if: 

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term, or 

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages 

together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee. 

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, 

they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other 

comprehensive Income. Where the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the 

other comprehensive income is directly reclassified to retained earnings. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD. - 
Notes to Consolidated. Financial Statement As At 31. 03. 2025. 

For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income no impairments are recognised in 

the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in investment 

income when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits 

associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria of classifying as amortised cost or fair value through other 

comprehensive income described above, or that meet the criteria but the entity has chosen to designate as at FVTPL at 

initial recognition, are measured at FVTPL. 

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an investment that Is not 

held for trading at FVTOC! at initial recognition. 

Financial assets classified at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value excluding transaction costs. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss in 

investment income when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic 

benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

Impairment of financial assets 

On initial recognition of the financial assets, a loss allowance for expected credit loss is recognised for debt 

instruments at amortised cost and FVTOCI, For debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is 

recognised in other comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss and does not reduce the carrying 

amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet. 

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument is measured in a way that reflects: 

® an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; 

° the time value of money; and 

* reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about 

past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased 

significantly since initial recognition. , 

When making the assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at 

the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition 

and consider reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative 

of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month 

expected credit losses. If, the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at arrdimbu al to the lifetime 

expected credit losses.



HINDUSTHAN. UDYOG LTD. 
Notes to. Consolidated Financial Statement As At 31. 03, 2025 

The amount of expected credit tosses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is 

recognised as an Impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financiat Liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company 

Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of 

the contractual arrangement. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of 

its Habilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 

costs. 

Compound instruments 

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible instruments) issued by the Company are classified 

separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. At the 

date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for a 

similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective 

interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date. The equity component is 

determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a 

whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’. 

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FYTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as 

at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

e it has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 

¢ on Initial recognition it is part of a pertfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages 

together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or 

© jt is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may also be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 

recognition if: 

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 

otherwise arise; or 

® the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed 

and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk 

management or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or 

permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD. 
“Notes: to Consolidated Financial Statement As At 31, 1.03, 2025. 

x) 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in 

the statement of profit and loss, except for the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is 

attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability which is recognised in other comprehensive income. 

The net gain or loss recognised In the statement of profi t and ioss incorporates any interest paid on the financial 

liability. 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with 

interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 

interest expense over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 

cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate} a shorter period, to the net 

carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date, 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 

that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

1 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

2 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset ora liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset In its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 

that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 

the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorised within the fair value hlerarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that [s 

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 —~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
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‘Notes to-Consolidated. Financial Statement.As At 31,03. 2025. 

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 

each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 

basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy 

as explained above. 

Xi} ~~ Contingent Assets 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-oecurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

Acontingent asset is not recognised but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

Xil) Employees Benefit Expenses 

a) Short Term Obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 

12 months after the end of the period In which the employees render the related service are recognised in 

respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected 

to be pald when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in 

the Balance Sheet. 

b) Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations 

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the 

end of the period in which the employees rendered the related service. They are, therefore, measured at the 

present value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to 

the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements as a result of 

experience adjustments and changes in the actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. 

Under Ind AS, re-measurements of defined benefit plan are recognised in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding 

debit or credit to equity through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Under Ind AS, an entity is permitted to 

transfer amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income within equity. The Company has taken recourse of 

the said provision and has transferred as at the date of transition to Ind AS. 

Xili) Dividend 

Provision is made for the amount of any final dividend declared, being appropriately authorised in the Annual General 

Meeting and no longer at the discretion of the Company. 

interim Dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors. 
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xIV) Leases 

ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices. The standard sets out the principles for the 

recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the 

balance sheet. 

The Company has adapted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption under the transitional 

provisions of the Standards, with the date of initial application on 1st April 2019. The Company also elected to use the 

recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less 

and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low 

value (low-value assets). 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys 

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and 

leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 

representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying 

asset Is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the 

amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 

commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis 

over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise 

of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (k) Impairment of 

non-financial assets. 

Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 

lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance 

fixed payments} less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and 

amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. 
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 

commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 

commencement date, the amount of lease ‘labilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for 

the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, 

a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change 

in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase 

the underlying asset. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and 

equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 

contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of offices, 

godowns, equipment, etc. that are of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Company as a lessor 

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 47, Lessors will continue to classify leases 

as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, ind AS 116 does not have an 

impact for leases where the Company is the lessor. 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an 

asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising Is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease 

terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of 

the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are 

recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
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xVj 

XV) 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's 

recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair 

value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the 

asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When 

the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impaired and is 

written down to its recoverable amount. . 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the 

Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised 

impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or 

CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 

assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 

reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed Its recoverable amount, nor exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for 

the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 

decision-maker, Revenue and expenses are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating 

activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which are not allocable to segments on a reasonable 

basis, are included under “Unallocated revenue/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities”. 

The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which customers of the Company are located. 

Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. In addition, the following specific 

accounting policies have been followed for segment reporting: 

i) Segment revenue includes sales and other operational revenue directly identifiable with/allecable to the segment 

including inter segment revenue. 

it) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for determining the segment result. 

iii) Most of the centrally incurred costs are allocated to segments mainly on the basis of their respective expected segment 

revenue estimated at the beginning of the reported period. 

iv) Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments Is included in “unallocable corporate 

income/ (expenditure}(net)”. 

v) Segment result includes margins on inter-segment capital jobs, which are reduced in arriving at the profit before tax of 

the Company. 

vi) Segment result includes the finance costs incurred on Interest bearing advances with corresponding credit included in 

“unallocable corporate income/(expenditure)(net). 

vii) Segment results have not been adjusted for the exceptional item attributable to the corresponding segment. The said 

exceptional item has been included in “unallecable corporate income/(expenditure)(net)”. The corresponding segment 

assets have been carried under the respective segments without adjusting the exceptional item. 

vill} Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of transfer price 

which are either determined to yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated basis. 

ix) Segment assets and fiabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Unallocable corporate 

assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole. 

x} Segment non-cash expenses forming part of segment expenses includes the fair value@ employee stock options 

which is accounted as employee compensation cost [Note 1(r) supra] and is allogated tat seemed 
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XV) Business combination 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an acquisition is measured as 

the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any 

noncontrolling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure 

the noncontrolling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s 

identifiable net assets, Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable 

assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. 

Any business combinations invalving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the 

pooling of interest method: 

¢ The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 

e No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments 

that are made are to harmonise accounting policies. 
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HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED — 
03,2025 | 

VEST, 
Accounting Polley . 

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant Influence, Significant influence is the power to participate In the financial and operating 

policy decistons of the investee but is not controf or joint control over those policies. 

The Group's investments in iis associates are accounted for using the equity method, Under the equily rethod, the investment in an associate is 

inilially recognised at cost, The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes In the Group's share of nat assels of (he 

associate since the acquisilion date, 
The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the resulls of operations of the associates. Any change In OC! of these investess is 
presanted as part of the Group's OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly In the equity of the associate, the Group 
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in ihe statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulling from lansactions 

between the Group and the asscciate are eliminated to ihe extent of the interest In the associate, 

if an entity's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds Its interest in ihe associate (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, 

form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the entity discantinues recognising ils share of further losses. Additional losses are 
recognised only fo the extent thal he Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the 

associate subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of 

losses not recognised. 
The aggregaie of the Group's share of profit or toss of associates is shawn on the face of the statement of profit and Joss. 
The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring 

the accounting policies in Ena with those of the Group. 
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether il is necessary to recognise an Impairment loss on Its investment in its 
associates, At each raporting dale, the Group determines whether there Is objective evidence thal the investment in the associates is impaired. If 
there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associates and ils 

carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of associates’ in tha statement of profit or loss. 
Upon foss of significant influence over the associales, tha Group measures and recognises any relained investment at its fair value, Any difference 
between the carrying amount of the assaciates upon toss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from 

disposal is recognised in profit er loss. 

Rs In Lakhs 

a Ne. of -: As Ato] No.of Shares [ooo -As AL: 
Particulars Shares 31,03,2026 aaa “| 31.03.2024 

INVESTMENTS. 

fea} Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 

fi) Investment In Equity instrument (Quoted) 

4) Via Media India Limited 1,750 0.48 

tess: Written Off {8.18} 

2) Phosphate Co. Limited 11,578 17.89 41,578 17.48 

3) indorama Synthetics Limited 300 0.12 

Less: Written Off (0,42) 

4} India Foils Limited “400 0.03 

Less: Written Off {0.03} 

5} Blue Coast Hotels Limited 9,70,000 370.35 9, 70,000 92.45 

6} Mcleod Russel (India} Limited 150 0.03 150 0,03 

Less: Provision for Gimunition in livestment (150) (6.03) (150) (0.03): 

7} 3K Synthetics Limited 905 0.55 

Less: Written Off (0.55) 

8} LML Limited 5,000 5.10 5,100 5.20 

Less: Provision for Dimunition in investment : (5.10) - (5,40) 

Less: Written Off - {100} (0,10) 

- 5,000 {0) 

Total (3) BaB24 109.63 

(fi) Investment in Equity instrument (Unquoted} 

1) Tamilnadu Alkaline Batteries Limited 8,00,000 3.03 8,00,000 8.03 

2) Macneil Electricals Limited 918 3.75 918 3.75 

Less: Sold during the year 918 (3.75) 

3} Neptune Impex Pvt, Limited 200 0,30 

Less: Written Off {0,30} 

Total (it} 8.03 11.78 

Total (a) 396.27 421.41 



HINDUSTHAN. upyoc LIMITED 
“Notes to-CONSOLIDATED: Financial: ‘Statement AsA S108, 

Asin Lakhs 

PEAS as No. of © ‘As At No. of Shares |. JAS Abo: 
‘Particulars “Shares | 34.03.2025. eReeeian 31,03,2024 -- 

(b} Investments, carried at amount computed using equity method 

i, Associate 

1} WPIL Limited (41.33%) 4,03,66,590 40,36,659 

Carrying Value of the Group's Interest in Associate 52,664.22, 36,343.13 

Add: Currant Year Profit/(Loss) 5,953.94 17,865.75 

Less : Dividend {807.33} (1,544.66 

Total 57,810.83 52,664.22 

2) Spaans Babcock india Limited {45%} 45,000 45,000 

Carrying Value of the Group's interest in Associate 9.96 24.23 

Add: Current Year Profit/(Loss} 10.16 (14.27 

Total 26,12 9.96 

3) Asutosh Enterprises Limited (36.12%) 8,09,450 8,095,450 

Carrying Value of the Group's Interest In Associate 404.31 213,18 

Add: Current Year Profit/{Loss) 112.91 191,43 

Total 517.22 404,31 

4) Bengal Steel industries Limited (38,0276) 18,68,151 18,68,154 

Carrying Value of the Group's Interest in Associate 91.54 88,68 

Add: Current Year Profit/(Loss) 6.67 2,86 

Less; Derecognised on sale (5,500) (0.28) - 

Total 18,62,651 97.93 91,54 

5) Hindustan Parsons Limited (41.55%) 32,45,000 32,45,000 

Carrying Value of the Group's Interest in Associate 891.01 91.57 

Add: Current Year Profit/(Loss} 65.04 799.44 

Total 956,05 891.03 

6) 4.5... International Private Limited 3,02,500 3,02,500 

Carrying Value of the Group's Interest in Associate 701 V27 

Add: Current Year Profit/(Loss) 0.01 (0.26) 

Less: Derecognised on sale {3,02,500) {7.02} - 

Total - - 7.01 

{Hl} Investment in Govt. Securities (NSC) O15 0.15. 

(ii) Investment in Debentures 

Via Media India Limited 175 0.07 

Less: Written Off (0.07} 

Total (b} 59,402.30 54,068,221 

fc) Measured at fair value through Profit and foss 

(i) investment in Preference Shares 

VN Enterprises Limited 7,00,008 700.00 700,080 700,00 

Total (c) 700,00 700.00 

Total farbtc} 60,498.57 54,889.62 

ts fn Lakhs 

As At 31.03.2025 As At 34.03.2024 

Cost Market Value Cost Market Value 

Aggregate value of Quoted investments 6,001.85 175,317.87 6,002.01 1,38,064,14 

Aggregate value of Unquoted Investments 121.76 1,277.34 128.93 1,221.32 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED, = 
Notes to Consolidated. financial Statement As At 31,03.20. 

Accounting Policy: 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold ar services performed in the ordinary course of business. If the 

receivable is expected to be collected within a pertod of 12 months or less from the reporting date (or in the normal operating cycle of the 

business, if longer}, they are classified as current assets otherwise as non-current assets. 

Trade receivables are measured initially at fair value, and subsequently at amostised cost using effective interest method, less provision for 

impairment. 

Loss allowance for expected life time credit loss is recognised on initial recognition. 

* Kept as margin money against Bank guarantees NiL (P Y. Rs, 7,23 Lakhs ). 

Rs in Lakhs 

. Particulars “As At ‘As At 

: : 31.03.2026 31,03.2024 

AtAmortised Cost 

Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise * 50.14 50.13 

Trade Recelvables Considered Good - Unsecured 50,11 50,41 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - - 

Less :Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Debts * - 

Total 50,13, 50,11 

Ageing of Trade receivables - Non- current outstanding as at 31 March, 2025 is as follows : 

Epa : PDMS TRIED Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment OTe 

Particulars os o0 5080 are + CESS ts Less than 6 6 months 1 -:) 1-2 years 4 2-3 years | More than} )o.Total 

ee : wae : ate “months ‘year _ 2 “a Years : 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - . - 50.11 50.11 

- Undisputed Trade Recelvables - which have significant increase in Credit Risk - + ~ - - - 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - - - 

~ Disputed Trade Receivables  - Considered Good “ “ - co ~ - 

~ Disputed Trade Receivables. - which have significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - . + 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired - - . - - - 

Less :Allowances for bad and doubtful debts - - - - - - 

Total - - 7 - 5041 50.41 

Ageing of Trade receivables - Non- current outstanding os at 31 March, 2024 is as follows : 

: a i won : onan . Outstanding for following periods from due dote of payment 

Particulars 2.900.000 eereesectat ee (Seo) hess than 6) 6 months-4 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than | ©.Total 

rears : : Cros “months °° year VSS SOD 3 Wears TEE 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - . - 50.41 50.11 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in Credit Risk - - . ~ - - 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - . - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good ” - - - - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in Credit Risk - . - - - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - - : 

Less :Allowances for bad and doubtful debts - - : - - “ 

Total : : : - 50.11 50.14 

* Receivables are from H,S.M, International Private Limited {a related party) Rs, 50.21 iakhs (P.¥.: Rs.50.11 Lakhs) 

(C) OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS. “AS At As Ato. 
pare oe 34,03,2025 | 31,03,2024. 

Security Deposits O45 0,15 

Deposits with banks having origina! maturity of more than 12 months (*) 18,96 9.73 

Prepaid Processing Fees 1.95 2.20 

Other Advances 0.65 0.05 

Total Other Non Current Financial Assets 21.11 12.13 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED” . 
_ Notes to Consolidated Finaiiclal Statement As At 31, 

As in Lakhs 

NOTE: 3fd} TRADE RECEIVABLES - CURRENT 

: . VAS AL ‘As Al 
Particulars ‘31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 

At Amortised Cost 

Unsecured, Considered Good, unless stated otherwise * 185.259 198.82 

Trade Receivables Considered Good - Unsecured 185.29 198.82 

Trade Receivables which have Significant Increase In Credit Risk - - 

Less ;Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Debts - - 

Total 185.29 198.82 

* The company filed a lawsuit against Mahanad} Coalfields Utd. For recovery of Rs. 91.93 lakhs at Cuttack High court for which no provision has been made In the 

Ageing of Trade recelvables - current outstanding as at 31 March, 2025 is as follows : 

Particulars Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment Tefal 

tess than |6 Months -| 1-2 Years 2-3 More than 

6Months | i Year Years 3 Years 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - - - 185.29 185.29 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have Significant increase in Credit Alsk - - - . - - 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - . - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - - - * - 

- Disputed Trade Receivabies - which have Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - - 

~ Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - . ~ 

Less : Allowances for Bad and Goubtful Debts ~ - - - - ~ 

Total = > = “ 185,29 185,29 

Ageing of Trade receivables - current outstanding as at 31 March, 2024 is as follows < 

pis Particulars. coe nes : ‘ Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment “Total 

; cornet Less than [6 Months =| 1-2 Years *)..-2-3 ‘Wore than i 

6 Months | “2 Year “| “Years “13 Years 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - 13,53 - - 185.29 198.82 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have Significant Increase in Credit Risk - - . - - ~ 

~ Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ Credit Impaired + - - * - - 

~ Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - . - - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables - which have Significant Increase in Credit Risk - - - - * - 

+ Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - + : - - 

Less : Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Debts - - - - - . 

Total = 13.53 > : 185.29 198,82 



JINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED. _— 
| Notes to CONSOLIDATED Financial Statement As A 

Accounting Policy: 

The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on current period's taxable income based on the applicable Income tax rates 

for the jurisdictton. 

Current tax and deffered tax ara recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent It relates to items recognised directly in 

equity or other comprehensive income. 

Current income Tax 

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period In the - 

countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management evaluates periodically positions taken with respect to 

situations in which applicable tax regulations Is subject to interpretation, It establishes provisions, wherever appropriate, on the basis of amounts 

expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except, when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 

recognition of goodwill or an asset or fiability in a transaction that Is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except, when the deferred tax asset relating to the 

deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or lability In a transaction that is not a business combination and, 

at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no jonger probable that 

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re- 

assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred 

tax asset to be recovered, 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the year when the asset is realised or the liability is 

settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in 

equity). 

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset Hf a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax 

liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax 

treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The Company apolles significant judgement in 

identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments. 
Rs in Lakhs 

Particulars es AEE | TAs Al 
ok : aaa “ Sananiaaien : 31,03,2025 ‘1 34.03.2024 

Deffered Tax Asset / (Liability) (251.58) (173.54) 

Total (251.58) {173.51} 

“A - Movement in deferred Tax balances |: © OSES : vos p CoS AS At oop Es Recognized (| Recognized in} 2 As At 

eae aia BAES wes us 31:03,2024 ine oc! 31.03,2025 
vohhic| “Profit & Loss Srraetan 

Deferred Tax Liability 173.51 - “ - 

impact of difference in Depreciation/Amortization on Property, Plant and 43.44 

Equipment 

Other Timing Differences - 34.63 - 

Net Deferred Tax Liability - “ - 251.58 



HINDUSTHANUDYOGLIMITED 
_ Notes to CONSOLIDATED Financlol Statement As At 3 

Rs in Lakhs 

B --Reconciliation of Income Tax Expenses °:\".° . ae : “) For The ‘Year| For The Year “For The For The. 

Srepere ie UICOREIE se Taare RS ERT oF : wos “Ended 2-0) 0. Ended’: ‘Year Ended Year Ended 

34.03.2025 ~ 34.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | 31,03,2024 

Accounting Profit 5,739.58 5,739.58| 18,527.21] 18,527.21 

less: profit relating to capital gain disclosed separately 22,95 7.36 18,519.85 

Tax (CY-27.82%, PY-29.12%) 1,550.37 5,392.98 

Non deductible expenses 19,30 12.45 

Deductible expenses (65.51} (58.46} 

Effect of profit from Associate (1,572.16) {5,415.85) 

Effect of dividend from Associate 224.60 449,80 

Brought Forward losses . - (210,19) 

196.60 170,73 

Tax effect of income on which different tax rates are used for determining - 3.18 + 6.87 

Taxable Profit 

Income Tax Expense Reported In Statement of Profit and Loss for the 199.78 177.60 

current year * 

* Net of MAT Credit Entitlement of Rs Nil (PY Rs. 79.85 jakhs) 

Note : 5 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS... BOT) 84,08,2028 -| 31,03,2024 

Advances other than Capital Advances; 

Security Deposits 2.02 2,02 

Others: 

Mat Credit Entitlement (*) 11.47 91,31 

Other Non Current Assets 5.00 5.00 

Total 18,49 98.34 

* MAT Credit Entitlement has been set off during current year. 



‘HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED - 
= Wotes to CONSOLIDATED Financial Statement Av At31.03,2025 

Accounting Polfey: 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reafizable value. The cost of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, 

direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, Costs of inventories include the transfer from equity any gains/losses on 

qualifying cash flow hedges for purchases of raw materials. 

Cost is determined using the FIFO for Kolkata Unit. However, the same cost basis is applied ta all inventories of a particular class. Inventories of 

stores and spare parts are valued at weighted average cost basis after providing for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, wherever 

considered necessary. 

However, materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories (finished goods, work-in-progress} are not written down 

below the cost if the finished products In which they will be used are expected to sell at or below the cost. 

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary fo make the 

Rs in Lakhs 

° Particulars 700005 ereeaertaeae aon BIAS OAS ALLS OAS At 
wes : 7 : 31.03.2026 | '31.03.2024 

20.47 20.47 

§.16 6.88 

Total 25.63 27.35 

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated) 

Raw Material 

Tools & Implements 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED _ 
‘Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement As At 31. 03.2025 - 

Note : 7(A) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT. 

Accounting Policy: 

- Rs in Lakhs 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 

original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

- Particulars Ho ABAL | CASAL. 
se 34. 03.2025 .- | 31.03.2024 

Balances with Bank 

—In Current Account* 105.53 25,16 

Cash on Hand 23.49 23.39 

Total 129.02 48.55 

* The balance of Rs. 0.54 Lakhs is subject to confirmation. 

Me iy fede llee eee top Epareanee yes : AS At: os At: 

Note :.7(BJOTHER BANK BALANCES ~-34,03.2025 | 31.03.2024 

Deposits with Original Maturity of more than 3 Months and within 12 Months* 16.57 31.31 

16.57 31.31 

*Kept as Margin Money against Bank guarantees NIL (Previous Year Rs.12,54 Lakhs). 

hn inn TE eae ae “As At SAS. ALY 
Note : 7(C) OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS. 1 ae 5086 | aos o008" 

interest Accured on Fixed Deposit with Bank 1.76 5.17 

Prepaid Processing Fees 0.25 0.25 

Accrued Interest on NSC 0.14 0.14 

Other Advances(*}(#) 204.28 3.99 

Total 206.43 9.55 

*Advance given to Bharath Oil and Chemical Industries Limited (Subsidiary) of Rs. 4.28 lakhs (Previous Year:- Rs. 3.99 

lakhs} 

# Advance given to V N Enterprises Limited (a related party} of Rs. 200 lakhs (Previous Year: - Rs. Nil) 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED | 
"Notes to CONSOLIDATED Financlal Statement As At 34. 032025 - 

Rs in Lakhs 

Note: 8 CURRENT.TAX ASSET (NET) ©2001 EES Bos 31.03.2028 © | © 31.03.2024 

Advance payment of Income Tax (Net) : 750.83 669.06 

Total , 750.83 669,06 

As At oc. AS At 

Note: 8 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 34.03.2025 -.| 31.03.2024 

Advances other than capital advances: 

Advances to Staff (Unsecured- Considered Good) 0.15 0,00 

Advances to Others* 178.56 199.91 

Security Deposit 0.49 0,49 

Prepaid Expenses 2.16 1.69 

Others: 

GST Receivable 29,73 32.27 

Total 211.05 202.10 

*Iincludes Advance to supplier 

Advance given to H.S.M, International Private Limited {a related party) of Rs. Nil (Previous Year: - Rs. 20.50 Lakhs) 



“Rs in Lakhs. 

. Pe api : As At. WAS At: 
NOTE: 10 (A} EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 34.03.2025 :| 31.03.2024 

Equity Share Capital 

Authorised Shares 

5,89,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,895.00 5,895.00 

60,00,000 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each 600.00 600,00 

6,495.00 6,495.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Shares 

61,94,996 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each, fully paid 619.50 619,50 

Total 619.50 619,50 

a Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning & at the end of the reporting period 

Equity Shares - : = : ner fou Be Nos. ue VAS AL Nos, ovo As At 

Be HAW ieee “31.03.2026 Bie "34.03,2024 

At the beginning of the period 61,94,996 619.50 61,94,996 619.50 

Issued during the period - - 

Cancelled during the period - “ 

Outstanding at the end of the period 61,94,996 619,50 61,94,996 619,50 

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has one Class of Shares issued, Equity Shares having a par value of * 10/- each. Each Equity Shareholder is eligible 

for one vote per share held.The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are 

eligible to receive the assets of the Company after distribution of a!l preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding. 

(The Company does not have any Holding Company, ultimate Holding Company . 

Details of Shareholders holdings more than 5% of Shares i in the Company 

Particulars | AS at 31,03.2025 : As at 3h 03,2024 :: 

Nos.) | % Holding in. Nos, % Holding in 

Se the Class _ SESE the Class © 

Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each 

1. V.N, Enterprises Limited 17,48,785 28.23 47,48,785 28,23 

2. Poonam Shaver - 0.00 . 6,85,000 11.06 

3. Aditiya Jnaver 6,85,000 41.06 - 0.00 

4, Abhimanyu Jhaver - 3,67,333 5.93 3,67,333 5.93 

4, Bengal Steel Industries Limited 6,78,238 10.95 6,78,238 10.95 

5. Asutosh Enterprises Limited 5,45,775 8,81 5,45,775 8.81 

6. Prakash Agarwai 8,60,537 13,89 860,537 13.89 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement As At 31,09,2025. 

Rs in Lakhs 

Shareholding of Promoters... . ae : wan rea Boy : BL peel : ste ona 

V.N, Enterprises Limited 

~ No. of shares 17,48,785 17,48,785 

- %of holding 28.23 28.23 

- % change during the year * - - 

Bengal Steel Industries Limited 

- No. of shares 6,78,238 6,783,238 

- % of hoiding 10.95 10.95 

- % change during the year * - - 

Asutosh Enterprises Limited 

~ No, of shares 5,45,775 §,45,775 

- % of holding 8.81 8.81 

-% change during the year * - - 

HSM International Private Limited 

~ No. of shares 1,45,558 1,45,558 

- % of holding 2.35 2.35 

- % change during the year * - - 

HSM Investments Limited 

- No. of shares 1,40,279 1,40,279 

- % of holding 2.26 2,26 

-% change during the year * - - 

Macneil Electricals Limited 

- No. of shares 12,777 42,777 

- % of holding 0.21 0.21 

~ % change during the year * NIL NIL 

Revox Enterprises Private Limited 

- No. of shares 107 107 

- % of holding ; - - 

~ % change during the year * NIL NUL 

Prakash Agarwal 

- No. of shares 8,60,537 8,60,537 

- % of holding 13.89 13.89 

- % change during the year * - ~ 

* % change during the year has been computed on the basis of shares held at the beginning of the year. 

No Shares reserved for issue under options and contract/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment including the terms and 

amounts. 

For thé period of five years immediately preceding the date as at the Balance Sheet is prepared: 

7,50,121 shares have been alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract{s} without payment being received in cash during the 

Financial Year 2024-22 on account of Amalgamation. 

No Shares have been alloted as fully paid up by way of Bonus Shares. 

No Shares has been bought back by the Company. 
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'RINDUSTHAN UDYC 
‘Notes to Consoli 
NOTE 11s FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (NON CURREN 7}. 

(A) BORROWINGS |. 
Accounting Policy: 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs} and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the 

period of the borrowing using the effective interest method. Fees pald on the establishment of toan facilities are recognised at transaction 

costs of the loan to the extent it is probable that some ar all of the facility will be drawn down. In the case, the fee is deferred until the 

draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is 

capitalised as a repayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Borrowings are removed from the dalance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The 

difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the 

consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 

other gains/(losses). 

Borrowings are classified as current financial liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 

for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or 

before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the Hability becomes repayable on demand on the reporting date, the entity 

does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements 

for issue, nat to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 

Rs In Lakhs 

Particulars 2, WEN Se Eos ie SU) As AB Ooo As At 
eas anise TUT 9 9025 “-b°31.03.2024 | 

Secured 

Deferred Sales Tax Loan 417 1.47 

Term Loan(*) 

From Banks : 924.02 989.62 

less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note 13(A)) (71.76) (65.62} 

852.26 924.00 

Total 853.43 925.17 

(*)Terms of Repayment of Property Loan from ICICI Bank 

To be paid in 120 equal monthly instalments in 10 years. 

Interest Rate: 9.60% p.a. 

Non residential (commercial) property loan taken from ICICI Bank has been secured against property acquired by the Company against 

such loan. 



HINDUSTHANUDYOG LIMITED — 
Notes to.Consolidated Financial Statement As At31,03,2025 

: “Rs in Lakhs 

NOTE: 14(8) TRADE PAYABLES » CURRENT re 

Accounting Policy: 

Trade Payables are liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. They are 

initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 

Particulars 
coo AS Ab: OAS At 

34.03.2025 $4,03.2024 

At Amortised Cost 

Trade Payables 

*Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.00 0.00 

*Total outstanding dues of Creditors Other Than Micra Enterprise and Small Enterprises* 41.45 41.45 

Total 41.45 41.45 

Ageing of Trade payables - current outstanding as at 31 Marci, 2025 Is as follows : 

Partleulars Outstanding for foltowing periods from due date of Tatal 

payment 

Less than | 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 

1 Year 3 Years 

-MSME * : - - - - 

- Other creditors : 3.12 0,34 37.99 4145 

- Disputed dues - MSME * - - - . i 

+ Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 

Total 7 3,42 0,34 37.99 41.45 

Ageing of Trade payables - current outstanding as at 31 March, 2024 is as follows : 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment]... Total ~. 

reece Less than 1.|1-2 years ||" -2-3 years °:|- More than 3 : : 

“year “-- : : years 

-MSME_* - . - - - 

- Other creditors 3.12 0.34 . 1,92 36.07 41.45 

- Disputed dues - MSME * - - - - - 

- Disputed dues - Others - - - = - 

Total 3.12 0,34 4,92 36.07 41.45 

* MSME as per the Micro, Sinall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 



'HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemen 

NOTE 21: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (NON CURRENT] 2200200052005 BUS Mc AS At AS ALS 

a Tn z DM LL PACS 94,03,.2025.)) 31.03.2024 - 

{C) OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

EMD Receivables 0.89 0.89 

Other Liabilities 20.82 20.52. 

Total 21.70 2141 

Note: 12 NON CURRENT PROVISIONS . 

Accounting Policy? 

A provision is recognised if 

{i} the business has present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; 

(il) It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and 

Uii) the amount of obligation has been reliably estimated 

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the 

reporting period. !f the effect of time value of money is material , provisions are discounted to reflect its current value using a current 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. 

When discounting Is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Warranty provisions 

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised on the basis of product sold or service provided to the customer, Initial recognition 

is based on historical experience and management's decision based on technical advice. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is 

revised annually. 

Onerous contracts 

{f the Company has a contract that Is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recogaised and measured as a provision. 

However, befare a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment foss that has 

occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. 

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the 

contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. Fhe unavoidable 

costs under a contract reflect.the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the jower of the cost of fulfilling it and any 

compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil It. 

Retirement and other Employee Benefits 

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation Schemes are defined contribution schemes. The Company has no 

obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective funds. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident 

fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. 

Gratuity liability is funded defined benefit obligation and Is provided for on the basis of actuarlal valuation done on projected unit credit 

method at the end of each reporting period. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and josses, the effect of the asset ceillng, excluding amounts included tn net interest on 

the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit 

liability}, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other 

comprehensive income in the period In which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Current and non-current classification is based on the actuarial valuation report, 

The Company treats accumulated leaves expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for 

measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuartal valuation using the projected 

unit credit method at the end of each financial year. The Company presents the leave as current liability in the balance sheet, to the 

extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement beyond 12 months after the reporting date. 

Where the Company has unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for the periad beyond 12 months, the same is 

presented as non-current liability, Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken ta the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. 

Particulars mea Sarnia LOE AE IDEs LUN j AS Atop ASAE 

ae is : : cen : : 34.03.2028 [31.03.2024 

For Employee Benefits: - 

~ Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 22.44) 941 8.46 

~ Provision for Leave Encashment {Refer note 22.14) 0.90 1.07 

Others: . 

~Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 3.17 3.17 

‘ Total 13.48 12.69 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED © 
_ Notes to Consolidoted Finonclal Statentent As At-31.03.20 

As in Lakhs 

NATE 42: NT). As At As At 
NOTE 13: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT} 41,03,9026 34 05.2024 ° 

{A} BORROWINGS 

Secured 

Current Maturities of Long Tarm Borrowings (Refer Note No. 114) 7176 65.62 

Total FL76 65.62 

nr 3, ; “AS AL CAS AL 
NOTE 13; FINANCIAL ABILITIES (CURRENT) . “'94.63,2028 34.03.2024 

{8} OTHER FINANCIAL UABILITIES 

Interest accrued but nat due on Term Loan 4.69 4.95 

Payable to Employees 7.63 743 

Bank Book Overdraft - 8.52 

Other Payables 2,75 275 

Total 15.07 23,65 

; = : 7 As Ato: AS AL 
(Note $14 OTHER CURRENT LABHITIES 34.03.2025 31 ,03,2024 

Advance From Others * 370.00 770,00 

Other Payablas 232 221 

Deposits From Contractors 4.99 4.98 

Provident Fund 0.48 0,42 

Tax Deducted At Source 3.32 64.99 

Professional Tax 2.86 2.86 

Total 383,97 845.47 

* Includes from Bengal Steel Industries Ltd (Assaciate) Rs. Nil { P¥:-Rs. 400 Lakhs } 



_HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMIT 
_ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem As 

Rs In Lakhs 

Note :15 CURRENT PROVISIONS. ane | aioe zo 

For Employee Benefits: 

~~ Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 23.14) 4.33 3.76 

~ Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer note 23.11) 0.49 0.55 

Totat 4,82 4.31 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMIT 
_ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stat ement jor thé Yéar Ended 31,03,2025. 

Rs in Lokis 

Se ere eases eerie “For The: For The.” 

Note: 16 OTHER INCOME =-Year Ended °] ‘Year Ended 
[hua nestles : 31.03.2026 © :}. 31.03.2024 -> 

(a) Interest Income 

~ Of Preference Share amortised through FYTPL - 68.29 

(b] Dividend income - - 

-Dividend from Quoted Equity Shares - 0.13 

{ce} Other Non Operating income - - 

~ Income From Fixed Deposit 12,43 15.30 

~ Rent 447,36 278.09 

— Profit on sale of Investments 22,95 7.36 

~ Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 10.02 

— Liabilities written back * - 168.57 

~ Miscellaneous Receipts ** 25.54 3.06 

Total 508.28 550.80 

* This Inludes Provision for Doubtful Debts of Rs, Nil {PY Rs. 44,46 Lakhs) written back on account of Bad debts. 

+* This includes refund of excess balance in electronic cash ledger in Nagpur unit of 22.32 lakhs in current year. 



: Notes to th Cor solldated. Fina | neil Stotement ntfor' the Yea ‘Ended 31.0 2025. : 

Rs in Lakhs 

Note : 17 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED & OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES 2 For The) For The, 
Leone ree reer Conese Seo bes : ne SNS -Year Ended Year Ended 

: ae : °34,03,2025 | 91,03,2024 

Raw Material Consumed 4.10 

Stores Consumed 1.72 2,48 

Total (*} 1.72 3.58 

* Devaluation of Inventory for Stores Consumed 

a VAST Cea gs Sassi eee LE “For The “For The 

Note : 18 EMIPLOYER BENEFIT EXPENSES © 0  * - Year Ended. | “Year.Ended 
PERE eates a RR atin SSE erect pore Ee oS “34,03.2025 31.03.2024 

Salary, Wages, Bonus & Allowances * 87.87 104.37 

Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratulty, ESI & Other Fund(Refer note 23,11) 5.28 13.80 

Staff Welfare Expenses 8.56 3.59 

Total 404.74 121,76 

* includes Director's Remuneration of Rs. 36.00 Lakhs (P.¥.- Rs. 40,50 Lakhs) 

Sse areca For-The .2-4  ForThe 

oe tore ts “Year Ended Near Ended 

‘Note : 49. FINANCE COSTS :  34.03,2025 . |. 31.03,2024 

{A} Interest - - 

(i) Interest cost on Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost 

- oan borrowings from banks 86,15 125.34 

~on MSME dues ~ 0.63 

(B} Other Borrowing Cost 

— processing fees * 0.25 49,55 

~ on preference shares calculated as per Effective Interest Method - 5.52 

Total 86.40 150,85 

* — The Processing Fees is amortised throughout the tenure of the Loan taken from ICICI Bank, 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

Rs in Lakhs 

Hasse DANONE SEU “For The. “For The -: 

Note 1.20 DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSE ‘Year Ended Year Ended 
eieere ; an DOREY 34003,.2028 2] 31.03.2024 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment (Refer Note 2) 65.69 33.87 

Total 65.69 33,87 

Beraae DAMIR ; For The: For.The 2: 

Note : 21 OTHER EXPENSES Year Ended .:.| \Year-Ended . 

poss hs poe 34.03.2026 31.03.2024 

Component Processing Expense - 24.72 

Selling & Distribution Expenses - - 

Advertisement & Sales Promotion 0.39 0.36 

Rates & Taxes 23.95 20,29 

Repairs & Maintenance - - 

Repairs to Plant & Machinery - 1.19 

Repairs to Factory Building 3.22 3.04 

Repairs to Others Assets 34.86 24,22 

Travelling Expenses - - 

Inland Travelling 10.35 9.24 

Foreign Travelling 3.30 - 

Audftors' Remuneration - - 

- Audit Fees 2.75 2.75 

- Tax Audit Fees 0.35 0.25 

- Certification/Limited Review Fees 2,40 2.95 

- Special Purpose Audit Fees - 6.50 

Legal & Professional , 0.01 5,86 

Director Meeting Fees 0.29 6.27 

Security/Service Charges 23.81 16,24 

Liquidated Damages ° 0.24 2.38 

Electricity Charges 5.26 1.46 

Rent 9,16 9.16 

Factory Godown Rent . - 

Bank Charges 1,59 0.42 

Bad Debts - 78,88 

Vehicle Maintenance 12.58 3.69 

Sundry Balances Written Off * - 76,03 

insurance 141 2.49 

Listing Fees 3.25 3.25 

Loss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation “ 0.74 

investments Written off . 1.14 

Provision for Doubtful Investments - 5.48 

Donation & Subscription 3.87 2.59 

Miscellaneous Expenses 21.33 9.31 

Total 164.37 311,90 

* Bank Balances amounting to Rs. Nil (PY Rs. 4.34 Lakhs) written off on accaunt of dormant bank accounts. 



Note: 22 NOTES 

22.1 Contingent Liabilities 

Accounting Policy? 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obtigation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurtence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a present obligation that arises 

from past events where it |s either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 

cannot be made. 

Following are the contingent liabilities of the Company as at the year end: 

a) Letters of Guarantee outstanding as at 31.03.2025 is Nil (Previaus Year - “19.77 lakhs) agalnst which Fixed Deposit of * 35.53 Laks kept as margin. 

b) Claim not acknowledged as debts: - Disputed demand for Sales Tax * 131.32 Lakhs (Previous Year -* 134.32 Lakhs} appealed against. 

c} VAT Case filled for the year 2007-08 of Rs 62.70 Lakhs (Previous Year - * 62.70 Lakhs } 

d} Contingent Labilities in respect of income Tax matter under appeal Rs. 56.11 Lakhs (net of advance tax} (Previous Year - * 284,28 Lakhs). 

e) Contingent Liabilities in respect of Goods and Services Tax matter under appeal Rs. 2.85 Lakhs {Previous Year - Nil}. 

22.2 Related Party Disclosures:. 

Related Party disclosures as required under Ind AS 24 on "Related Party Disclosures" as certified by the management, are given below: . 

i) Relationship 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP} & their Relatives 

a) Mr. V.N. Agarwal Director 

b) Mr Gopal Krishna Agarwal , Executive Director (whole-time} 

ct} Mr. Prakash Agarwal 1 Director - Son of Mr. V.N. Agarwal 

d} Ms. Kiran Darulla independent Director 

e) Mr. Bai Krishna Mawandia Director 

f) Mr. Sanjib Kamar Roychawdhury Director 

2) Ms.Shikha Baja} . - Company Secretary & Chief Financtal Officer 

VN, Enterprise Limited (Entreprise Having Significant Influence} 

Macneil Electricals Limited (MEL}{Director having significant influence} 

HSM Investments Limited {Director having significant influence} 

Subsidiary Campany 

Bharath Oil and Chemical industries Limited 

Associate Company 

WPIL Limited (WPIL} 

Spaans Babcock India Limited 

Asutosh Enterprises Limited 

Bengal Steel industries Limited 

Hindusthan Parsons Limited 

H. S. M, International Private Limited (ceased to be an associate w.ef 19,14.2024) 



HINDUS CHAN. UDYOG uMiTeD : : Se : 
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED! Nal ICIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR | 

Re it Lakhs 

ii) Details oft transactions between the Company and Related Parties for the year ended 3ist Marck, 2025, are given below: 

“HS. M, JOM. Ne "2 | Masnelll Electricals | °.- WPIL KMP. 

international Enterprise : Limited: pc: 

Private Limited Limited : 

Sales & Services 
. 

: (100,44) 

Purchases 
- 

(136.27) 

Dividend Receipts 807.33 

(4,544.66) 

Sate of investments 34,00" 

Rent Receipts 3.12 442.92 

(3.12) (273.65) 

Amenities Recelved 4,63 

{4.46} 

Redemption of Preference Shares Issued - 
(608.00) 

Managerial Remuneration - Mr. V.N. Agarwal * 

(22.50) 

Executive Director remuneration- Mr G K Agarwal 36.00 

(18.00) 

Remuneration paid to Company Secretary - Ms.Shikha Sajal 18,29 

(16.94) 

Directors Sitting Fees 0.29 

(0.27) 

sundry Debtors 50.114 
(50,11) . 

** Figures In bracket reflect previous year balance 

*nvestments in HSM International Private Limited and Macneil Electricals Limited amounting to Rs 30.25 Lakhs and Rs, 3.75 Lakhs respectively 

was sold to Prakash Agarwal (Director), 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIVIITED 
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDE! D 31ST MA RCH, 2025 © 

Details of Advances Given and Received During the year from Related Parties 

As in takhs 

“oName Transactions : “AS At: As At 

an : 31.03.2025 | 31,03,2024 

VN, Enterprises Limited Opening Balance receivable , 7,897.10 

Further Given 225.00 200.00 

Advance Refunded 25.00 8,097.10 

Closing Balance receivable 200.00 - 

Bharath Oil and Chemical Industries Limited Opening Balance receivable 3.99 3.58 

. Advance Given 0.29 0.44 

Advance Refunded - - 

Closing Balance receivable 4.28 3.99 

Macneill Electricals Limited Opening Salance receivable - 305.50 

Advance Given - 10.00 

Advance Refunded ~ 315.50 

Closing Balance receivable . . 

H. S, M. International Private Limited Opening Balance receivable 20.50 19.76 

Advance Given 0.50 0.74 

Advance Refunded 21.00 - 

Closing Balance receivable - 20,50 

Asutosh Enterprises Ltd Opening Salance - - 

Advance taken - 343,00 

Advance Refunded - 343.00 

Closing Balance - - 

Bengal Steel Industries Ltd Opening Balance 400.00 - 

Advance taken 0.06 400.00 

Advance Refunded 400.06 - 

Closing Balance - 400.00 

Hindusthan Parsons Limited Opening Aalance - - 

Advance given 375.00 - 

Advance Refunded 375.00 - 

Closing Balance 

1. All the related party contracts/arrangements/transactions during the financial year were in the ordinary course of the business of the Company, 

and on arms’ length basis 

2, The amount of outstanding balances as shown above are unsecured, and will be settled/recovered in cash, 

22.3 Segment Reporting 

The operation of the Company relates to Single Primary Business Segment (Discontinued Operation} ie. Engineering (Steel Castings & Alloys). 

Accordingly, there is no primary business segment. 

22.4 Considering the external and internal impairment indicators, the management is of the opinion that no asset has been Impaired as at 31st March, 2025. 

Consequently, no Impairment foss has been recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025, 

22.5 The advance Is given to V N Enterprises Ltd for the purchase of Block of Investment. 



“HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
_ NOTES FORNAING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED A15T MARCH, 2025. 

22,6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

fi} Financial instruments by category 
Rs in Lakhs 

“Particulars 30°: OAS At SOAS Al 

- a 
31,03,2025 °|31,03,2024 

A. | Financial Assets 

1, | Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Investments 396.27 121,41 

I. [Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss {FVTPL) 

investments 700,00 700.00 

Ill. | Measured at Amortised Cost 

lavestments 59,402.30 54,068.21 

Trade Receivables . 235.40 248,93 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 129.02 48.55 

Bank balances other than above 16.57 31.31 

Other Financial Assets 227.54 21.68 

B, | Financial Libilitles 

i, i Measured at Amortised Cost 

Borrowings 925,19 950,79 

Trade Payables 41.45 41.45 

Other Financial Liabilities 36.77 45.06 

(I) This section explains the judgements and estimates made tn determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are {a) recognised and 

measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which the fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an 

indication about the rellabliity of the inputs used In determining fair value, the entity has classified its financial instruments into 3 levels prescribed 

under the accounting standard. 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured quoted prices 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximize 

the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity - specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to falr value an 

instrument are observable, the instrument is included tn fevel 2. 

Lavel 3; If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 

Rs in takhs 

Particulars Carrying Value Leveld Level 2 Level 3 

Measured at falr value through Other Comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

As at 31st March 2025 

investments 396.27 - 396.27 

As at 31st March 2024 

Investments 121,41 - 121.41 

Measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed 

As at 31st March 2025 

Deferred Sates Tax Loan 4.47 + 1.17 

As at 31st March 2024 

Deferred Sales Tax Loan 1.17 - 1.17 



: HINDUSTHAN. upyoG LMI TED. : : 

: (NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATE! D. ‘FINA NCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR NDE! D BIST MARCH, 2025 HE 

22.7 

22.8 

4) 

(1) 

Earnings Per Share 

Accounting Policy: 

Earnings Per Share Is caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss of the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 

equity shares custanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's Earnings Per Share is the net profit ar loss for the period. 

The weighted average number of equity shares oustanding during the period and all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other 

than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources, 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or lass for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 

average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, 

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024 

{A} Earnings available for Equity Shareholder (Rs in Lakhs) 5,496.36 18,190.45] 

{B) Face Value per share{Rs) 10.00; 40.00! 

{C) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 61,94,996 61,94,996: 

{D) Earnings Per Share (basic/diluted}{A/C} 88,72 293.63: 

Additional Regulatory information 

The Title Deeds of all the immovable properties held by the company as on 34st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 are in the name of the 

company, other than Immovable Property disclosed below: 

Relevant fine item in | “Description of item of | Gross carrying -|Title deeds held In the name of 22:00: “} Whether title deed Property held .|. Reason for not 

“the Balance sheet “property value .: Ming a : holder Isa promoter, |. since which "|: being held In 

n : : 2 : aaeeal director or relative of date the name of the 

prometer/director or ae company...” 

2 employee of Laey 

+ promoter/director ‘ 

PPE Buliding 364.55 Neptune Exports iimited| NA 01-04-2019 | Acquired on 

finfakhs)  [{Transferor Company = which account of 

amalgamated with the Company amalgamation 

with effect from 04,04,.2015) and fs In 
process of 

registration 

Capital Work-in Progress (CWIP): - 

Capital Work-in Progress Ageing Schedule 
Rs in Lakhs 

cwIP Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a period of ‘As at 

“Less than: 4-2 Years 2000] 52-3 Years More than “CBP 31,03,2025 

1Year >" “ : my Cole Years 

Projects In progress 0.40 0.44 0.29 FAB 78.56 

CWP “Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a period of : : oasat ir 
vas ESE DLE ren | 31.03,2024 : 

| bess than 24 4:2 Years 2-3 Years ©". | ‘More than 3 years 

year net wes : we 

Projects in progress 0.44 0.29 0.38 77.05 78.46 



“HINDUSTHAN UDYGG LIMITED 
: NOTES! 4 ‘ORMING PART OF CONS OLDATEO FINANC TAL. STATEMEN TS: F OR THE YEAR, ENDED. 2157. Mane 2025. 

The company has no such transactions with company struck off under section 248 of the Companie Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. {it} 

(iv) The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2{87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers] Rules, 2017. 

tv} Keys Ratios: 

‘Ratios © Numerator: Denominator |2024-25 2023-24 |. :: | Percentage ‘Reason for Variance 

re BON wae of Variance ° Bev : 

Current Ratto (in times} Current Assets Current 2.95 1.25 135,.31%|Due to increase in advances 

Liabilities given/refunded to related 

party. 

Debt - Equity Ratio {in times) Total Debt Shareholder's 0,04 0.02 -15.26%] Due to repayment of loan 

Equity taken from iCICI Bank 

Debt - Service Coverage Ratio (In| Earning available for | Debt Services 37.16 6.14 505,23%]Due to repayment of loan 

times} debt service taken from Axis Finance 

Limited in the previous year 

Return on Equity Ratio (%) Net Profit after Taxes] Average 8.55% 35.02%) -75,59%;Due to higher profit off 

- Preference Dividend |Sharehoiders assoclate companies in the 

(if any} Equity previous year 

inventory Turnover Ratio {inj Cost of goods sold or | Average - 6.85 -100,00%]Due to Nil Revenue from 

times) Sales inventory Operations 

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio} Net Credit Sales Average . 0.60 -100,00%|Due to Ni Revenue from 

{in times) Accounts Operations 

Receivable 

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio! Net Credit purchases | Average - 0.01 -100,00%| Due to Nil Purchases during| 

{in times} Accounts the year. 

Payable 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in| Net Sales Average . 0.04 -100.00%|Due to Nil Revenue from 

times) Working Operations 

Net Profit Ratio {%) Net Profit Net Sales - - G.00%|Due to Nil Revenue from 

Operations 

Return on Capital Employed (%) Earning _ before] Capital 0,09 0,33 7i,58%|Due to higher profit off 

interest and taxes Employed assoclate companies in the 
previous year 

Return on Investment 

(a) Quoted jncome generated] Fund Invested 284,.14% 8.64%) 3041,44%| Due to fluctuation in market} 

from Invested fund price. 

(b) Unquoted income generated] Fund Invested -31,83% -2.48%| 100.00%|Due to sale of Investment 

fram Invested fund during the year. 

(d} Associate Income generated| Fund Invested 9.87%: 73.00% -86.49%|Pue to purchase of 

from Invested fund investments of WPIL Ltd in 

the previous year, 

22.9 As per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least 2% of the Average net profit made 

during three immediately preceding financial years. Since the Average Net Profit of the Company, during the said perlod, is below the limit of section 135, 

50 the company did not spend any amount in Corporate Social Responsibility activities during the current financial year. 

22,10 Other Additional Regulatory information not stated here, as these are not applicable to the Company. 



_HINDUS THAN: UDYOG LIMITED Le i oe 

Wales to the Consolidated ‘Financial. Statements for the year ‘ended. 31.03.2026 

22.11 Disclosures as required under indian Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefits” 

A. Defined Benefit Plan 

The Company has unfunded scheme for payment of gratuity to all eligible employees calculated at specified number of days of last drawn 

salary depending upon tenure of service for each year of completed service subject to minimum five years of servica payable at the time of 

separation upon superannuation or an exit otherwise. 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded 

status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the Post ~ retirement benefit plans . 

Rs in Lakhs 

PARTICULARS 

Gratuity Leave qo Leave 

Encashment Encashment 

1, Change in the Defined Benefit Obligation 

- Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning . 12.22 16.92 1,61 A898 

- Current Service Cost 0.80 0.86 0,16 , 0.43 

~ Interest Expense or Cost 0.85 1,21 0.14 0.21 

- Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from: - - , . - "| 

change in dersographic assumptions - . . - 

change in financial assumptions 0.48 ‘O4A7 | 0 0.03 0.02 

experience variance 0.98 1.21 oo 0.46 ~ 0.29 

- Past Service Cost - - ae - 

- Effect of change in foreign exchange rates - - —_ - 

- Benefits paid (4.60) (8.15) (0.99) (2.02) 

- Acquisitions Adjustment . - . 

- Effect of business combinations or disposals - - - 

- Present Value of Obligation as at the end 13.74 42.22 1.39 4.61 

2. Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss 

- Current Service Cost 0.80 0.86 0.16 : 0.13 

- Interest Expense or Cost 0.85 4.24 0.11 0.24 

- Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from: - - - 

change in demographic assumptions - - oe 

change in financial assumptions . - 0.03 0.02 

experience variance - - : 0.46 “0,29 

- Past Service Cost - - : 

- Effect of change in foreign exchange rates : - - : _ 

~ Acquisitions Adjustment 
- - 

- Effact of business combinations or disposals - - i. - - 

Total 1.66 2.07 “076 6.65 

3, Other Comprehensive Income 

- Actuarial (gains) / losses azising from: 

change in demographic assumptions - 

change in financial assumptions 0.48 0.47 “ - 

experience variance 0,98 121 - * 

Total 1,46 1.38 - - 

4. Actuarial Assumptions 

{a) Financial Assumptions 

Discount rate p.a 6.47% 6.97% 6.47% 6.97% 

Salary growth rate p.e 5,00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 



_HINDUSTHAN UDVOG LIMITED. 
"NOTES FORMING PART. OF CONSOLIDATED. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Fi 

22.1 Additienal information 

As at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025 
{ Rs, In Lakhs } 

Name of the entity in the Group Net Asset Le.total . Share in profit or loss -- ‘Shore in other / Share in total 

ae assets minus total : : : ‘comprehensive income |-. comprehensive income 

Hablities ~ ae : vt : Bs 

As % of | “Amount (| | As % of ‘Amount .| As % of Amount As % of total “Amount 

consolida | 2 consolidated consolidated | comprehensh po" 

ted net | profit or loss other ..- ve income -:|.. 

assets - : comprehensi 

: ve income 

Parent 20,72%| 13,966.21 2.82% (154.83) 32.77% 242,54 1.41% 87.68 

Subsidiary 

Bharat Oil and Chemical Industries Limited 0.07% 48.00 0.00% - 0.00% - 8.00% - 

{74,59%) 

Non- Controlling Interest in Subsidiary 

Bharat Oil and Chemical Industrles Limited 0.03% 20,01 0,00%, - 0.00% - 0.00% - 

(25.01%) 

Associates (Investment as per the equity 

method} 

INDIAN 

WIL Limited (41.33%) 77,11%} 54,991.01 99.27% 5,456.39 67.23% 497.55 85.47% 5,953.94 

Asutosh Enterprises Limited (36.12%) 0.74% 496.33 2.05% 112.91 0.00% - 1.81% 442.91 

Bengal Steel industries Limited (38.13%) 0.06% 41.52 0.12% 6.67 0.00% - 0.11% 6.67 

Hindusthan Parsons Limited (41.55%) 1.25% 841.76 1.18% 65.04 6.00% - 1.04%] 65.04 

H. & MM. International Private Limited 0.00% - 0.00% 0.01 0.00%: - 0.00% 0.01 

(30.25%) (upto date of cessation) 

Spaans Babcack india Limited (45%) 0.02% 15.62 0.18% 10.46 0.00% - 0.18%: 40.16 

TOTAL 100.00%| 67,420.46 100,00% §,496,36 100.00%| 740.06 100,00% 6,236.42 



_HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED. 
“NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSO. 

As at and for the year ended ist March, 2024 

JATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FEAR ENDED 3157 MIARCH, 2025 

{ Rs. in Lakhs } 

Nome of the entity in the Group... -:. Net Asset i.e.total Share in profit or toss |. Share in other Share in total 

eran TA : -assets minus total : comprehensive income comprehensive income 

fiablittes : icon ‘ : ‘ . 

‘As % of ©] “Amount |. As % of Amount |}: As 2 of ‘Amount : As % of total | ‘Amount .: 

consolida consolidated | 00). :>| consolidated comprehenst |.” ; 

ted net | profit or loss other.” ve income : : 

assets : | comprehens! . : 

ve income 

Parent 24.39%} 413,090.30 -2,.24% (407.93} 17.46% 52.40 -1.92% (355.82) 

Subsidiary 

Bharat Oil and Chemical Industries Limited 0.08% 48.00 0.00% - 0.00% - 0,00% - 

(74.99%) 

Non- Controlling interest in Subsidiary 

Bharat Oil and Chemical Industries Limited: 0.00% - 0.00% ~ 0.00% - 0.00% - 

(25.01%) 

Associates (investment as per the equity 

method) 

INDIAN 

WPIL Limited (41.33%) 76.56%} 46,844.46 96.86%] 17,619.48 82.54% 246.27 96,.63%| 17,865.75 

Asutosh Enterprises Limited (36,12%) 0.63%: 383.42 1.05% 4194.43 0,00% - 4.03% 193,43 

Bengal Steel Industries Limited {38.13%} 0,06% 34.96 9.02% 2.86 0.00% - 0,02% 2.86 

Hindusthan Parsons Limited (41,55%) 1.27% 776.72 4.38% 799.44 0.00% - 4.32% 799.44 

H. SM, International Private Limited 0.00% 0.76 0.00% (0.26) 0.00%: . 0.00% (0.26) 

(30.25%) 

Spaans Babcock India Limited (4554) 0.01% 5.46 0.08% (44.27) 0.00% - 0.08% (14,27) 

TOTAL 100.00%| 61,184.04 100,00%] 18,190.45 100.00% 298,37 100.00%| 18,488,382 

22,13, Previous years’ figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever necessary, 
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